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STATE OF NEW HAMY s 1 052 RCVD

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lorl A. Shibinette 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissicaer ) 603-271-9544  1-8300-852-3345 Ext. 9544
Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Actess: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Katja S. Fox
Director

June 28,2021  °

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Henorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed $145,278,814.18

for providing behavioral health residential treatment services for children, youth, and young adutts

to quickly stabilize their behavioral health needs, with the option to renew for up to gix (6)
additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2024. Funding
source is estimated as 51% General Funds and 49% Federal Funds dependent upon ellglbclrty of
the client.

VondorWama! | AreaServed | SFY2022 SFY 2023 SFY 2024 Tm;mi‘l’:‘n‘:‘“
4
Dover Children's
Home
Dover, NH
Dover, NH 1,656,230.00 | 131704800 | 131704800 | 420033500
(VC# TBD)
Easter Seals
Manchester,
_ NH
Manchester, NH 11,223.412.00 | 11,223,412.00 | 11,223,41200 | 33,670,236.00
(VC# 177204)
Home for Little _mul:gggh.
Wanderers, Inc. Manchester,
. Keene,
Concord, and . .
Bostan, MA R%f::g{;’"‘ 7.306,201.01 | 6,298,503.00 | 6,288,503.00 | 10,803,207.01
(VC# TBD)

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and fam;hu
in providing opporiunilties for cilizens io achieve health and independence.

W
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Nashua Children's
Home
‘ Nashua, NH
Nashue, NH 326832000 | 326832000 | 3.268,320.00' | 9.804.960.00
(VC# TBD)
Pine Haven Boys
Center
Suncook, NH
Suncook, NH 414117617 | 362071200 | 362071200 | 1138260017
(VC# TBD)
Spaulding
Academy & Family
Services .
Northfield, NH
Northfield, NH 17,112,801.00 | 16,665,191.00 | 16,665,181.00 | 50.443.273.00
(VvC# TBD)
In/Near
Stetson School Hilisborough,
Manchesler,
Keene,
Concord, and
Barre, MA R%ﬂsg{;“’“ 2,426,778.00 | 2426778.00 | 242677800 | 7.280,334.00
. (VC# TBD)
Webstar House
Manchester,
NH
Manchester, NH 70556400 | 70556400 | 70556400 | 2.11669200
(VC# TBD) '
In/Near
Whitney Acadamy Hil!sborough.
Manchester,
Keene,
COncgrd. and i .
North Dighton, MA. | Roa o | 212008000 | 212005000 | 212005000 | 6.387.177.00
(VC# TBD) :
Total: $49,069,640.18 | $47,654,587.00 | $47,654,587.00 | $145,278,814.18

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are ra
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 through 2024, upon the availability and |
continued appropnatlon of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed |
and justified. '

i
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Because the Bridges System is used to process and monitor payments for these
agreements, no purchase order number is assigned. The New Hampshire First System will not
be used to encumber these funds.

Depending on the eligibility of the client, funding type is determined at the time of payment.
Possible account numbers to be utilized include the below:

05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF CHILDRENS BEHVIORAL
HEALTH, SYSTEM OF CARE, CLASS 102~ CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES - 100%

General Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD — FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 636 - TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT - 50% Federal Funds and
50% General Funds

05—95—42-421010 29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 638 - TITLE IV-A/TANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT - 100%

Federal Funds

05-05-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 643 - STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT - 100% General Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 646 — TITLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT - 50% Federal Funds and 50%
General Funds

05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES, OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES,
MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT, CLASS 535 - OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS - 0% Federal
Funds and 50% General Funds )

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide behavioral health services in residential treatment
settings to children, youth and young adults who have behaviora! health needs who have more
intensive behavioral and mental health needs that cannot be met safely in the community without
intensive supports.

The Contractors will deliver evidence-based and trauma-informed clinical services to
reduce reliance on emergency rooms, hospital settings, and residential treatment programs
outside of New Hampshire and New England. The Contractors will support the Department's
efforts to provide betteriong-term outcomes for youth by providing services that will be short-term,
target treatment episodes to reduce re-entry into residential treatment settings, and enable the
State to meet the federal regulations regarding residential programs as mandated in the Families
First Services Prevention Act.

The population served includes children and youth who display acute behaviors, medical
needs and mental health symptoms that require treatment in residential settings. These
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'individuals may have specialty care needs, including intellectual and developmental disabilities,
fire setting behaviors, problematic sexual behaviors, highly aggressive behaviors, past attempts
of suicide or significant self-harm. A qualified assessor will determine whether children and youth
receiving services provided in the family home are eligible for the residential levels of care.
Approximately 400-500 individuals will be served annually-through June 30, 2024,

The Contractors will provide varying residential treatment levels of care ranging from
levels one through four, with four being the most intensive treatment. All Contractors will provide
services that are family-driven, youth-guided, community-based, trauma-informed, and culturally
and linguistically competent in accordance with RSA 135-F. Depending on the level of care,
Contractors will provide services that may include but are not limited to:

e Residential/milieu services through direct care professionals;

¢ Trauma-informed treatment models including evidence based practices;
« Mental health/clinical services provided by clinical staff,

« Educational services, as approved by the Department of Education;

¢ |Independent living/employment support,

« Positive Youth Development/Recreational opportunities,

» Safety and supervision; and

e Care coordination of all needs inciuding medical/dental and other needs.

The Department will monitor contracted services by collecting data on referrals, family and
'youth engagement, quality of treatment, and transition and discharge; conducting site visits; and
reviewing client files. The Department will also monitor the following:

» Rapid Acceptance of Referrals;

¢ Reduction of Restraint and Seclusion;

» Improvement of Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) scores;
¢ Reduction of lengths of stay; and

¢ Reduction of staff tumover and ‘retention of quality staff.

‘The Department selected the contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 12/11/2020
through 3/8/2021. The Department received forty-nine (49) responses that were reviewed and
scored by a team of ‘qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached. This requested action
includes nine (9) contracts and the Department plans to submit seven (7) additional contracts to
a future Governor and Executive Council meeting.

As referenced in Exhibit A Revisions for Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to six (6) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
Govemnor and Council approval. .

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department’s Residential
Treatment Transformation will not be able to move forward, which could:

« Limit the amount of federal funding that the Department would have access to
through the Family First Prevention Services Act and IV-E;
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« Impact implementation of required trauma-informed models and evidence-based
models for residential treatment programs;
. Impact the quality of services available to children and youth;

« Prevent in-state providers from accepting New Hampshire children and youth due
to limited funding, which may result in referrals to out-of-state providers, limit the
ability of youth to return home, and increase service costs.

« Impact the ability of the Department to implement RSA 135-F and support access
to treatment for all youth. '

Areas served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.658, FAIN #2101NHFOST CFDA #83.558, FAIN#
2101NHTANF, CFDA #93.659, FAIN #2101NHADPT, CFDA #93.778, FAIN #2105NH5ADM

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, Genera! Funds will not
be requested to support this program.
' Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette ’
\ Commissioner



New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Sevvices

Bureaw of Contracts & Procurement

Requesi tor Proposal: Summary Score Sheat

PROJECT MTLE Residential Troatment Services for Chikdren's Behavioral Health
PROJECT iD NUMBER __|AFP-2021-0BH-12-RESID
LEVEL OF CARE Lavel 1
Proposer Name Opilon/Program TOTAL BCORE
|| Independent
1|Chass Home Living Program 53/
2| Dover Chilkdvens Home Pilot House 82
Hillsborough
3{Horme for Utlle Wanderers Village program 47
Village
4|Home for Litie Wanderers Apartments 85|
NeuroResior ative
5| Manior AS1 [NewroRestorative) NH disqualitied
6| Orlon House incorporated JOrion House 56

Bayiewers Namn and Titis
1 Roberi Roder, A wior 17 DCYF
2 Rlcherd Saretie, i fot DCYF

3 Shawn Bishey, Program Specialst IV, CBH

4 Paige Morgan, Youth Volce

5 Tanjn Godtirecs: Business Administaior, Finance




Naw Hampshirs Depariment of Health and Human Services
Bursau ol Contracts & Procurement

Req tor Propossl: S ¥y Score Sheel '
PROJECT TITLE Residential Trastment Senvices lor Children's Behavioral Health
PROJECT ID NUMBER |RFP-2021.DBH-12-RESID )
LEVEL OF CARE Level 2 .
[ [Froposer Hame p Optonvrogram __ [TOTAL SCOAE | Beyiovrera Homa e Thie
1|Chase Homa Portsmouth a8 1 Magan Sheehen Program Speciabat [V, DBH
2] Dervmr Childrens Homrw Dover D; 2 Heorsh M L alat |V, DBH
3|Home lor Litls Wandarers Unity House 75 3 Kara Budon, Administator, DCYF
4] Home lor Little Wanderers Koerw House ki) 4 Tarjn Godtirecesn, Business Administrator, Firence
5|Mentor AB1LLC {NeuroRestorative) NeuroRestorative NH 81
&{Mashyn Chigren's Home Nashua 1]
7|Crion Houss incorporated l Orion l
8] Spauiding Acadeny A Family Services Spaulding 1}
9{5t. Anns Homa,’inc. Sl Ann's 03
101 House |wetster 75




Haw Hampshire Depariment of Hesith and Human Ferviced
Butedu of Coniracie & Procyrsment
Requasd for Proporssl: Summary Soors Sheet

PROJECTTITLE _|Aeworns Trowyrant Sarvicey kr Grokon's Borunioral Howm

IPMOUECT 10 HUMBER _[RFP.2021 -DBH-12.RESD

LEVEL OF CARE Lavat )
[Ropore Fre LT
1

Doveronun Lovet § nwrsive ™
i1 ] A Doy - ineertsies
HEmver Semhs Lancewer - niwtaive [
flE Hurrisive ]
5|Exyier Semls A Wl - bteraaive »|
) Y Werese ey [wpchy
7| urace 4PN (HouroResorasve oo
8 Mourt Prowpes: Acwsemy, ine FOpson 4 Adv Warren (1l
Bt o, e jOpson A ksl Fereh Pl [
19]Mound Prospect Aceterry, . 10pwon A P2O ey "
19 et Prospect e 0pson 4 By Py )
" poct Acaserry, b orcion ¢ Cos Hgmon »
k1L poct Acaderry, e, jOoson G Caw Phe L
14| Mount Prospect o [Opson D Jaky Cary Campom »
13{Pyw Harraes Bo Pine b}
M Spauirg L Famiy 59 Ll
17| Spmichng Acaderry & Farty 8 Ed

3 Kartoan Tobon Pregyym Spacieba v, COH__
4J_ﬂm Admirisrstr, DCYF

S Ny Loprwys, devivrwer Rearcs
® Poternp roews, Pl Puagrving dom



HNew Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Bursay of Contracts & Procuremen!
Req for Proposal y Score Sheast

PROJECT TITLE Resigentinl Treatment Services lor Children’s Behaviora) Heslih
PROJECT ID NUMBER |RFP-2021.DBH-12-RESID
LEVEL OF CARE Lovel 4
Propoess Hume Opon/F rograem FOTAL BLORE_|
1| Mentor ABI (NeuroRestorative) Option B CBAT 2
2|Mount Prospect Acadenrry, bnc. Option A Binke Michell Pke 80|
3{Mount Prospect Acadenry inc. Oplion O ERT Campton 5
4lMoun! Prospect Acsdemy_ inc, Option D ERT Hamgton 9
5[S1. Anns Home, tnc. Option B CBAT "
6J§t. Anns Horne, Inc. Option C ICBAT l7
7| Vermont Permanency inkiative, inc. Varmani 93
8| Youth unities Upheid Inc. Option C ICBAT %
9{Youth Oppertunities Uphesd inc. Option C ICBAT 8
10| Mentor ABI (NeuroR ve) | Option C ICBAT s

Beyiry ers Neme and Tin
1 Darryl Yenrwy, Program Specisis1 IV, CBH
% Acels Bauman, Adminsieior, CBH
3 Erica mu'l‘MIOrCBH

4 Rebecta Fracetts, AdminsTam:, DOE

5 Tanin Goditfredson, Business Adminisyatr, Flrance

& Elzabeth Latontsine, Administrator, Finarce

ol LU AL UL LR L e
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified o the agency and agreed to in writing prior to sighing the contract.

= ' AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION. .
1.1 State Agency Name . 1.2 State Agency. Address

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services - | 129 Pleasant Street
' ‘ ' Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name . 1.4 Contractor Address

‘Dover Children's Home | 207 Locust Street,
Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 ~Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

Number | .
‘ See Exhibit C : June 30, 2024 $4,290,335.00
(603) 742-4289 Ext:12
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency .- 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
‘Nathan D. White, Director ' | (603) 2719631
.11 Contractor Signature . | 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
DocuSigned by: - : .
. 6/22/2021 Renee Touhey-Chidress . .
. . S Executive Direct
Foner Touduey-(hidrss P | -
1.13  Siate Agency Signature 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
DocuSigned by: 6/22/2021 . Katj a Fox .

Director

' [_K‘d?‘ Fox Date:

1.15 WWB??%‘?\I;H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: : Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable) - . )
' 6/24/2021

DecuSigned by:

By: : - - ' On:
_ ¢ _ Taﬁ:‘wum Kalklumatona
1.17 Approvat by &Vernor and Executive Council (if applicable)
G&C Item number? . G&C Meeting Date:

] : D3
Page 1 0of4 : [ T
. - ’ ' ‘Contractor Initials '

Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
{“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
{(“Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become cffective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior 10 the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the

Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become

effective,. the State shall have no liability 10 .the Contractor,
“including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services pefformed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Complétion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4; CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of" the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, are

contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
" funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, . eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement.and
_the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the Siate be liable for any payments
hercunder in excess of such'available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right 1o reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
e\-cnt funds in that Account are reduced or unavailablc.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE L[\'IITATIO\/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method ofpaymcnl and.terms of payment
are identified and.more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

" 5.2 The payment by the Siate of the centract price shall be ‘the
only and the complete reimbursement 10 the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
" performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shalt
have no lability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
3.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
herevinder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS -
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the’ performancc of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

“regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal

authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited 1o, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comp]y with all applicable intellectual
property laws. ‘

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contracior shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to, pérmit the State or Uniled States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations .
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Centractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in. wrllmg, during the term of '
this Agreement, and for a pcnod of six (6) months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or -performance of "this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination oftlm Agreement. .
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the’ interpretation of this Agrcement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

. ) - DS
Page 2 of 4 ' [ ol
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder {* Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 failure 1o perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, thc State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days irom the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreerent, effective two (2) days afier giving the
Contractor notice of tefmination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contracior during the
peried from the date of such notice until such.time as.the State.
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe 10 the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Conlractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any ofm: remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

'8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof afler
any Event of Defauli shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

- 9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, al 1ls sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Coniractor that
the State is exercising its option 10 terminate the Agreement..
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for

any reason other-than the completion of the Services, the.

Contractor shall, at the Staie’s discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report {“*Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, 1o
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State’s discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3 of 4

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITYI
PRESERVATION, o
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic -
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether

finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been reccived from

the Siate or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this.Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall'be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State, -

1. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. - Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State (o its employees.

‘12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

121+ The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior writien notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifleen (15) days prior to

. the assignment, and a writlen consent of the State. For purposes

of this paragraph, a- Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,.
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity. interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall .be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled 1q copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officérs and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted agamsl
the Stale, its officers or employees, which arise out of (

may be claimed to arisc out of) the acts or omissi E[[_\thc

Contractor Initials

Date 1
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Centractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, oblam and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any

* subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the

following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance agdinst aII claims

of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not

less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate

or excess; and ' '

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property

subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than

80% of the whole replacerncnt' value of the property.

14.2 The pohcncs described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be

on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State

of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and

issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer

identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cerlificate(s) of

insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.

Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified

in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this-Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy.. The certificate(s) of insurance and any

renewals thereof shall be allached and are incorporated herein by.

reference.

18. \\’ORKERS’ COMPENSATIOV .
15.1 By signing ‘this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
. and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter. 281-A (" IForkers’
Compensation”}.

15.2 To the extent the Contraclor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers’ Compensation in connection with
activities which-the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement, The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Waorkers’
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A_and any applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, .or any subcontractor or employee of Coniractor,

deemed an original,

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at-the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
partics hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required

- . under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding updn and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the

P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third partics and this Agreement shall not be
construed-to confer any such benefit.

21, HEADEINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of'th:s
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference: :

23. SEVERABILITY. In the évent any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to ahy state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, cach of which shall be
constitutes . the entire ‘agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior

- agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

which -might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire hereof,

Workers" Compensation laws in connection with  the o

" performance of the Services under this Agreement. oS
Page 40f4 [ kT
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Stgndard‘A'qreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions -

1.1, Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, |s amended by adding -
' - -subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to six (6) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
_ services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
y : Governor and Executive Council.

1.2, Paragraph 12, Asmgnmenthelegahon/Subcontracts IS . amended by adding
! subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

123 Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written

" agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to-be
performed and how corrective action. shall be managed if the
subcontractor's performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall
manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and
take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually
provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for under

- this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate subcontractor
performance

@’i

RFP-2021-0BH-12-RESID-03 Dover Children's Homes Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1.  The Contractor shall provide high-quality tailored behavioral health treatment
. services in residential treatment settings to quickly stabilize behaviors. and
symptoms that children, youth and young adults herein referred to as
individuals with behavioral health needs experience. This targeted treatment
‘should enable them to return .to a lower level of treatment or family-based
settings, while providing their caregivers with skills to manage their needs
safely in the community an'_d ‘enable individuals to thrive at home, in education,
and in employment. |
1.2.  The Contractor shall provide'ResidentiaI Treatment Services: based on the
levels.of care identified in Section 2 Levels of Care. ‘
1.3.  The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services with the purpose of:

1.3.1.  Prioritizing short-term treatment with the goal of rapidly reunifying
children with their famifies and/or community support networks;

- .1.3.2. Widening'access to- treatment for all- who need it, enabling all
o individuals to. access services, _feg‘ardless of ‘their prior or current
involvement with child welfare-orjuve-'nile justice systems;

1.3.3. Reducing reliance-on: hospltal emergency departments and reducing
the need for psychtatrlc hospitalization;

1.3.4. -Prioritizing famlly engagement and providing caregiver education
and engagement in the individual’s care and recognizing that families
and caregivers are an.integral part of the Treatment Team Meetnngs
/Child and Family Team

1.3.5. Providing services that are trauma-informed and implementing
evidence-based practices to ensure the highest quality of care and
the best possible outcomes for the individual;

1._3.6. Ensuring tfreatment is available along' a continuum of care which
delivers tailored treatment plans for each child according to their
individual needs, and at a range of different levels of intensity;

1.3.7. Coordinating effectively ‘and seamlessly with key partner entities
including the Care Management Entities (CME), the conflict free
assessor (CAT), the child's school district, family and permiticy

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 Oover Children's Home " Contractor Initials _
B-1.0 Page 1 of 41 Date 6/22/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

14.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 Dover Children's Home . Contractor Initials

B-1.0

" teams, and DCYF staff io deliver treatment according to System of
Care pnnmples

1.38. Cultlvatlng strong community networks around the individual -to

support long-term thriving in commumty settings after d:scharge

- 1.3.9. Providing adequate funding for service delivery, recognizing the

importance of paying what it _tak_es to deliver results for high-quality
programs;

1.3.10. Supporting and improving the transition- of the individual  from
residential treatment into - their ‘home community, by utilizing
oversight and supportive transitional services through CME;_

1.3.11.  Early targeted treatment equipping the individual and their families
with the skills to successfully transition into adulthood by restoring,
rehabilitating, or malntalnlng their capacity to successfully function in
the community, and diminish-their need for more intensive levels of
care; and

1.3.12. | Providing programming that offers a home like atmosphere and
access to the community.

The Contractor sha‘ll accommodate referrals from all over State and should
prioritize referrals of NH individuals. '

The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services for children, youth,
and young adults ages 5 to under age 21 who have more intensive behavioral
and mental health needs that cannot be met safely in the community without
intensive supports. The Contractor may tailor their residential treatment
services to serve a target-population within the required age range.

The Contractor shall implement New Hampshire's System of Care to serve
many different kinds of emotional, behavioral, and mental health needs of
children, including providing more intensive, focused, high-quality residential
treatment for those with the most significant, acute behavioral health needs
when reqmred

The Contractor ‘'shall ensure services are provided to all New Hampshlre
ellgnble individuals defined in Section 1.6 and shall prioritize services first for
these individuals before accepting out of state individuals who are notidentified
as New Hampshire residents, but who need this level of care.

The Contractor shall ensure residential treatment services: | C
kT
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
ReSldentlaI Treatment Services for Children’s-Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B -

1.8.1.

1.8.2.

Shall be licensed and certified. Those that are not currently-certified;
licensed and accredited, shall complete these requirements within 6
months from contract approval, unless otherwise agreed Upon by the
Department. '

Shall comply with all federal, and state Iaws regulatlons and rules
as follows, but are not limited to:

1.8.2.1. RSA 170-E:
1.8.2.2. © RSA 170-G:8;
1.8.2.3. RSA 126-U;
1.8.2.4. RSA 135-F;
1.82.5. ‘He-C 4001;
1.8.2.6. He-C 6350; and
1.8.2.7. He-C 6420.

1.8.3.

1.8.4.

185

If not-located in New Hampshire, shall comply with all. federal and
state laws, regulations and -rules of their state In addition,
Contractors shall follow: : . :

1.8.3.1. RSA 126_-U,
1.8.3.2. He-C 6350; and
1.8.3.3. . He-C 6420.

Shall ‘be accredited by the Joint Commission, Council on
Accreditation” (COA), or - Commission on Accreditation of
Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF) for Levels 1'(optional) 2,3, and 4.
Shall ensure clinical and medical residential treatment services allgn
with accreditation and the levél of care requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall accommodate visits of the DCYF staff, Juvenile Probation .
, and Parole Officer (JPPO), or Child Protective Service Worker (CPSW).
1.10. In the event of a conflict between applicable federal and state laws and rules
the Contractor shall follow the most prescriptive laws and rules. -
1.11. Staffing, Training and Developmelnt

1.11.1.°

1.11.2.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03
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Talent Strategy
1.11.1.1. . The Contractor shall develop, |mplement and maintain a
- creative and effective talent strategy to recruit, train, and

retain staff, in order to ensure staff are committed and.
trained in providing high quality treatment and outcomes
for individuals. ' '

Staffmg Ratios

1.11.2.1. The Contractor shall provide a comprehensive. staffing
model corresponding to.each Level of Care that m@%ﬁor

Dover Children's Home \ ’ Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

exceeds accreditation standards and safety standards for
the needs of the individuals and staff to ensure the quality
of services is not compromised. s _
1.11.2.2. The Contractor shall notify the Department immediately,
by phone or email when any of the staff ratios fall below
the reconimended levels and provide a pian for
Department review that describes strategies to: _
1.11.2.2.1. Ensure individual and staff safety is
maintained at all times. .
1.11.22.2. Ensure quality of services is not
compromised.
1.11.2.2.3. Recruit staff to fill those positons as quickly
as possible to minimize how long the
_ positions are vacant.
1.11.3.  Staff Training and Development
1.11.3.1. The Contractor shall develop and :mplement staff training
' to on board and retain staff to' meet all requirements of
applicable licensing, accreditation standards, and
effective - treatment and indicate the timeframes for
training. '
1.11.3.2.  The training program shall be a comprehensive schedule
B that support orientation, ongoing training, refreshers and
annual training.
1.11.3.3. The Contractor shall ensure all new staff complete
_required training prior to being counted within the staff
supervision ratio
1.11.3.4. The Contractor shall develop and implemeht staff training
that inctudes but is not limited to the:
1.11.3.4.1. Trauma model and other evidence-based -
' practices utilized . in treatment and.
incorporate  applicable concepts and
strategies.
1.11.3.4.2. Clinical Evidence-Based Practices used to
. : deliver the residential treatment services.
1.11.3.5. De-escalation and restraint model which supports the
limited use of restrains or seclusion in accordance with
RSA 126-U and aligns with the Six Core Strategies ©.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 Dover Children’s Home ’ Contracior Initials
' 6/22/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services )
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

1.11.3.6. The Contractor shall develop and implement training for
staff, individuals and théir families on Family.and Youth '
Engagement, which includes but is not limited to:
1.11.3.6.1. Working with the Department’s Division of
Children, Youth, and Families to provide
Better Together with birth parents for
clinicians, -family workers or like roles and
other staff who would be working with
families within the first year of this
Agreement. ' :
1.11.3.6.2." Working with the University of New
' Hampshire Institute on Disability to provide
Renew Training for programs which focus on
youth fourteen (14) and older whose
permanency plan is Another Planned
Permanent Living Arrangement (APPLA) or
Independent Living programs.

'1.11.3.7.  The Contractor shall ensure all staff who interact with the

individuals and their families are trained in the trauma
model regardless of whether or not they are responsible
for supervision, clinical, medical, or educational services.

1.12. Collaborative Care

1.12.1.

1.12.2.

The Contractor shall work in partnership with CME and CAT
Contractors to ensure individuals are referred, admitted, dﬁlscharged,
and transitioned in a timely manner and in alignment with the.
individual's clinical needs.

The Contractor shall work with.the Department's CME Contractors
regarding care coordination, discharge planning, and transitional

~ support to a more appropriate form of care or home and community

1.12.3.

1.12.4.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03
B-1.0

settings, and aftercare services.

" The Contractor shall accept referrals based on the CAT Leve! of Care

Recommendations and work with the Department's CAT Contractor
to receive the individual's comprehensive assessment for treatment
to incorporate the CAT's identified short and long term individual
treatment goals. ' '

The Contractor shall maintain clear communication with all providers,

the multidisciplinary team, and espemally with the individual and their

child and family team. b
| e

Dover Chikdren's Home . Conlfactor Initials
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EXHIBIT B

1. 13 Admlssmns Discharges and Transitions
1.13.1. The Contractor shall accept the standardized referral form that is
- developed by the Department. :

1.13.2. - The Contractor shall rapidly make acceptance decisions W|th|n
seven (7) calendar days from receiving the referrals and make
accommodations to admit the individual into the residential treatment
services. : ' '

1.13.3. The Contractor shall ask and provide the individual with® an
opportunity to identify any gender nonconforming or identification as
lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or intersex, for the purposes of.
1.13.3.1. Making housing, bed, prograin, education, for clients with

_ the goal of keeping all clients safe and free from abuse;
'1.1_3.3.2. Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or intersex clients
: shall not be assigned in particular room other
assignments solely on the basis of such identification,
status; ’ '
1.13.3.2.1. Intake Coordlnator shall  consider
assignment of transgender or intersex
clients on a case-by-case basis when
deciding where to assign the client for room
and other assignments as applicable, with
.the goal of ensurmg the client's health and
safety; :

1.13.3.2:2. A transgender orintersex client's own views
with respect to the client's safety will be

given serious consideration;

'1.13.4. . For individuals other than those outlined in Section 1. 17 5.,

- Contractor shall appropriately assign the individual a room based on
needs of the population, the culture of the milieu and the clinical
- needs presented by the individual at the time of admission.

1.13.5. The Contractor may accept individuals into.residential treatment
services in limited cases without the residential treatment level of
care determination if there is an emergency that is supported by the
Department. .
1.13.5.1. {f after the emergency admission is made and if it is

determined that the individual's level of care is different
from the residential treatment level of care, then the
Contractor will work with the child and family tﬁrﬂfto

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 * Dover Children's Home - Contractor initials
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EXHIBIT B

1.13.6.

1.13.7.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03
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support a transition to a more appropriate level of care
which aligns with the needs of the individual.
Discharge and Transition
1.13.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure the individual's needs are
satisfied, the individual does not affect other individuals
being served, and the individual is not discharged
- because they demonstrate behaviors described in the
target population.
1.13.6.2. The Contractor shall provide active reS|dentlal treatment
' services and treatment for the individual from the time of
admission until the time the individual is able to transition
- successfully to a more appropriate residential treatment '
level of care or to their family and home and community.
1.13.6.3. In order to provide individuals ‘with successful and-
. supported transitions, the Contractor shall work with the
_individuals family, caregivers, community behavioral
health providers, DCYF, CME, peer support providers,
school district and the next treatment providers as follows
but is not limited to: '
1.13.6.3.1. Inviting CME staff working with the |nd|wdua|
. to treatment team meetlngs
1.13.6.3.2. Translating the- treatment and skills
’ developed by the individual dunng their-
.course of treatment. .
1.13.6.3.3.. Sharing and transferring  pertinent
information  prior+ to discharge about
progress and improvements made by the
individual to ensure continuity of treatment in
the community
. 1.13.6.3.4. Inviting CME staff, child and family team to
participate in treatment planning and
discharge/transition planning.
1.13.6.4. The Contractor shall choose to discharge when a child is
| 'in an acute psychiatric hospital for more than 7 days.
The Contractor shall complete a comprehensive discharge and
transition plan, which includes a strong focus on family and caregiver
education and involvement in the individual's aftercare in order to
prioritize episodic lengths of stay and for the purpose @i\‘fhe

Dover Children's Home Contractor Initials
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individual's successful transition from residential treatment to home,
school, and community as soon as possible.

1.13.8. The Contractor shall start discharge and transition planning on the
individual's day of admission by coordinating planning ‘with the

_ individuals, their families and community-based service providers.

1.13.9. The Contractor shall ensure the individual's treatment plan includes
discharge plans and coordination of services to ensure appropriate,
reasonable and safe discharge plans for the continued treatment of
the'individual's condition and continued care with the individual, their
family, school and community upon discharge.

1.13.10. The Contractor shall ensure families and caregivers are an integral
part of the Treatment Team and Child, Family and Permanency
Team, and closely collaborate with the referent and CME to build
attainable transition plans into adulthood that support the individua!

"in their next steps in life.

1.13.11. The Contractor shall hold a bed and not eject or dlscharge an
individual in the event of a temporary psychiatric hospitalization or
some other event that would require the child to be away from. the
program for no more than seven (7) calendar days. The Contractor

-shall accept the individual back into the program within seven (7)
" calendar days to resume their course of treatment. The Contractor:
may hold the bed longer than seven' (7) calendar days if approved by
DHHS. Unless approved after seven (7) bed hold days, the vendor
. shall discharge the child from the program. -

1.13.12. The Contractor shall work with the Department and other key
partners to develop discharge policies and practices that include no
reject from being admitted to and no eject from residential treatment.
Unplanned discharges from residential treatment will only be allowed
by the Department in extreme circumstanbes of violence, acute

_psychiatric care needs, arrests and acute medical care needs.

This does not prevent a Contractor, referral or Child and Family team
from a mutual decision of a planned transition to an alternative
setting. ’

1.13.13. The Contractor shall ensure in all cases of termination of services

' the right to appeal and the appeal process ‘pursuant to He-C 200 are
explained to the client.

1.13.14. The Contractor may deny admission to a program if any of

the following circumstances are applicable:; [ "F '
RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 Dover Children's Home Contractor Initials
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1.13.14.1.. There are no openings at the time of referral;
1.13.14.2. The age of the referred child is greatly different than the
current milieu;

- 1.13.14.3. There are staf‘an concerns at the program that would

1.13.15.

require a hold on new admissions;

1.13.14.4, There are .specialty Care needs revealed during their

. course of treatment; ' '

1.13.14.5. There were referrals made to specialty care programming
when specialty care services were not a match;

1.13.14.6. The individual's needs fall well outside  the program
model,

The Contractor may request a dlscharge for individuals from a.

residential treatment program if any of the following circumstances

are appl:cable o

1.13.15.1. New information has indicated that the child requires
specialty care that the current program does not offer;

1.13.15.2. The Child has increased aggression that has resulted in
excessive property damage or-physical harm to staff and
self and is not improving over time, indicating a higher
level of care is needed; and

1.13.15.3. The child’s level of mental health symptoms have

1.13.16..
©1.13.17.

1.14. Restraint
1.14.1.
1.142.

1.14.3.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 -
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exceeded the level of care being provided at the program
and an appropriate transition plan has been determined.
Contractor shall deliver treatment and provide services to accepted
referrals until the child’'s level of need is reduced and their treatment
goals have been met. :
The Department will monitor denials, admussmns and discharges as
part of continuous quality assurance and program outcomes and
reserves the right to review and approve or deny denials.
and Seclusion Practices
The Contractor shall comply with RSA 126- U |
The Contractor shall utilize a de-escalation and restraint training
which supports the limited use of restraint or seclusion in RSA 126-
U and aligns with the Six Core Strategies ©.
The Contractor shall develop and implement policies and methods
to reduce and eliminate use of restraint and seclusion practices by
mcorporatlng the Six Core Strategies for Reducing Seclusion and

Daover Children's Home Contractor Initiats
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1.15.

Restraint Use ©, for Department review, including but not limited to-

the following:

1.14.3.1. Therapeutic Crisis Intervention (TCI),
1.14.3.2. Crisis Prevention Institute (CP1),
1.14.3.3. = Professional Crisis Management (PCM),

1.14.3.4. Mandt,

1.14.3.5. Handle with Care, or
1.14.3.6. - Another model approved by the Department
1.14.4. The Contractor shall work with the Department and other partners
. towards a zero restraint practice. _ -

1.14.5. The Contractor shall develop restraint and seclusion policies, and
develop a method of review that will support the reduction and
elimination of restraint and seclusion. -

Children’s System of Care Values

1.15.1.  The Contractor shall prowde serwces that align with the following
System of Care values:

1.15.1.1. Youth Voice and Engagemént

1.156.1.1.1.

Page 10 of 41 Date

The Contractor shall ensure residential

treatment services and treatment are youth

driven as required by RSA 135-F by:

1.15.1.1.1.1. Having the .  individual
determine the types and mix of
services and supports needed
using their strengths and

- needs.

1.15.1.1.1.2. Having the: individual make

decisions about treatment
priorittes and goals to be
included in the treatment
. plans.

1.15.1.1.1.3. Using frequent clear and
concise communication free of
jargon that promotes respect
and that individuals feel valued
and heard.

1.15.1.1.1.4. Having an environment that is
welcoming, comforting and

comfortable for all ages/
i 3h
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1.15.1.1.2. The Contractor shall incorporate a you'th
voice into program design and delivery,
practice, and clinical services which include
providing youth opportunities such as:
1.15.1.1.2.1.. Eacilitating their own treatment
© team meetings.to the degree
- that would be both productive
and clinically appropriate.
1.15.1.1.2.2. Voicing their concerns or
- " grievances about program
policies and procedures, and
participating in any reform
efforts. ‘
1.15.1.1.2.3: Running leadership groups or
_ programs such as student
council . or youth advisory
boards. - L
1.156.1.1.2.4. Developing a youth peer
mentor model.

» 1.151.2. Family Voice and Engagement

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03
B-1.0

1.15.1.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure residential-
treatment services and treatment are family
driven as required by RSA 135-F in order to
improve treatment outcomes by:
1.15.1.2.1.1. Having the family determine
the types and mix of services
and supports needed using the .
individual's  strengths and
needs.
1.15.1.2.1.2. Having the family in decision
' making  about.  treatment
priorities and  goals to' be
included .in the individual's
‘treatment plans. ,
1.15.1.2.1.3. Using frequent clear and
concise communication free of
jargon that promotes respect

Dover Children's Home Contractor Initials
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and parents_feels valued and
heard.
1.15.1.2.1.4. Having an environment that is
welcoming, and has space for
families that is natural, inviting,
. and comforting.
1.15.1.2.2. The Contractor's engagement with the family -
shall include but not be limited to:
1.15.1.2.2.1. Encouraging families to be full
participants in their children's
ongoing  care  including
participation in  clinical
appointments. :
1.15.1.2.2.2. Welcoming natural = support’
: networks and professionals as
a support to the family and
youth:
1.15.1.2.2.3. Having  flexible visitation
policies that promote face-to-
face contact, supported
visitation as well as technology
that prioritizes the individual's
connections. o
1.15.1.2.2.4. Encouraging parents and
family to remain responsible
for the care of their children
including transportation when
it is necessary, feasible, and
) ( _ appropriate.
1.16. Cultural and Linguistic Diversity
1.16.1. The Contractor shall deliver services that meet the cultural and
linguistic needs of the diverse populations by:
1.16.1.1. Having services reflect the cultural, racial and ethnical
and linguistic needs of the population.
1.16.1.2. Understanding the family's and their community’s values

and cultures.
05
e
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1.16.2.

1.16.3.
1.16.4.

1.16.5.

1.16.6.

1.16.1.3. Attempting to hire individuals to provide services who are
representative and knowledgeable of these values and
cultures. ]
The Contractor shall regularly collect and review Race, Ethnicity and
Language. (REAL) and- Sexual Orientation or Gender identity or
Expression (SOGIE) data to identify health disparities and make
necessary system changes in partnership with individuals: and
families to address these health disparities as necessary. . _ '
The Contractor's staff shall attend Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Services (CLAS) training provided by the Department.
The Contractor shall complete an organizational assessment to
identify areas for improvement. ' - '
The Contractor shall make CLAS plans available to the Department
for review to ‘ensure the standards are being met and to ensure
continuous-improvement.
The Contractor’s staff shall have ongoing participation in facilitated
conversations on culture and diversity to explore their own values,
beliefs and traditions, and the implications they have on their work.

1.17. Multidisciplinary Approach

1171,

The Contractor shall provide reS|dentraI treatment in a coheswe
manner to meet the needs of the individual and family by using a -
multidisciplinary team approach, which includes team members from
disciplines at the program, such as but not limited to:

1.17.1.1. Residential

1.17.1.2. Education

1.17.1.3. Clinical Medical

1.17.2.

1.17.3.

The Contractor's multidisciplinary team at the program must prioritize
communication with the child and family and the team members
external to the résidential treatment program.

The Contractor shall maintain clear communication. with all team
members across all disciplines.

1.18. Treatment Settings

- 1.18.1.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03

B-1.0

The Contractor shall provide treatment settings that are:

1.18.1.1.  Nurturing.

1.18.1.2. Family-friendly.

1.18.1.3. Provide for normalcy.

1.18.1.4. Approximate community-based settings in as many ways

as possible. o
[
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1.18.2.

- 1.19. Targeted
1.19.1.

1.19.2.

1. 181 5. Safe.

1.18.1.6. Predictable and consistent across education, re5|dent|al
and clinical services. :

The Contractor shall provide services at the location(s) approved by

the Department unless a plan for an alternative location and

transition plan has been approved.

and Active Treatment _

The Contractor shall prioritize treatment goals based on the CAT, the

Child and Family team, and the expertise of the clinical program.

The Contractor's residential treatment multidisciplinary team and the

Child and Family Team shall complete a treatment plan for each .

individual following. the completion of a psychosocial assessment,

which shall include:

1.19.2.1. Goals and objectives that are based on the CAT report,
- recommended by the multidisciplinary team, and child
and family team and that are most important for the
individual to achieve successful discharge and transition.
to their family, home and community; .

1.19.2.2. Actionable needs identified in the CAT final report and

. CANS which shall be addressed upon admission and

prioritized throughout the course of treatment; and

1.19.2.3. Integrated program of therapies, activities, and _.

1.19.3.

1.19.4,

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03
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experiences designed to meet the treatment goals.
The Contractor shall work in partnership with the child’s sending and
receiving. (if applicable} school district to assure the individual's
education needs are met and there are no gaps .in ‘educational
services '
As determined by the treatment plan, the' Contractor shall provide
targeted and active treatment seven (7) days per week. Treatment
may include as follows but is not limited to:
1.19.4.1. Twenty-four (24) services,
1.19.4.2. Direct care, supervision, positive behavior management,
"and supportive services for daily living and safety,
1.19.4.3. Family engagement,
1.19.4.4. Consultation with other professionals, including case
managers, primary care professionals, community-based
mental health providers, school staff, or other support

planners as often as needed, ' [ "F
Dover Children's Home Contractor Initials
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1.19.4.5. Coordination of education services, and/or
1.19.4.6. Additional services based on.the Level of Care identified -
and the program model
1.19.5. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services which
" include consideration for:
1.19:5.1. A carefully designed residential environment of care that
' ' promotes trauma informed care and youth driven’
services.
1.19.5.2. The age and developmental leve! of the population..
1.19.5.3. Young adults who are empowered to safely participate in
treatment decisions. ~
' .1.19.5.4. Specific needs of DCYF-involved children, noting the
trauma caused by neglect, abuse and removal, and/or
involvement with the juvenile justice system. .
1.20. Trauma Informed Care _ , ‘

1.20.1.  The Contractor shall understand, recognize, and appropriately

) respond to' trauma in administering treatment and services by
utilizing the mode! identified in Section 2 to provide trauma informed
care that supports staff and caregivers with the skills to aid and
engage individuals

'1.20.2. The contractor’s trauma model must adhere to the Department's

: . Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 6 key principles of
a trauma informed approach:
1.20.2.1, Safety
‘ 1.20.2.2. Trustworthiness and Transparency
. - . 1.20.2.3. Peer Support
1.20.2.4. Collaboration and Mutuality
©1.20.2.5. Empowerment, Voice and Choice
1.20.2.6. Cultural, Historical, and Gender Issues

1.20.3. The Contractor shall embed and sustain trauma awareness,
knowledge and skills into the Contractor's organizational culture,
practices and policies. '

1.20.4. The Contractor shall provide a trauma informed model that
demonstrates ‘sensitivit'y to individuals who's needs prevent them
from living with their families during the course of treatment.

1.20.5. The Contractor shall use this model and seek approval from the

Department is using a different model.
D8
[
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1.20.6.. The contractor shall submit documentation upon request of the

‘Department that demonstrates the implementation of the trauma
. model. .
1.21.- Evidence Based Practices :

- 1.21.1+  The Contractor shall ensure individuals receive the highest quality of
care and the best possible treatment outcomes by using evidence-
based practices to treat and manage the individual's mental health
needs, which may include, but not limited to:
1.21.1.1. . Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy,

~1.21.1.2. . Cognitive Behavior Therapy
1.21.1.3. Dialectic Behavior Therapy
1.21.1.4. Motivational Interviewing
- 1.21.2. The Contractor shall ensure clinical practices are drawn from
. ' systematic, empirical studies that draw on chservation or experiment -
and rigorous data analyses that are adequate to rest stated
hypotheses justify conclusions, and/or randomized control trials.

1.21.3. -The Contractor shall explore and implement practices that are

~adaptive, flexible, and address the needs of the population in a
targeted way.

1.21.4. Contractors shall provide notice to the Department when they are

" implementing a new Evidence Based Practice.
- 1.22. Clinical and Medical Standards

1.22.1. The Contractor shall provide clinical and medlcal serwces which

N align with accreditation and the level of care requirements.

1.22.2. The Contractor shall employ clinical professionals that ensure
effective treatment outcomes.

1.22.3. The Contractor shall provide clinical treatment services in a
frequency to quickly stabilize the individual's symptoms and to meet
each individual's clinical needs. ”

1.22.4. The Contractor shall explore new or promising clinical and

' evidenced-based models over time. :

1.22.5. = The Contractor shall have personnel trained in CANS and those
perscnnel shall conduct the follow-up CANS when other appropriate
entities such as the CME have not conducted the CANS.

1.22.6. The contractor shall assure that treatment is clear across the

program and clear to the multidi_sciplinary team.
| DS
3
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1.23.1. The Contractor shall provide aftercare for Levels 2, 3, and 4 Unless
that program qualifies as CBAT or ICBAT.

1.23.2. The Contractor shall coordinate and work with the Department's CME

"Contractors to provide six (6) months of aftercare services for an’
individual who is being discharged from the residential treatment and
transitioned to their home and community. The Contractor shall work

"with the CME and provide aftercare services which may include but
are not limited to the following activities:

1.23.21. Consultatlon with both the family, service providers and
CME.

1.23.2.2. Attendance at any child and famlly team meetings which
can be in person or virtually.

1.23.2.3.- Phone calls with the family as needed.

1.23.3. The Contractor shall make referrals to the Departments CME
Contractors for any individual who is not involved in DCYF and who is
being discharged from the residential treatment and transitioned their
home and community. The Contractor shall work with the
Department's CME Contractor or other aftercare services providing
aftercare services with the goal of reducing recidivism and reentry into
the residential treatment and other levels of resndentlal treatment

1.24. Medication Procedures :

'1.24:1.. The Contractor shall |mplement medication procedures in accordance

,’ with applicable federal laws, and.rules.

1.25. Policies and Procedures ,
- 1.25.1. The Contractor shall develop and |mplement written pohcues and
procedures governlng all aspects of its operatlon and services
provided mcludmg but not limited to; |
1.25.11.  Those required in 1.8.2 and 1.8.3.
1.25.1.2.  Wiritten policies and procedures to include a Code of
Ethics, which addresses the Contractor and all staff, as
well as a mechanism for reporting unethical conduct;
1.25.1.3.  Awritten policy and procedures mandating zero tolerance
toward all forms of sexual abuse and sexual harassment
~and outlining the Contractor's approach to preventmg
detecting, and responding to such conduct;
1.25.1.4. A staffing plan that provides for adequate levels of staffing

to protect residents against sexual abuse;
oo . DS
[
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1.25.1.5. A written policy ensuring an administrative or criminal
" investigation is completed for all allegatlons of sexual
abuse and sexual harassment;
1.25.1.6.  Progressive staff discipline, Ieading to administrative
: discharge; : ’ .
1.25.1.7. Reporting and appealing staff grievances; .
1.25.1.8. Reporting employee injuries
1.25.1.9. Client rights, grievance and appeals policies and
procedures;
-1.25.1.10. Policies and procedure if the program conducts urine
specimen collection., as applicable, that:

1 .25.1.10.1. Ensures that the collection is conducted ina
manner which preserves client privacy as
much as possible and is accordance ‘with
New Hampshlre Administrative Rules; and

1.25.1.10.2. Policies and procedures intended .to
minimize falsification, incfuding, but not
limited to:
1.25.1.10.2.1. Temperature testing; and
1.25.1.10.2.2. Observations by same-sex
' staff members: '

1.25.1.11. Procedures for the protection of individual's records that
govern use of records, storage, removal, conditions for
release of information and compliance with 42 CFR, Part

2 and the Health tnsurance Portability and Accountability

Act (HIPAA): and '

1.25.1.12. Procedures related to'quali_ty assurance and quality
, improvement. '

1.25.2. The Contractor shall have pohcues and procedures to |mplement a
comprehensive client record system, in either paper or electronic form,
or both, that communicates information within the client record of each
client served in a manner that is:
1.25.2.1. .Organized
1.25.2.2. Easy to read and understand,
1.25.2.3. Complete containing all the parts and
1.25.2.4. Up -to-date,

6/22/2021
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1.25.3. The Contractor shall have policies and procedures regarding
collections of client fees, collections from private or public insurance,
: and collections from other payers responsible for the client's finances.
1.25.4. The Contractor shall develop, define and implement processes and
procedures for denial of service. :
1.25.5. The Contractor shall be responsible for providing the- followrng to any
" client or the referral who is denied services:
1.25.5.1. Informing the client of the reason for denial,
1.25.5.2.  Assisting the client in identifying or accessmg appropriate
available treatment;
- 1.25.5.3. Maintaining a detailed record of the information or
assistance provided. ‘
1.25.6. The Contractor shall establish policies and procedures establishing,
maintaining, and storing, in a secure and confidential manner, current
personnel files for staff, contracted staff, volunteers or student interns.
The Contractor shall ensure personnel files are maintained in
accordance with personnel requwements
1.26. Residential Treatment Services Start up and Implementation for Tier 3
and Tier 4 Programs
1.26.1. The Contractor shall part|0|pate in a kick-off meeting with the
Department within thirty (30) calendar days of this Agreement's
 Effective Date to review contract timelines, scope, and deliverables.
1.26.2. The Contractor shall participate in bi-weekly (every other week)
telephone calls with the Department to review the status of the
development and implementation for the residential treatment, for at
least the first six (6) months of the Agreement. The Contractor shall:
1.26.2.1.  Provide a written bi-weekly progress report in advance of
the telephone call that summarizes:
1.26.2.1.1. Key work performed,;
1.26.2.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues
and problems and provides a solution or
mitigation strategy for each. ‘
1.26.2.1.3. Scheduled work for the upcoming week.
1.26.2.2. Provide a report summarizing the results of the status
‘ telephone call. :
1.26.3. The Contractor shall participate in implementation and operational site
visits and review of individual’s files on a schedule provided by the

@’i
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Department. All Agreement deliverables, programs, and activities shall -
be subject to review during this time. The Contractor shall:
1.26.3.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for
~ monitoring of Agreement compliance requirements.
1.26.3.2. Ensure the Department is provided with access: that
includes but is not limited to:
1.26.3.2.1. Data.
1.26.3.2.2.  Financial records.
1.26.3.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor work
sites/locations/work spaces and associated
facilities. ‘ .
1.26.3.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor work
sites/locations/work spaces and associated
- facilities. _ : _
1.26.3.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Contractor
principals and staff.
1.26.3.2.6. Individual files.

2. Residential Treatment Levels of Care

2.1. The Contractor ‘shall provide the residential treatment level(s) of care-as
~ defined in this Section 2. : : '

2.2. The Contractor shall have or obtain certification for residential treatment
levels of care by the Department within six (6) months of the Agreement’s
effective date and maintain said certification and re-apply for certification
annually, in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 6350
Certification for Payment Standards for Residential Treatment Programs.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide up to the number of beds at the idehtifie_-d
location for each of the residential treatment levels Qf care outlined in the
table in Section 2.3.2.

2.3.1. Inthe event that the Contractor changes their physical location where-
the residential treatment services are provided, the Contractor shall
notify the Department within 30 days prior to the move and provide a
transition plan.

2.3.2 Residential Treatment Levels of Care and Number of Contracted Beds
Vendors Location: ‘ Maximum Number |
Level of Care Name of the City/Town and . of Contracted Beds Shared Beds
: Program_ State Ds
Reserved ¢
- . —
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Level of Care 1 "~ | PILOT House | Dover, NH 4 N/A
Supportive, Community | Independent ) -
Level Treatment: Living
Independent Living,
Supervised Living (1B)
Level of Care 2, Dover Dover, NH 12 N/A
Intermediate Treatment | Children's - .

Home - Level

2.
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved

2.4, Reserved
2.5. Level of Care 1 Supportlve Commumty Level Treatment Independent
Living, Supervnsed ‘Living (1B) -

2.5.1.

252,

RFP-2021-0BH-12-RESID-03
B-1.0

The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services Level of

Care 1, Supportive - Community Level of Treatment (1B),

Independent Living, supervised living in a community based out of

home treatment setting designed for individuals who manifest mild -

behavioral and emotional challenges and who are capable of

engaging in community-based activities to:

The goal of this setting is to provide the maximum amount of

community integration and Independent Living to an individual with

minimal supports The Contractor shall provide services to the youths

or young adults at this level of care for approximately nine (9) to

twelve' (12) months or until transition to adulthood that includes, but

not limited to: '

2.5.2.1. Minimal supports in the community

2.52.2. Case Management

2.5.2.3. Supervision

2.5.2.4. Vocational Training

2.5.2.5. Medication Monitoring, as clinically indicated

2.5.2.6. Crisis Intervention

Staffing ' i

2.5.3.1. The Contractor shall comply with the staffing requirements
in New Hampshire Administrative Rule Part He-C-6250
Cernf cation for Payment Standards for Res@ual

* Dover Chlldren s Home Contractor Initials
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Treatment Programs and Part He-C 6420 Medicaid
Covered Services.

2.5.3.2. Unless otherwise approved by a waiver by the Department
for the staffing ratios shown in Section 3, the Contractor
shall maintain the required staffing ratios as follows:
2.53.2.1. Awake Hours 1:6 resident to staff ratio.
2.5.3.2.2. Awake Overnight: 1:12 for youth 16 or older;

: - for 18 and older, the Contractor may either
have an asléep or awake overnight, which
may be supplemented with technology from
another unit on property.

2.5.3.23. Clinical: 1:.10 when clinical services are
delivered onsite.
2.5.3.2.4. Family Worker: 1:8, who will collaborate with
, Care Management Entity.
2.5.3.2.5. Medical Care: Nursing-available for
consultation. If  Qualified  Residential
Treatment Program (QRTP) Clinical and .
Nursing shall be available 24/7, based on
‘ _ : client needs.
2.5.4. Supported Visits o
2.5.41. Supported visitation are not required of this program lével. -
- 2542 The Contractor. may provide facilitated face-to-face
supported visitation to the individual and their family at the
Contractor's setting. _ _
2.5.4.3. The Contractor'may provide family visits in appropriate
space(s), which is safe, feels welcoming, inviting, and
natural, and creates a place of comfort and connectedniess
for all ages being served in the setting.

~

2.5.5. Educational Services : ‘

2.5.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure the individual is connected to
the most appropriate educational services or transitional
services as determined by their treatmient team and
sending school district, when applicable.

2.5.5.2. The Contractor shali connected the individual to the .
individual's local community school or to the individual's
school in their sending district when appropriate.

2.553. The Contractor shall connect the individual to higher
education for those who have graduated high scTior

e

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 ‘ Dover Children's Home Contractor Initials

B-1.0 Page 22 of 41 ) Cate 6/22/2021



DaocuSign Envelope ID: B743458F-D093-497A-8949-1404B1615CDA

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Servuces for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

supporting individuals. pursing higher education or
independent living with but not limited to:

- 2.5.5.3.1. Transitional Services.

2.55.3.2. Vocational Services.

. 2.5.5.3.3. Formal Education.

2.5.5.3.4. 'Training Programs.
2.553.5. Independent Living Skills.

2.5.6. Transporfation

2.56.1.

256.2.

2.56.3.

2.564.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03
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The Contractor shall ensure individuals have
transportation services to and from services and
appointments for the foilowing:

2.56.1.1. Court Hearings.

2.5.6.1.2. Medical/dental/behavioral (not provided by the
Department’s contracted Medicaid Managed
Care organization (MCO) or if not appropriate

' to be provided by the MCO). .
2.5.6.1.3. School transportation (for what is not provided
_ by an individual education pian (IEP)).

2.5.6.1.4. Recreation (clubs, sports, work). :

The Contractor shall coordinate or provide such

transportation as follows, including but not limited to:

2.5.6.2.1. Working with parents or guardians to have the -
parent .or guardian- provide transportation for
their child, youth or young adult, when it is safe
and appropriate for a parent or guardian to
provide such transportation. .

2.5.6.2.2.- Working with any of the Department's

' applicable  Medicaid Managed  Care

Contractors for transportation to Medicaid
appointments.

2.5.6.2.3. Purchasing public transportation passes.

2.5.6.2.4. Paying for.cab fare.

2.56.25 Use of Contractor-owned vehicles in
accordance with Section 2.3.3 below.

The Contractor shall encourage the individual to utilize

parent/caregiver and/or public transit when available in

order to meet the transportation expectations in 2.4.6.1.

In the event the Contractor uses a Contractor-owned

vehlcle( ), the Contractor shall:
DS
@
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2.5.6.4.1. Comply with all applicable Federal and State
' Department of Transportation and Department
of Safety regulations.
2.56.4.2. Ensure that all vehicles are registered
pursuant to New Hampshire Administrative
Rule Saf-C 500 and inspected in accordance
with New Hampshire Administrative Rule Saf-
C 3200, and are in good working order.
2.5.6.4.3. Ensure all drivers are licensed in accordance
' with New Hampshire Administrative Rules,
Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing, and Saf-C 1800
Commercial drivers licensing, as applicable.
2.5.6.4.4. Ensure vehicle insurance coverage shall be in
amounts that are in keeping with industry
standards and that are acceptable to the
Contractor and the Department, the minimum
amounts of which shall be not less than
$500,000 for automobile liability- to include.
bodily injury and property damage to one
person for any one accident, and $750,000,
for bodily injury and property damage to two or
more persons for any one accident, including
- coverage for all owned, hired, or non-owned
vehicles, as applicable. '

 2.6. Level of Care 2, Intermediate Treatment

2.6.1. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services Level of
Care 2, Intermediate Treatment designed for individuals who have
been adjudicated, abused or neglected, delinquent and/or in need of
behavioral health services with the goal of providing a combination
of: -

2.6.1.1. Residential treatment and communlty based services

based on the individual's unique needs. :
2.6.1.2. Professionals, onside and access to professionals in the -
' community to coordinate the provisions of the treatment
plan.

2.6.2. The Contractor shall provide services to children, youths and young
adults at this level of care twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7)
days a week, in a structured, therapeutic milieu” environment that
includes but is not limited to:

DS
2.6.2.1. Safe environment l ot
RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 ’ Dover Children's Home Contractor Initials
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2.6.2.2. Supervision dependent on the need of the individual and
- program model. ~
2.6.2.3. Community Supports
2.6.2.4. Access to public school education or alternative approved
educational setting '
2.6.2.5. Specialized social services
2.6.2.6. Behavior management,
2.6.2.7. Recreation
2.6.2.8. Clinical Services
2.6.2.9. Family Services
2.6.2.10. Vocational Training
2.6.2.11. Medication Monitoring, as clinically indicated
2.6.2.12. Crisis Intervention
2.6.3. Staffing . : :
26.3.1. The Contractor shall comply with the staffing requirements
' in New Hampshire Administrative Rule Part He-C 6350
Certification for Payment Standards for Residential
Treatment Programs and Part He-C 6420 Medicaid
I Covered Services.
2.6.3.2. Unless otherwise approved by a waiver by the Department
" for the staffing ratios shown in Section 3, the’ Contractor
shall maintain the required staffing ratios as follows:
2.6.3.2.1. Direct Care Staff/Milieu
2.6.3.2.1.1.  Milieu: Day staff ratio is 1:4, and
more intensive ratios are
allowable based on program
population or program needs.
2.6.3.2.1.2. Awake overnight: 1:8 and "a
-minimum of two staff available
for programs and position may
float on campus or W|th|n
. buildings. :
2.6.3.2.1.3. Clinical Services: Access 24/7,
1:10 when delivered onsite and
some clinical services may be
provided off site for individual
and family therapy with
' community providers. )
2.6.3.2.1.4. Family Worker: Case Manager

/ | _ ,1:8 E'E
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2.6.4.

2.6.5.
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2.6.3.2.1.5. Alower ratio must be used if the
clinician is fulfilling multiple
roles i.e. family worker as well
as primary clinician.
2.6.3.21.6. Have resources to allow. for all
children to access clinical within
the program but also allow for
access to community if
- appropriate.
2.6.3.2.2. Medical Care : : '
2.6.3.2.2.1. Clinical and Nursing: available
' ~ 24/7 and based on client needs.
2.6.3.2.2.2. Ensure access to
prescriber/psychiatric services,
psychiatry either when needed
through Community or. if
needed through
staffing/contracting.
2.6.3.3. The Contractor shall work with the Department to assure
that they are meeting the requirements of QRTP and
Family First Prevention Services Act (FFSPA) or
accreditation. Should it be determined that the level of
nursing or clinical does not meet the requirement of
FFSPA or accreditation the Contractor shall work with the
Department to meet the requirements. '

Supported Visits :

2.6.4.1.  The Contractor may provide facilitated face-to-face
supported visitation to the individual and their family at the
Contractor's residential treatment setting. '

2.6.42. The Contractor may provide supported visits in
appropriate space(s), which is safe, feels welcoming,
inviting, and natural, and creates a place of comfort and
connectedness for all ages being served in the residential
treatment setting. ‘

Educational Services
2.6.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure the individual is connected to
' the most appropriate educational services or transitional
services as determined by their treatment tc_aam Dasnd

sending school district, when applicable. l e
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26.5.2. The Contractor shaII connect the individual to the
individual’s local community school or to the individual's
school in their sending district when appropriate.

2.6.5.3. The Contractor may provide onsite or subcontract with
Department approval a nonpublic and special educational
program and/or an approved online educational curriculum
approved by the State of New Hampshire Department of
Education

2.6.5.4. The Contractor shall connect the individual to higher

~ education for those who have graduated high- school or
supporting individuals pursing higher education’ or
indépendent living with the following but not limited to:

2.6.5.4.1. Transitional Services.
2.6.5.4.2. Vocational Services.
. 2.6.5.4.3. Formal Education.
2.6.5.4.4. Training Programs.
2.6.5.4.5. Independent Living Skills.
26.5.5. The Contractor shall ensure the individual continues

relationships with other important individuals and peers,
and remains connected to their home, commumty and
_ school.
2.6.5.6. The Contractor shall work with the individual's sending
school and receiving district to ensure their educational
needs are met. When doing so, the Contractor shall obtain
Release of Information S|gned by ‘the mdnwdual or’
. individual's parent or guardian.
2.6.5.7. The Contractor -shall retain client student records in
accordance with New Hampshire regulatlons
2.6.5.8. Upon client discharge from residential treatment servrces '
' the” Contractor shall provide copies of the individual's
records of education and progress to the individual's
“sending school. '

Transportation

26.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals have
' transportation services to and from services and

appointments for the following:
2.6.6.1.1. Court Hearings. o8
&
Dover Children's Home Contractor Inilia!s
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2.6.6.1.2. Medical/dental/behavioral (not provided by the
Department's contracted Medicaid Managed
Care organization (MCO) or if not appropnate
- to be provided by the MCO).

2.6.6.1.3. School transportation (for what is not provided

by an individual education plan (IEP)).

’ -2.6.6.1.4. Recreation (clubs, sports, work).
2.6.6.2. The Contractor shall coordinate or provide such
' transportation as follows, including but not limited to:

2.6.6.2.1. Working with parents or guardians to have the
parent or guardian provide transportation for
their child, youth or young adult, when it is safe
and appropriate for a parent or guardian to -
" provide such transportation.
2.6.6.2.2. Working with- any of the Department’s
applicable  Medicaid Managed  Care
Contractors for transportation ‘to Medicaid
appointments. ,_
2.6.6.23. Use of Contractor-owned vehicles in
accordance with Section 2.3.3 below. L
2.6.6:3. In the event the Contractor uses a Contractor owned

vehicle(s), the Contractor shall:

2.6.6.3.1. Comply with all applicable Federai and State
Department of Transportation and Department

: of Safety regulations.

2.6.6.3.2. Ensure that all _ vehicles are registered
pursuant to New Hampshire Administrative
Rule Saf-C 500 and inspected in accordance
with New Hampshire Administrative Rule Saf-
C 3200, and are in good working order.

2.6.6.3.3. Ensure all drivers are licensed in accordance
with New Hampshire Administrative Rules,
Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing, and Saf-C 1800
Commercial drivers licensing, as applicable. -

2.6.6.3.4. Ensure vehicle insurance coverage shall be in
amounts that are in keeping with industry
standards and that are acceptable to the
Contractor and the Department, the minimum
amounts of which shall be not less than
$500,000 for automobile liability to include
bodily injury "and property damage to one
person for any one accident, and $750,000,

for bodily injury and property damage to@?\
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2.7.
2.8.
. 2.9.

2.10.
2.11.
2.12.

more persons for any one accident, including
coverage for all owned, hired, or non-owned
‘ vehicles, as applicable.
Reserved

Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved

Reserved

3. Specific Residential Treatment Program Requirements

3.1.

3.2.
3.3.

The Contractor shall provide the- following .s;aﬁiﬁg model(s) and/or
specialty services for each of their defined levels of care.

3.1.1. Should the Contractor have variations in their personnel and/or in
their specialty care, if any, in this Section 3, the ‘Contractor shall-
submit a plan in writing to the Department to come into compliance
or an alternative plan for Department for approval to meet the intent
of the positions, which were negotiated. The Department will prowde
approval in writing.

Reserved

L.evel of Care 1 Supportive, Corﬁmunity Level Treatment: Indepénde[‘it
Living, Supervnsed Living (1B) '

3.3.1. Pllot House Independent L|V|nq

3.3.1.1. The Contractor shall maintain the mamtaln the followmg
staffing Ratios for thls level of care as outllned in the table .
below:
Section 2 Ratio
Staffing _ Department
. Requirements Approved
Title Position Variation

.Direct Care 1st shift .

Milieu 1:6

Not Allocated

Direct Care 2nd shift

Milieu 1:6

Not Allocated

‘| Direct Care Overnight

Awake overnight:
1:12 for youth 16
or older; for 18
and older may
either asleep or
awake overnight

1:4 Shared with
L2

08

¥
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Clinical Ratio 1:4 as necessary
shared with L2
. 1:10 Program

Family Worker 1:4 Shared with

1:8 L2
Family Therapist Not required Not allocated
Transportation . Not Required Not Allocated
Case Manager Not required Not Allocated
Board certified behavioral ' Not Allocated
analyst (BCBA) Not required
Nursing Staff If QRTP Clinical Not Allocated

and Nursing 24/7 '

available, based -

on client ‘

. needs
Psychiatrist Not required Subcontractor
Psychologist Not required | Not Allocated -
Medical Doctor, APRN - Not required Not Allocated
Pilot House Coordinator Not required 1 (FT)
Pilot House Case Manager Not required 1{PT)
' : * Not required :

indicates that a

specific '

position/persennel

was not required

or as a ratio

3.3.1.2. The Contractor shall at a minimum meet licensing
requirements, which may be share with the Level 2
program. The Contractor shall provide on-site staffing for
individuals ages 18+ Mondays through Fridays, from
10AM to 10PM. The Contractor shall assure 24/7
supervision for individuals aged 16-17, as approved by the
Department which also may be shared with the Level 2
program. |

3.4. Level of Care 2, Intermediate Treatment -

3.4.1. Dover Children's Home _ .
3.4.1.1. The Contractor shall maintain the maintain the following
-staffing Ratios for this level of care as outlined in the table

below:
Section 2 Ratio
Staffing Department
Requirements Approyed"
Title Position 3 “Variatiof T
\—
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Direct Care 1st shift Milieu 1:4 1:3
Direct Care 2nd shift Milieu 1:4 1.3
Direct Care Overnight Awake overnight: | No Variation
: 1:8; minimum :
2 staff available
for programs _
Clinical Ratio 1:10 "No Variation
Family Worker 18 No Variation

Family Therapist

Not required

Not allocated

Transportation 1:3 (all étaff,
Not Required Not allocated)

Case Manager See Family Not allocated
Worker <

Board certified behavioral

Not required -

Not allocated

analyst (BCBA)
Nursing Staff Medical Care: 1:12
Clinical and Subcontracted
Nursing
24/Tavailable,
based on client
needs
Psychiatrist . 1:12
Not required Subcontracted
Psychologist Not required Not allocated

Medical Doctor, APRN

Not required

Not allocated

Clinical Director

Not required

1:4

* Not required
indicates that a
specific
position/personnel
was not required
or as a ratio

3.4.1.2. Weekend staffing is as needed for Level 2, Intermediate

Treatment

Reserved
Reserved

Reserved
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3.8. Reserved
3.9. Reserved
3.10. Reserved

4. Exhibifs Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule} (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit |, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties. -

4.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Reporting Requirements

5.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to ensure compliance with the
federal requirements, the goals of the System of Care, and successful
delivery of the scope of work by reporting, at a minimum, on the data in Table.
A Key Output and Process Data as follows: -

Table A

-Kéy Output and Process Data

The data below shall be for all individuals who are connected to, referred by or funded by
DHHS unless otherwise requested and identified by DHHS.

Number of children currently placed in the program

Percent of contracted beds currently used

Turnover information (e.g., total number of staff, how many left, and reason why)

Number of days the program does not meet contractually required staffing ratios

Number of accepted referrals/new admissions (and location prior to admission)

e
o
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Number of rejected referrals

Number of’children discharged {and the reason for discharge)

Demographic ihformation for each child (e.g.,' age, gender/sex, DCYF involvement,
race/ethnicity, primary language preference, identification with sex not assigned ‘on birth
certification, sexual orientation)

Key dates per child: referral, acceptance, admission, discharge

Number of family planning team treatment meetings {(and caregiver, youth attendance)

Number of treatment meetings led by youth

Number of contacts with family/caregivers.

Percent cf children placed outside of their school district

CANS score information per child (from CANS system report - e.g., score #-at referral, at
discharge)

Number of restraints

Number of seclusions

Discharge locations

Whether or not the CME was involved

" 5.2. The contractor shall provide any interpretation, justiﬁcation or analysis of the
data provided in the report referenced in 4.1

5.3. The Contractor shall provide reports monthly with any change in
programming, clinical treatment, any changes in evidenced base practices or
staffing ratios that can impact the quality of services delivered and individual
and staffing safety.

5.4. The Contractor shall submit data in accordance with RSA 126-U which
includes but is not limited to

5.4.1. Incidents of RSA 126-U:10
5.4.2. New Hampshire Programs Monthly totals of all children during

residential time, regardless of referral source C
RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 ) Cover Children's Home Contractor Initials
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5.4.3.
2.4.4.

To_tal‘ number of restraints

Total number of seclusions

5.5. The Contractor shall submit data and reports based on the requesti of the
Department in the. manner, format and frequency requested by the
Department which shall include but is not limited to:

556.1..

Incident reports of
551.1. Restraint
5.5.1.2. Seclusion

55.1.3. Serious injury both including ‘and not mcludmg restraint
and seclusion

5.5.1.4. Suicide attempt

5.6. The Contractor shall provide data monthly and work with the data team to
provide any clarlty or correction of the material.

5.7. The Department reserves the right to establish additional data reporting and
deliverable reqwrements throughout the duration of the Agreement.

6. Performance Measures

'6.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance_"and evaluate progrém
results based on the key performance metrics in Table B as follows:

Table B
Category Key performance metrics:.
s % of referrals that receive a response to the referral source within 24 hours [e.g.,
email or phone call on availability and next steps]
Referral L -
s Median time from referral o acceptance |
¢ Median time from referral 1o admission
. o % of treatment meetings where youth participates
Family & °- g y p , P
youth s % of treatment meetings where caregiver participates
engagement * , . . . .
£38 e Median # of contacts with family/caregivers per month per child
C
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Quality of

treatment

% of children with improved CANS scores afier 3 and 6 months (based on CANS
system report which DHHS will access)

Median # of restraint/seclusion incidents per child and % of chitdren with any
restraint/seclusion during treatment stay

discharge

Transition &

Median length of stay: days from admission to discharge to less restrictive setting

% children dischatged to home-based setting — overall and within 30, 60, 90, 180,
and 365 days :

% of children who remain in either a lower-treatment setting OR home-based
setting after 6 and. 12 months (based on internal data which DHHS will access
through CME and DCYF svsiem) '

% of children receiving referral to after-care services (e.g., Residential treatment
oversight, Fast Forward) before discharge

% of DCYF-involved children who have achieved their permanency goal at 12
months after discharge (hased on internal DCYF data which DHHS will access)

6.2. Performance lmptovement

6.2.1. ' The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance and
' . improvement activities with the Department and other partners
and stakeholders to ensure that continuous performance and
program improvement contributes in a positive way to the lives of
individuals adults and their families by focusmg on system level
‘outcomes such as: :
6.2.1.1. Reduced use of psychiatric and other residential
treatment. : ‘
6.2.1.2. Reduced use of juvenile corrections and other out of
‘ home placements.
6.2.1.3. - Reduced use of emergency departments and other
physical health services.
6.2.1.4. Reduced use of out of district placement for school.
6.2.1.5. Increased school attendance and attainment.
6.2.1.6. Increased employment for caregivers.
Ds‘
| £
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"The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance and

performance improveme'nt activities requested by the
Department, including but not limited to:

6.2.2.1.

6.2.2.2.

6.2.2.3.

6.2.2.4.
6.2.2.5.

6.2.2.6.

6.2.2.7.

6.2.2.8.

6.2.2.9.

6.2.2.10.
6.2.2.11.

- Submitting reports at a frequency defined by the

Department on Agreement compliance reports.

Providing to the Department narrative reports that
express non-child specific aggregate .successes in
the program, programmatic changes made and why,
and barriers to program success, upon request and

frequency determined by the Department.

Attending  monthly meetings focused  on
performance.

Adjusting key performance metrics. . -

Participating in quality assurance reviews and
technical assistance site visits-on alternating years.

Participating in electronic and in-person review of
case files to gain qualitative insight into treatmentand
program quality and compliance. '

Participating in inspections of any of the following:

6.2.2.7.1. The facility premises.
6.2.2.7.2.  Programs and services provided.
6.2.2.7.3. Records maintained by the Contractor.

Participating in training and technical assistance
activities as directed by the Department.

Complying with fidelity measures or. processes
required for evidence-based practices or models
being utilized.

Adjusting program delivery.

Focusing on a range of performance’ topics thai
include but are not limited to:

6.2.2.11.1. Rapid acceptance of referrals and
quick engagement with individuals and

their families, as this is criticaP®to
£
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ensuring children can be stabilized
and begin to have their needs
addressed as quickly as possible.
6.2.2.11.2. Reduced use of restraints/seclusion to
make progress toward the goal of
eliminating the practice. :
6.2.2.11.3.  Improving long-term program
cutcomes by regularly monitoring |
~ outcome goals like improving CANS
scores (i.e., increase in strengths,
decrease in needs) and successful
discharge (‘i.e., whether child remains
. in a home-based setting after),
6.2.2.11.4. Reducing lengths of stay to ensure.
that treatment is being provided
briefly, episodically, and appropriately
at the level needed to achieve
treatment goals so children can
quickly return to home and community
settings.
6.2.2.11.5. Reducing staff turnover by retaining '
staff, while creating space for internal
advancemient, in providing consistent,
high-quality services.

6.2.3. . The Contractor shall implement quality assurance activities to
ensure fidelity towards the evidence-based practices and trauma
- informed model. '

6.2.4. Notwithstanding paragraphs 8 and 9 of the General Provisions of
this Agreement, upon identification of deficiencies in duality
Assurance, the Contractor shall, within thirty (30) days from the

" date the Contractor is notified of the final findings, provide a
corrective action plan that includes:

6.2.4.1. Actions to be taken to correct each deficiency;

6.2.4.2. Actions to be taken to prevent the redccurrence of
each deficiency; -

6.2.4.3. A time line for implementing the actions above,

6.2.4.4. A monitoring plan to ensure the actions aboyewre -
effective; and ' e
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6.2.4.5. A plan for reporting to the Department on progress of
implementation and effectiveness.

6.2.5. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the
Department to enhance contract management, improve results,
and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful
outcomes.

6.2.6. The Contractor shall submit periodic reports, as stipulated

' between DHHS and Contractor, which include, but are not limited
to Data to support performance improvement activities, DHHS
will provide to Contractor a list of Data needed and the format of

. the Data.

6.2.7. The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor
agency shall provide financial information on the following: what
individuals are benefitting from Contractor’s services, how much
was spent per individual and what type of services are being
received by each individual.

6.2.8. The Départment reserves the right to establish data reporting

' and deliverable requirements throughout the duration of the
contract.

6.2.9. The Department reserves the right to request service plan and
other documentation to comply with federal requirements upon
request. '

6.2.10. The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor
agency shall provide financial information on the following: what
individuals are benefitting from Contractor’s services, how much
was spent per individual and what type of services are being
received by each individual.

7. Additional Terms
7.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

7.1.1. © The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so
as to achieve compliance therewith.

7.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services 0s
[
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7.2.1.  The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the
Agreement Effective Date, a détailed description of the
communication access and language assistance services to be
provided to ensure meaningful access to programs and/or
services to individuals with limited English proficiency; individuals
who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges

7. 3. Cred|ts and Copyright Ownership

7.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
N - services of the Agreement shall include the following statement,

“The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed
under an Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the
State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as
‘were available or required, e.g., the United States Departme_rit of
Health and Human Services.”

7.3.2. All materials produced- or pdrchased under the Agreement shall
have pnor approval from the Department before pnntlng,
productlon distribution or use.

7.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

7.3.3.1. . Brochures.

. 7.3.3.2, Resource directories.
7.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
7.3.3.4. Posters. ,
7.3.3.5. Repons.'

7.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under
the Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

7.3.5. - The Contractor shall ensure all educational and informational
materials are understandable, free of jargon, family friendly and
written appropriately for the audience when 'such materials are
used to educate and inform individuals and their families about the
residential treatment program, services, and treatment. @

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 Dover Children’'s Home Contractor Initials
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8. Records
8.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

8.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by
the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

8.1.2.  All records must be mamta:ned in accordance with accounting

procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect

“all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the

Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,

records, and original evidence of costs such- as purchase

requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,

inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,

payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each
recipient of services, which records shall include -all records -of
application and eligibility (including all forms required to determine
eligibility for each ‘such recipient), records regarding the provision
of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services. :

8.1.4. Medical records on each individual of services.

8.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder,
the Department, the United States Department of Health and Human
Services, and any of their designated representatives shall have access to
all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes
of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the
Department of the maximum number of units provided for.in the Agreement
and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all
the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the
terms of the Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this
Agreement and/or survive the termination of the Agreement} shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the
Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs
hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deq)tsj'ct

[
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the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to, recover such sums
from the Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.  Funds from the Foster Care Program, Title IV-E, Catalog of Fedéral
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.658, Federal Award ldentification
Number (FAIN) 2101NHFOST

1.2. Funds from Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, Catalog of
' Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.558, Federal -Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHTANF '

1.3. Funds from Adoption Assistance (CFDA) #93.659, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHADPT :

1.4. Funds from Medical Assistance Program (CFDA) #93.778, Federal
Award ldentification Number (FAIN) 2105NHSADM '

15. General funds. .

2. Depending on'the eligibility of the clienf, funding type is determined at the time
of payment. Possible account numbers to be utilized include the below.

2.1.  05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,
BUREAU OF CHILDRENS BEHVIORAL HEALTH, SYSTEM OF CARE,
CLASS 102 - CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES

2.2, 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD — FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 636 -

" TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT '

2.3, .05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
‘OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 639 -
TITLE IV-A/TANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT

2.4, 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DiV,
CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD — FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 643 -
STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT

2.5. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES DEPT
'OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES CLASS 646 —
TITLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT

2.6. 05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS OFC OF MEDICAID

Dover Children’s Home Exhibit ¢ ‘ Contractor Initials
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: B?d345éF-DOQ3-49?A-8949-140481615CDA

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services |
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health
EXHIBIT C

' SERVICES, OFC OIF MEDICAID SERVICES, MEDICAID CARE
MANAGEMENT, CLASS 535 - OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS

3.. For the purposes of this Agreement:

3.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a subrecipient, in
' accordance with 2 CFR 200.331. ’

4. Forthe purpose of this agreement, the start-up funds in the amount of $339,191
shall be.provided to the Contractor, for the expenses incurred to launch
services based on the start-up budgets specified in Ex C-1 and C-2 Start Up
Costs; the total of all such payments shall not exceed the specified start-up
budget total and shall not-exceed the total expenses actually incurred by the
Contractor for the start-up period. All DHHS payments to the Contractor for the
start-up period shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis.

4.1. In lieu of hard ‘copies, all invoices with supporting documentation may
: be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Serwces
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4.2." The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30)
days of receipt of each invoice and supporting documention for
authorized expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

. 4.3. The final invoice and supporting documention for authorized start-
up/expansion expenses shall be due to the Department no later than
forty (40) days after the program is operational/expanded.

5 The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services pro-vided to
individuals pursuant to this Agreement as follows:

5.1.  For Medicaid enrolled individuals, a daily rate will be awarded in the -
amount per client per day indicated in the table listed under section
5.1.1. This per diem rate will be set for the term of the contract. Rates
may be reviewed every two years to foIIow the State’'s biennium to
consider rate adjustments.

5.1.1.
Program - Pilot House . ,
Resudentlal for eligible youth per day $182.66
Program - Children’s Home
Residential for eligible youth per day ' $424.00

Ds
Dover Children's Home . Exhibit C Contractor Initials L

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03 Page 2 of 4 ) Dale 641842021



DocuSign Envelope 10: B743458F-D093-497A-8948-1404B1615CDA

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human'Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXRHIBIT C

5.1.2. Billings shall occur on at least on a monthly basis and shall follow
a process determined by the Department. :

5.2. For Managed Care Organization enrolled individuals the Contractor
shall be reimbursed pursuant to the Contractor's agreement with the,
applicable Managed Care Organization for such services.

5.3. Forindividuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the
services they receive, the Contractor will directly bill the other insurance
Or payors.

5.4. For individuals without sufficient health insurance or other coverage for
the services they receive which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek
reimbursement from an insurance or third-party payor, the Contractor
will directly bill the Department to access contract funds provided
through this Agreement. The.Contractor shall submit an invoice in a
form satisfactory to the Department with supporting‘documentation
including but not limited to the denial of claims. ' The Contractor shall
only be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for the medicaid
eligible services provided.

5.4.1. Inlieu of hard copies, all invoices with supporting documentation
may be ‘assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh. gov, or invoices may be mailed
to:

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5.4.2. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within
thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice and supporting
documention for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval
of the submitted invoice.

5.5, Maximum allotment for daily réte expenditure for Department funded
expenditures by fiscal year is as follows: '

5.5.1. Sub-total: $3,951,144.00
5.5.2. SFY 22:$1,317,048.00
5.5.3. SFY 23:$1,317,048.00
55.4. SFY 24:$1,317,048.00

6. Prior to éubmitting the first -invoice, the Contractor must obtain a Vendor
Number by registering with the-New Hampshire Department of Adminisjrative

9h

Dover Children's Home ) Exhibit C Contractor Initials .
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EXHIBIT C

. Serwces here (Vendor Resource Center | Procurement and Support Servnces
|.NH Dept. of Administrative Services).

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
‘Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approvat of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justlfled

‘8. Audits

8.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,00‘0 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company-and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit. ‘

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the: Contractor shall submit an
. ahnual financial audit performéd by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

8.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of -
the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department’s
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

8.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have n
disallowed because of such an exception. [bE
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Exhibit C-1 Budget for Start-up Costs

Start-up costs'anticipated for residential treatment programs

[

+ Basic informatlen

Dover Children's Home

)\gency Name j . [

Level 1

ip conis Bl :

. Line item

Amount requested

Personnei costs ) $

" Motes {if neadad)

Supervisors/managers

Frontline caseworkers

Coordination or administrative support
CQl, QA specialists and/or data analysts
Other personnel costs ’

Program facliities $

45,000.00

lL.ease
Maintence and utilities
Other facllity costs

45,000.00

Fenovations

Program materials and supplies - $

EBP or program model-specific materials
- Recruitment, hiring, en-boarding materials
Other program materials/supplies

Staff transportation $

Mileage
Gas

Other staff transportation

EBP or program model-specific expenses s

1,350.00

Program license or other fees
Program tralning (Inltial)
QOther EBP or. program model costs

1,350.00

RENEW and TBRI

Systems costs related to program $

424.00

Technology for data collection, reporting
Other systems

424.00

Rellas Learning Sysiem and Payroll & Personnel Platiorm

Consulting and sub-contracting . $

Consulting
Sub-conltracting

46,050.00

Equlpment- . $
Vehlicles :
Furniture
Technology Equipment
Cther Equipmeant

~27,000.00
15,000.00
-+ 4,050.00

Staff computers and program'computer

- Telecommunication . ] ] s

800.00

Phones/Walkie Talkies
Internet Service
Other Telecommunication

800.00

Client Provisions ' $

Food
Clothing/Hygiene
Other Client Provisions
All other start-up costs ' L $ -

Dover Children's Home

* RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-03
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Exhiblt C-2 Budget for Start-up Costs

Start-up costs anticipatad for restdential treaiment programs

. . Basic information :
Agency Name | Dovar Children's Home
tevel 2

:
+ Ling item Amount requested Notes (if needod)

Personnel costs ~ $ -
Supervisorsimanagers
Frontline caseworkers
Coordination or administralive support
CAQl, QA spexialists and/or data analysts
QOther personnel costs

Program facilitias $ 177.399.00
Lease . ' ’
Maintence and uillities .
Other facllity costs 177,399.00iRenovations/Addition

Program materials and supplies i $ . 3,500.00
EBP or program model-specific materials
Recrultment, hiring, on-boarding materials
Other program materials/supplies 3.500.00{Locked madication cabinet

Staff trensportation. . $ -
Mileage ’
Gas

Oither siaff transpertation -
EBP or program madel-specific expanses - $ . 7,350.00
Program license or other fees )
Program tralning (initial) 7.350.00 |RENEW and TBRI
Other EBP or program model costs
Systems costs related to program S 3,818.00
Technotogy for data collection, reporting . v
Other systems : 3,818.00|Renas Leaming System and Payroll & Personnel Platform
Consulting and sub-contracting $ . -
Consutting .
Sub-coniracting
Equipment $ 51,100.00
Vehicles '

Furniture . 45,000.00 . ‘
Technology Equipment 5,100.00|51aff computars and program computer, printors
Other Equipment
Telecommunication $ 2,400.00
Phones/Walkie Talkies 2,400.00
Internet Service : :
Other Telecommunication
Client Provisions -1 S ' .
Food
Clothing/Hygiene
Other Client Provisions
All other start-up costs $ ) -

G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.8.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CdNTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTQORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register {(pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that.is a State

" may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the centification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505 -

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongeing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;,
1.2.3. " Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

_ occurring in the workplace,

1.3. Makmg it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a cnmlnal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, wnthm ten calendar days after receiving notice under

"subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federagsagency

Exhibit O - Certificalion regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials :
Workplace Requirements 6/18/2021
CL/DHHS/ 10713 Page 1 of 2
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Exhibit O

-

has'designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the

. identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1.

Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

amended; or
1.6.2.

Requiring such employée to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,

. law enforceément, or other appropriate agency,
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
'1mp1ementatlon of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6,

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in

connection with the specific grant,

Place of Performance (street address, cit.y, county, state, zip codé) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

6/18/2021 .

Date

Vendor Name:

DocuSigned by:

Funse Touluey—(lidruss

gcTouhey—Chidress

Name: R€

Title: Executive Director

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free
Workplace Requirements
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' CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on-Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
us DEF’ARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

" Programs (indicate appllcable program covered)
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX
*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title |V

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or coaperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for_
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall cerlify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction

was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this

transaction imposed by Section 1352, Tille 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

DocuSigned by:

Kwu, ’DM (luidruss

“Touhey-Chidress

6/18/2021
Date

Trtle.
Executive Director

| | C
Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING' DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS ‘ .

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, -
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the follownng

_ Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR GERTIFICATION ) ‘ b

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary par’umpant is providing the
certlﬁcatton set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the cedtification required below will not necessarily.result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. |If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide. the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Departmént of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter.into this transaction: However, failure of the prospective primary
parhcupant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction. .

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
" when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective .
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies "
" available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become errcneous by reason of changed
circumstances. .

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended, mehguble " *"lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,”. person primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the-rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76 See the
attached definitions. '

’ i " o

*w »a

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order fo render-in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and[ os

-
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10, Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered fransaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default. .

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certlf es to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals: .

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;,

11.2. have not within a three-year pericd preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, ar performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; )

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmentdl entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b}
of this certification; and

11.4. "have not within a three-year penod preceding this application/proposal had one or more pubhc
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default '

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statéments in this
certiﬁcation, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS :

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective Iower tier pamcnpant as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and.its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

BocuSigned by:

6/18/2021 - ' | e QM,(M Liuss
Date Nahe Rente *Touhey-Chi dress
Title:

Executive Director

C
Exhibit F = Centification Regarding Debarment, Suspension ' Contractor Initigls

And Other Responsibility Matters 6/18/2021
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
" FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1. 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime ,Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42.U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and'sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan,

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating;, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan.requirements; s

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 {42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794) which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any.program or activity,

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 {20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.5.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
. basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination; .

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 {(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 {(equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No, 13559, which provide fundamental pnncrples and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28C.F. R pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations), and Whistleblower protections 41 U. 5.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013} the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against .
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representahon of fact upon whrch reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds: for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or. -

debarment,
. DS’
Exhibit G a | 4N
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with requirements periaining to Federal Nondiscriminalion, Equal Trealment of Faith-| Based Organizations .
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1. 12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

DocuSigned by:

6/18/2021 ° Yot ’Dulw, (iudn,ss
Date Name: Renee Touhey-Chidress

Title: Executive Director

o3
Exhibit G l KT
. : Contractor Initials ———
Cerification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Failh-Based Organizations
and Whistlablower protections

&z7na 6/18/2021
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CERTIFICATION R'EGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
{Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provisicn of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age ofi 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by-Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcchol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification; '

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees t¢ make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name:

DocuSigned by:

- 6/18/2021 Lo '[)M;aqﬁ(yu;
Date Name: Renee Touhey-Chidress
Title:

Executive Director

@i

Exhibit H ~ Certification I‘?egarding Contractor Initials
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-181 and
with the Standards. for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) 7 Definitions. _ _
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. '

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160,103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations,

c. Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggreqation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. ’

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health-care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical H'ealth
Act, TitleX!ll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009. '

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

J. “Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
[nformation at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States .
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
informaticn” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receivty
e

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

32014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Heatth Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 6/18/2021
Page 10f 8 Date ___
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“Required by Law" shall have.the same meaning as thge term “required by law” in 45 CFR

" Section 164.103.

. “Secréta[\g” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

_Health Information at 45_ CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

(2)

" “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the Amencan National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act,

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
n. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the dlsctosure and
to seek approprlate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi egF

2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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Business Associate Agreement 6/18/2021
Page 2 of & D

-

-
-



DocuSign Envelope |1D: B743458F-D093-497A-8949-1404B1615CDA

New Hampshiré Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

(3)

0

312014

Associate shall refrain from d:sclosmg the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

_ If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to

be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHU in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;
o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
- disclosure was made,
o . Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated. '

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the

_ Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and’

" Breach Notification Rule,

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same -
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity-
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assqciate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivi gﬁ’_{-ﬂ

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
‘Health Insurance Portability Act ’ .
Business Associate Agreement : 6/18/2021
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pursuant to this Agreement with rights of enforcement and mdemnlfcatlon from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13.of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual i in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. »

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an’
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuffill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information refated to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accountlng of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

' Wnthm ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a

request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. '

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2}
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

* Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the -

Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHL. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to stich PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thpseos
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as: Business@
Exhibit | * Contractor itials
Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Assaclate Agreement . - : 6/18/2021
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(4)

(5)

(6)

372014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. "

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately

“terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule; amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule méans the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. .Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data 0'wnershi9. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be 1 ed
to permit Covered Entity to co_mply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. m‘

Exhibit { Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act .
Business Associate Agreement 6/18/2021
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severabte.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3} I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the

standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall-survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit l. -

Department of Health and Human Services pover children's Home
oEQLR by: _ . pagskfibe Contractor

Katja Fox | Rt Touliey—Clidress

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Katja Fox Renee Touhey-Chidress .
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director ’ :

- - Executive Director .

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
6/22/2021 . 6/18/2021
Date : Date

3/2014 Exhibit . Contractor Initiats

Health Insurance Portability Act :
- Business Associate Agreement ] 6/18/2021
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

13

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requurements
1, Name of entity .
Amount of award
Funding agency . .
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source . )
Award fitle descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

OO NDO AWM

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prowsmns agrees to comply with the prowsmns of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outllned above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

——DotuSigned by:
6/18/2021 - : ’ 37973 RM»UQMSS
Date : " TOUNEy-Ch1d7 €55

Name:
Title:

Executive Director

C
Exhibit .| = Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 6/18/2021
CUDHHSM 10713 Page 1 of 2 D
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-

.

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
 below listed questions are true and accurate, .-

136215167
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or ofganization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
- receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, andfor cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants andlor
cooperative agreements?
X __'No - YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104.0f the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO - YES |
. i the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the f ive most highly compensated oﬁ' icers in your business or
orgamzatlon are as follows:

Name: Amount;
Name: - Amount:
Name: : Amount:
' Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;

| C
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Inilials

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 6/18/2021
CU/DHHS/10713 Page 2 of 2 t
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A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations. where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether'physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, “ Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “‘Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2} of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident”
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce

3. "Conﬁdentlal Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other. such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse’ Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiabte Information. :

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information {PHI1), Personal Information (Pl}, Personal Financial
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI}, and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User' means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

Ci
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be- considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

B. “Personal lnforrnation’ {or “PI"} means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heaith
Information at 456 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under H!PAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI*) has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected.Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. :

11. “Security Rule shall mean' the Security Standards for the Protection of ‘Electronic
. Protected Health Informatlon at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is

* not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to. unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organlzatuon that is accredited by
the American Natlonal Standards Institute.

. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constltute a violation .
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

: :DS
V5. Last update 10/09/18 . Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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request for disclosure ‘on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportumty to
consent or ob;ect to the disclosure.

3. |f DHHS: notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

, restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confi rm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between appllcatlons the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. -

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage dewces such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ' email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User rhay not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Servicé. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is erhploying portable devices to traﬁsmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an operi

| [j
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10.

11.

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

Remote User Communlcatlon If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile de\nce(s) or Iaptop from which lnformatlon will be
transmitted or accessed.

SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User ‘will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by Iaw or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A

Retention

1. _The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of

" cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and mcludes backup
data ‘and Disaster Recovery locations. )

2.- The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. ' The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a sectre location and identified in section IV, A2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported- and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

C
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
. Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hostlng
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
.sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer. in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying -the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, u. S,
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the’ data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. -

3. Unless othervvlse specified, within thirty {30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
- by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. -

.IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under thls Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to "protect Departrhent
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless -of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

| C l
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10.

11.

The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where apphcable

The Contractor will ensure proper securlty monitoring capabilities are in place to

detect potential - security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or

Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and . procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized. | .

" If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant‘ to 45

CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compllance with the
agreement. :

The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management.Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the ‘survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Securlty Office
leadership member within the Department.

Data SeCUrity Breach Liability. In the event of any -security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

C
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12

13.

14.

15.

16.

the breach, including but rot limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

Contractor must,. comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Aww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the:
State’s Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with- such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at ali times.

¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic dewces/medla containing PHI, PI, or:
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if ncugted and being
sent to and being.received by emall addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

. C
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Conﬁdential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiabte information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when-in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section’ |V above, :

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i understand that their user credentials {(user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application. : .

Contracior is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, '
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract,

. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable cbligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor wili:

1. ldentify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifi able information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

| C |
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and. contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation

measures.

-

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and réporte‘d, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. o

"VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
' DHHSPrivécyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D8
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“State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Sccretary of Suate of the Statc of New Hampshire, do hereby certily that DOVER CHILDRENS HOME is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation regisiered 1o transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1893, [ further certify that
all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as lar as this ofTice is

concerned.

Business' [D: 60257
Certificatc Number: 0005380947

. INTESTIMONY WHEREOF,
I hereto :svcl my hand and cause to be afiixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
tﬁis ldth day of June A.D. 2021.

Do o

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, __Donald Cichon , hereby certify that;

pMams af tea praciad Qifcar o' e Cornoarar o LLTD car mor by
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-

i
)
[
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Vi
[

vl

1. 1am a duly elecled Chair of _Dover Children’'s Home.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called and held on
June 18, 2021. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voling.

VOTED: That, _Renee Tour_uev-ChiIdress

s

is duly authorized on behalf of _Dover Children's Home to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

(15 S-S S B R

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or maodifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to affect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and-effect as of the
date of the contract/conlract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30} days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. {-further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full -authority-to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts w:th the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressiy stated herein.

,

. ‘ - .
Dated: 6/18/2021 %m-sanx 6.&‘,2‘»\,

Signature of Elegted Officer
Name: Donald J hon
Title: Chair, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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P .
ACORD’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY'INSURANCE

DATE (mm:DO/YYYY)
06/14/2027

REPRESENTATIVE-OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE IS8UING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the cortificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURE

this certificats does not confar rights o tha cartificate holder |n liew of such endorscment(s).

X D provisions or be endorsad,
H SUBROQATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policlos may require an endorsement. A staternant on

PRODUCER . j T Fainey Kenneally . .
E & S Insurance Services LLC PHONE y. (803) 293-273 (FA% ng). {603) 203-7188
21 Meadawbraok Lang ADDREss: Talley@esinsurance.nal
PO Box 7425 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAKC 8
Giterg ' NH 03247.7425 [\ ainen a: Great American Insurance Group GAIG
INSURED INSURER B: Technology Insurance Go 42378
Dover Childrens Homa INSURER C : :
207 Locust Streat NSURER D
MSURER E :
Dover , NH 03820 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 20-2% N REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED 10 THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
i CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
- EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLANMS, )
Lo - 1 FOLCYEFF LICYEXP .
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE ' insolwyo POLICY NUMBER (MMDD/YYYY) | (MMDDAYYYY) LivTs
] commerciaL GENERAL LaBRTY ' ’ EAGH OCCURRENGE s 1.000,000
. DAMAGE 10 HRENTED
] cuamsamoe ]z occur PREMISES (Eq occwrencer | 3 100,000
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MISSION STATEMENT

Provide tools and support fof youth to heal from emotional trauma through
community-based treatment programs that foster relationships and enable
youth to create hope for the future.

- STRATEGIC FRAMEWORKS

® Pursue Prbgram Excellence
o Expand Services |
@ Max:m:ze the E ffectiveness of Governance & Management Structure

- e Ensure Organizational Sustainability

IT TAKES A COI\/II\/IU’N‘IT-Y TO RAISE A CHILD
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PROFESSIONAL DSUCINTION
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
WOLFEBORO » NORTH CONWAY
DOVER « CONCORD
STRATHAM

To the Board of Directors

Dover Children's Home, Inc.

Dover, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT_'

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dover Children's-Home, Inc. {a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets,

. cash flows, and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related-notes to the financial
statements. ' : '

- Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements .

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and mainterance of ‘internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud orerror. .’ " o s :

Auditors’ Responsibility

. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
-conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whéther the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the .
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the. auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial .statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. ‘Accordingly, we express.no such opinion. An audit also
includes. evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness. of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. '

We believe that the,audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bas’is'
for our modified audit opinion.

c
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Due to the inadequacy of accounting records for the years prior o the year ended May 31 2008 (the
first year we were engaged as auditors), we were unable to form an opinion regarding the net assets
of Dover Children's Home, Inc. and the related restrictions thereon (see Note 6).

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter discussed in the Basis for Qualified

. Opinion paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Dover Children's Home, Inc. as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

W%DW*W

April 28, 2021
Dover, New Hampshire
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CHILDREN'
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E 0 9
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS ' -
Cash and cash equivalents -
Operating cash -
Board designated cash, renovation projecl
Cash equivalents from investments

Total cash and cash equivalents

Accounls raceivable
Inventory, food
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land, building and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Vehicles' .

Less accqmuléted depreciation
Tota.l property and equipment, net

OTHER ASSETS
Long term investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

4

CURRENT LIASBILITIES
. Accounts payable
Accounts payable, renovation project
Accrued paid lime off
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
‘Refundable rent
.Deferred revenue

'

* Total current liabilities

i

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With.donor restrictions

Total net'assets

Total ljabilities and net assets

See Notas to Flnanctal Statements

3

2020 2019
$ 86453 § 77,568
- 19,142

59,751 55,001
146,204 151,709
113,550 29,590
2,484 2,747
29,110 22,780
291,348 206,826
1,842,894 1,642,894 -
178,463 165,728
94,549 94,549
2115008 | 2,103,171
972,545 914,603
1,143,361 1,188,478
5,096,019 5,064,243

$ 5349 § 6987
. 43,880

68,170 48,564
25,929 18,596
365 -

- 5,205

99,813 123,232
1,868,078 1,811,503
4,562,837 4,524,812
6430915 _ 6,336,315
£6530728 § 6.450547
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STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSE.TS

BER 3

REVENUE AND SUPPORT WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Contributions
Fundraising
Government and other agencies
Income from outside trust grants
Inlerest income
Total unreslricted revenue and suppaort

Net assets released from restrictions

Tolal revenue and support without denor reslnclions and net asseis
released from restrictions .

EXPENSES
Program services
Instructional and student aclivities
Residentiat
. Supporting activities
General and administrative
Fundraising and marketing

Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WfTHOUT DONOR RESTRICTiONS
NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS .
Contributions
Interest and dividends, investmenls
Net realized and unrealized gain'on investments

Net assels released from restrictions

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR'RESTRICTIONS

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements

4

202 2019
$ 313,069 $ 371630
80,374 128,678
888,730 557,051
43,232 45220
344 3,055
© 1,326,749 1,105,643
222,715 | 87.001
1,549,464 1,192,644 -
1,019,759 735,558
199,534 159,992
111,795 106,694 .
161,801 154,665
1,492,889 1,156,939
56,575 35,705
7.000 5,000
122,434 226,307
131,306 84,306
(222,715) (87.001)
38,025 228,702
94,600 264,407
6,336,315 8,071,908
-8 6,430,915 . -$ 6,336,315
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

EQR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assels

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assels to net

cash from operaling activilies:
Depraciation
In-kind donation of property and eqmpmenl
Gain on sate of inveslmants
Unrealized gain on investments
Decreasea (increase) in assets:
Accounls recelvable
Inventory, food
Prepaid expensaes - -
(Decrease) increase in liabililies:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable renovation
Accrued paid time off
Accrued payroll and ratatéed liablities .
Refundable rent
Deferred revenue

NET CASH (USED INj PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
‘Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of invesiments
‘Proceeds from sale of Investments

. NET CASH PRCVIDED BY {USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE.OF NONCASH ACTIVITY
Increase in construction project costs included in accourits payable al year end

See Notas to Financial Statements

2020 2019
$ 94800 S 264,407
57,853 38,660
{12,000) {34,805)
(11,752) {18.168)
{119,554) {66.140)
(83,960) 4,839
263 278
(6.330) {5.019)
.(1,638) (7,533)
(43,880) -
19,606 5,367
7,333 4,674
365 ~ .
(5,205) 4,000
(104,299) 190,562
" (736) (731,141)
{1,588,278) {1.211,608)
1,687,808 1,071,326
98,794 (871,423)
{5,505) (680,861)
151,709 832,570
$ 146204 $ 151,709
$ - § 43,880
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DOVER CHILDREN'S HOME, INC
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

EFORTHE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND 2019
2020 2019
INSTRUCTIONAL AND STUDENT ACTIVITIES
Salaries and wages ’ $ 772,165 % 535,841
Payroll taxes . 58,334 40,880
Health and dental insurance : 53,654 32,713
Food : ) - 40,520 . . 40,179
Insurance ' © 17,078 16,043
Holidays/vacations _ 12,113 12,013
. Client treatment and services : ‘8,449 s
Recreation/weekend activities ' 7.731 8,055
Telephone . 6,783 6,388
Staff development : 6.310 10,950
Vehicle insurance : 5,327 L4051
: Staff mileage reimbursement . 4,816 © 3,385
Client transportation _ : . 3,933 3.873
Miscellaneous - ' 4 3765 . 3,831
Clothing 3,327 3,329
Residént allowance _ - 2,908 3.463
Pilot house expense ‘ ‘ 2,580 1,507
Vehicle maintenance and repairs : 2,394 : 1,060
Resident reinforcers - . 2,081, ‘ 876
School-supplies ) _ 1,854 4,286
_ Hygiene/personal products - 1,503 1,764
Payroll service costs . 1,073 961
Postage : 422 420
~ Membership dues o 404 393
Criminal record check _ . 235 . 307
Total instructional and student activities $ 1,019759 . § 735,558 .

See Notes to Financlal Statements

6
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DOVER CHILDREN'S HOME, INC,

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

(8] D EMBE
2020 2019
RESIDENTIAL .

Salaries and wages $ 78,827 ¢ 59,278
Depreciation ) 54,960 36,726
Heat ) - 12,438 16,391
Elecln'cily ) : 12,169 10.617
Insurance : 8,100 5,880
Payroll taxes 6,025 4,528
Grounds maintenance , 5,965 | 4,429
Health and dental insurance 5,723 3,686
House supplies 5,066 4,987
Waler and sewer . 4,118 4174
Equipment maintenance and repairs 31gz . 7.060
Maintenance and repairs ) 2,847 . 2119
Payroll service costs _ 114 108

Total residential T $ 199534 $§ 159092

See Notes to Financial Statements

7




{
;‘,:, DocuSign Envelope 1D: B743458F-D093-497A-8049-1404B1615CDA

DOVER CHILDREN'S HOME, INC,
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
S
2020 2019
GENERAL AND AD,MINIST’RATIVE
Salaries and wages $ 56,465 § 62,864
Audit fees : : ' ' 15,584 14,075
Other administrative expenses ™~ 11,477 2,622
Payroll taxes ] 4,519 4,528
Heallh and denla! insurance 4,293 3,686
Insurance ' ] 4,251 3,688
[Tioffice infrastructure _ © 3,373 " 3,256
Depreciation . 2,893 1,934,
Office supplies : : 2,315 2,693
Telephone . _ 1,938 1,825
Membership dues 1,614 - 1,570
Miscellanaous ’ T 1.229 2,638
Food ' " 1,226 693
Poslage and shipping 422 ) 420
Payroll sarvice 86 108
. Bank service fees ' 54 30
Prinling.and binding o : 29 -
Finance charges 27 74
Total general and administrative 5 111,795  § 108,694 -

See Notes to Financial Statemerits
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STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

EOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019
FUNDRAISING AND MARKETING .
Salaries and wages $ 112,932 § 93,105
Direcl fundraising expenses . 18,226 32,611
Payroll taxes : ‘ 8,283 7.357
‘Health and dental insurance _ 7,868 5,990
Adverlising. - _ 6,704 6,775
Insurance : 3,785 - 3,508
Bank Service Fees . R ‘ 1,071 1,201
Telephons 669 913
Miscellaneous . ‘ 769 2,023
Postage ' 563 560
Office supplies . 408 476
Payroll service i 157 178
Printing and binding : 66 -

Total fundraising and marketing t © . $ 161801 $ 154,695

See Notes to Financial Statemants

8
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NOTE 1.

OVE D 'S HOME, IN

- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND 2019

QRGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business :

Dover Children's Home, Inc. (the Home) is a non-profit organization designed to provide
a home for the reception, care and instruction of needy, neglected, or abused children.
The majority of the Home's funding is from federal and state funds administered through
the State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Home have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Home to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the foilowung net

. -asset classifications:

,Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Home. These net assets may be -
used at the discretion of the Home's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Home: Other
donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby ‘the donor has
sttpulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Home had $4,562,837 and $4,524,812 of net

‘assets with donor restrictions respectively.

Basis of Accounting

" The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
. accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally acéepted in the United

States of America, as promulgated by the FASB ASC.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting' principles
generally ‘accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. _ .

10
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Income Taxes

The Home is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal
Revenue Code, excep! on net income derived from unrelated business activities, and
as- a result of having no unrelated business activities for each of the years ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019, has made no provision for Federal income taxes in the
accompanying financial statements. '

Management has reviewed the tax positions for the Home under ASC 740,
Accounting for Income Taxes, which establishes the minimum threshold for
recognizing, and a system for measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in
financial statements. Management has analyzed the Home's tax positions taken on
its information returns for all open tax years (tax years ending 2016 - 2019), and has
concluded that no provision for income lax is required in the Home's financial
statements. .

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Home considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of less

than three months to be cash equivalents. ‘The cash equivalents at September 30,

2020 and 2019 consist of money market accounts. Cash equivalents totaled $59,751
and $55,001 on September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

At September 30, 2019 there is board designated cash of $19,142. The board has
designated these funds for the renovation project (see Note 7). There were no board
designated funds at September 30, 2020. :

Accounts Recéivable '

Accounts receivable represent amounts due from Medicaid and DCYF, as well as other
small programs funded by the State of New Hampshire for the years ended September
30, 2020 and 2019. The amounts are based on the per diem rate paid for residents of
the Home. The per diem rate is determined on an annual basis.

At September 30, 2020 accounts receivable included $72,984 in grant funds through
the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Accreditation
Support for DCYF Certified Residential Treatment Providers program (see Note 11).

The Home considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible. Accordingly, no

allowance- for doubtful accounts is required. If amounts become uncollectible, they -

will be charged to operations and an allowance will be created when that
determination.is made. '

Investments . :
Investments ‘in ‘marketable securities with readily determinable fair vatues and all
investments in debt :securities are- reported at their fair values in the statements of

financial position. The values of the securities are subject to market fluctuations and

are uninsufed (see Note 3). Unrealized gains and losses and investment income
from restricted investments are included in the change in net assets (see Note 6).

11




DocuSign Envelope 1D: B743458F-0093-497A-8949-1404B1615CDA

Inventory '
Food inventories purchased for use in program residential services are carried at the
lower of first-in, first-out cost or net realizable value

Property and Equlpment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, if purchased, or at fair value at date of
donation in the instance of donated .property. Such donations are reported as
unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Costs for maintenance and repairs are charged against operations. Renewals
and betterments which materially extend the life of the assets are capitalized.

Depreciation is provided over lhe life of the related asséts using the stra|ght line method

as follows:
_Years
Buildings and building improvements 10 - 40
Furniture and equipment B 5-10
Vehicles . 5 -

Depreciation. expense for the years ended Seplember 30, 2020 and 2019 was $57 853
and $38,660, respectively.

Accrued Paid Time Off

Accrued paid time off represents the Home's liability for the cost of unused employee
paid time off. The Home allows employees to carryover up to 120 hours of accrued
paid time off which is payable when used or in the event of employee termination.
The Home's liability for the accrued paid time off at September 30, 2020 and 2019
totaled $43,945 and $37,192, respectively. The Home also allows employees to use
amounts in excess of the 120 hours for medical or other approved leave. The amount
in excess of the 120 hours will not be paid out in the event of termination. The excess
hours represents $24,225 and $11,372 of the total accrued paid time off balance at
-September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for the general programs of the Home
. unless specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are designated for
L, future. periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as net
assets with donor restrictions.

Contributed Supporit

Many individuals involved with the Home have donated signifi cant time to its activities
~and programs; however, no amount has been recognized in these financial statements:
1 because the contributed services did not meet the requirements for recognition.

12
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Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various program services, fundraising, and general and
administrative support have been summarized on 3 functional basis. Natural expenses
are defined by their nature, such as salaries, occupancy, supplies, etc. Functional
expenses are classified by the type of activity for which expenses incurred, such as
management and general, fundraising and direct program costs. Expenses are
allocated by function using a reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily
based on function and use. The cost of providing certain program and supporting
services have been directly charged. '

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
" The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each
class of financial instruments for which it is practical to estimate the value:

Accounts receivables and prepaid expenses — The carrying value of these
accounts approximates fair value due to their short term nature. '
Investments — The fair values of investments are measured using a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values (see Note 5).

.Accounts péyable. accrued expenses, and deferred revenue - The carrying
value of these accounts approximates fair value due to the short term nature of the
obligations. ‘ :

. New Accounting Pronouncement
During the year, the Home adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying
the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and
Contributions ‘Made (Topic 958). This accounting standard is meant to help not-for-
profit entities evaluate whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions
or as exchange transactions and, if the transaction is identified as a contribution,
whether it is conditional or unconditional. ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization
determines whether a resource provider is: receiving commensurate value in return
N for a grant. If the resource provider does receive commensurate value from the grant
recipient, the transaction is an exchange transaction and would follow the guidance
under ASU 2014-09 (FASB ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received
by the grant maker, the transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the
value received by the general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be
commensurate vahie received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the
years ending September 30, 2020 and 2019 aré presented under FASB ASU 2018-
08. The comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported
under the accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no
material impact to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no
adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.

13
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NOTE 2:

NOTE 3.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY -

The following represents the Home's financial assets as of September 30,
2020 and 2019:

2020 - 2019
Financial assets at year-end: _
Cash and cash equivalents % 146,204 $ 132,567
Investments 5,096,019 5,064,243
Cash held for renovations ’ - 19,142
Total financial assets 5,242,223 5,215,852 -
Less amounts not available to be used
within one year: ~ :
Cash held for renovations ' - .+ 19142
Restricted investments 4,550,855 4,514,330
Total amounts not available 4,550,855 4533472
Financial assets available to meet general | |
expenditures over the next twelve months  § 691,368 % 682,480

It is the Home's goal to maintain financial assets-fo meet 6 months of operating

-expenses which approxmated 1$718,000 and $558,000, at September 30, 2020 and

2019, respectivély.

INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments at September 30, 2020 and 2019

September 30.7 2020

Endowment Fund ' Unrealized

' Cost - Eair Value Gain (L.oss)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 50939 % 50039 $ -

" Investment portion: ' _ : .

Govemment obligations’ 244 537 257,809 . 13,272
" Non-government obligations 759,971 811,197 51,226
Real assets 55655 54,331 (1,324)

- Commion stocks 911,625 1,105,071 193,446
Mutual funds : 1,944,832 2,112,159 167,327
Total investment portion 3,916,620 4,340,567 423,947
“Total endowmentfund $ 3067550 $ 4301506 $ 423,047

14
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Other Funds ' " Unrealized
Cost Fair Value ‘Gain {Loss)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8812 $ 8812 § -

" Investment portion: S
Real assets 9,620 9,392 (228)
Mutual funds . 692,052 746,060 54,008
" Total investment portion | 701,672 __ 755.452 53,780
Total other funds s 710484 § 764,264 $ 53,780

Total

' Total cash and cash equivalents $ 59751 § 59751 § -
Total investment portion 4618292 .  5096,019 477,727
Total $ 4678043 $ 5155770 § 477 727

September 30, 2019

Endowment Fund | - Unrealized
' Cost Fair Value-  Gain (Loss)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 45686 $ 45686 $ -
Investment portion: : o ~
Govemment obligations 575,202 583,255 - 8,053
Non-government obligations 658,702 679,181 20,479

. Real assets - - 50,348 55,318 4,989
Common stocks 751,328 080,423 229,095
Mutual funds ' 1,910,473 1,979,108 . 68,635

Total investment portion 3,946 054 _ 4.277.285 331,231

~ Total endowment fund $ 3901740 $ 4322971 $ 331,231 .

15



DocuSign Envelope 1D: B743458F-0093-497A-8949-1404B1615CDA

NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

Other Funds Unrealized
: Cast Fair Value Gain (Loss)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,315 $ 8315 § .
Investment portion: _
Real assets 9,184 10,108 . 924
Mutual funds 750,833 776,850 26,017
Total investment portion 760,017 786,958 26,941
Total other funds - $§ 769332 % 796,273 § 26,941
Total

Total cash and cash equivalents  $ 55,001 $ 55,001 § -

Total investment portion - : . 4,708,071 5,064,243 358,172
Total 54761072 § 5119244 $ 358172

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Home.maintains its cash batances at one local financial institution. At September
30, 2020 and 2019, there were no balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) limit of $250,000. However, cash balances may exceed the insured
limits at times throughout the year. , ' ' :

The Home received approximately 39% and 47% of its funding from Medicaid and
the Division of Children, Youth and Famities (DCYF) combined for the years ended"
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. At September 30, 2020 and 2019,
Medicaid and DCYF accounted for 36% and 96%, respectively, of the balance in
accounts receivable..

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS . :

FASB ASC TOPIC No. 820-10 provides a definition of fair value which focuses &n an
exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally accepted
accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is a
market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB
ASC 820-10, the Home may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income
and cost approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market
participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic 820 establishes a
fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to

- Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the faif value hierarchy under ASC Topic

820 are described as follows: <
16
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Level 1 - Inputs to valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

" Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in aclive markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of
the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models
or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3-- Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and
the reporting entity makes eslimates and assumptions related to the pricing of
the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk. .

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair .
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at' September 30,
2020. -

Government obligations:  Valued using pricing models maximizing the use of
observable inputs for similar securities.

Non-government obligations: Consist of corporate bonds that are valued using
pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for similar securities. This
includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable securities of
issuers with similar credit ratings. S :

Real assets: Consist of real estate investment trust (REIT) stocks which are actively
traded and are valued at the daily closing price as.reported by the trust. These trusts .
are required to publish their daily net asset value (NAV) and te transact at that price.
All REIT's held by the Home are open-end REIT's that are registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. '

Common stocks: Valued at the closing market price on the stock exchange where
they are traded (primarily the New York Stock Exchange). '

Mutual funds: All actively traded mutual funds are valued at the daily closing price as
reported by the fund. These funds are required to publish their daily net asset value
(NAV) and to transact at that price. All'mutual funds held by the Home are open-end
‘mutual funds that are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commisston,

17
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NOTE 6.

2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Govemment obligations $ - $ 257,809 S - $ 257,809
Non-govemment obligations - 811,197 - 811,197 -
Real assets 63,723 - - 63,723
Common stocks 1,105,071 - - 1,105,071
- Mutual funds

Equities 2,170,076 - - 2,170,076

Fixed income 688,143 - - 688,143
Total investrents | $4027.013 $1060006 $. . $5.006,019

2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Govemment obligations $ - § 583255 § - $ 583,255
Non-govemment obligations -o- 679,181 - 679,181
Real assets 65,427 - - 65,427
Common stocks 980,423 - - 980,423
Mutual Funds :

Equities ' 2,109,141 . - - 2,109,141

Fixed income 646,816 , - - 646,816
Total investments $3.801.807 $1.262436 $____ - $6.064.243

QUALIFIED OPINION

Due to the inadequacy of accounting records for the years p(rior'to the year ended
May 31, 2008, extensive research was performed in an attempt to reach a conclusion

. related to the restrictions of the Home's net assets and authorization related to the

release of net assets from restrictions, if any. The research proved to be
inconclusive, which has resulted in ‘qualified opinions for the periods ended during
2008 through 2020 as it relates to the Home's net assets, the restrictions thereon,
and authorization related to the release of net assets from restrictions, if any. Due to
the uncertainty regarding the balance of net assets with donor restrictions, the Board
has elected to treat all earnings on net assets with donor restrictions as net ‘assets
with donor restrictions, unless a transfer is made for operational purposes at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, at which time the amount is transferred to net
assets without donor restriction. '

18
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NOTE 7.

' NOTE 8.

NOTE 9.

" NOTE 10:

NOTE 11.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

During the year ended September 30, 2018, $800,000 was released from the Home's
Ret assets to help fund a renovation project. At September 30, 2019 $19,142 of the
released funds remained in this account. Additionally, $43,880 of the renovation costs
had not yet been paid as of September 30, 2019 and were included in accounts
payable. The project was completed during September of 2019. The construction in
progress balance was reclassed- to building improvements for the year ended

September 30, 2019. There was a zero balance in both construction in progress and
- accounts payable as is related 1o the renovation project for the year ended September

30,2020. |

RECLASSIFICATION .
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial stateménts have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year,

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In Aprii 2020, the Home received loan proceeds in the amount of $187,000 under the |

Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”). The PPP is established as part of the

. Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act ("CARES ACT").

The loan was formally forgiven on January 7, 2021; as such, the entire amount of the
loan was recorded as income from government and other agencies for the year ended
September 30, 2020. - - :

LONG TERM CARE STABILIZATION PROGRAM .
In response to COVID-19, in April 2020, the State of New Hampshire established the

Long Term Care Stabilization (LTCS) Program to provide stipends to certain front line

Medicaid providers. The program was developed to incentivize these direct care
workers to remain in or rejoin this critical workforce and continue to provide high quality
care to vulnerable persons during the pandemic. Under the program, the New

Hampshire Department of Employment Security (NHES) would distribute $300 per .
week in stipends to full time qualifying front line workers and $150 per week in stipends

to part time.qualifying. front line workers. The funding for the LTCS Program ‘was
provided through the Coronavirus Relief Fund. During the year ended September 30,
2020, the Home received grant revenue of $63,750 and expended $63,750 under the
grant through payroll. : :

OTHER FUNDING _

amount of $72,984 from the State of New Hampshire under the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services Accreditation Support for DCYF Certified
Residential Treatment Providers program. The funds received through this: program
are to be used to maintain the Homes accreditation with the ‘Commission on
Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities: At September 30, 2020 the funds were

included in-accounts receivable and were received on October 4, 2020.

19
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NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

OTHER MATTERS

The impact of the novel caronavirus (COVID-18) and measures to. prevent its spread
are affecting the Home's programs. The significance of the impact of these
disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Home's financial and
operational results, will be diclated by the length of time that such disruptions continue
and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19
pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might be imposed in
response to the pandemic. Due to the COVID-19 impact on the capital markets the
Home continues to evaluate its investment strategies but does not anticipate any

~major changes to its investment portfolio in the near term. COVID-19 also makes it

more challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Home's
programs, particularly over the near to medium term. '

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS ' ‘
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions ‘that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date:
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose. after
that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 28, 2021, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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DOVER CHILDREN'S HOME
FISCAL YEAR 2021 BOARD OFFICERS AND STANDING COMMITTEE CHAIRS
* EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE *
updated: June 10, 2021

CHAIR ' ~_VICE CHAIR

Don Cichon T Doug Glennen
(serving since 3-18-14) (serving since 10-21-14)

Financial Advisor: Cocheco Financial Group Website Developer, Glennon Consulting
: Co-Owner, Jewelry Creations

TREASURER SECRETARY

Lin Tamulonis Jim Horne
(serving since 11-18-15) (serving since 8-26-15)

Retired : President of Beacon Business Advantage
FORMER CHAIR Paul Chamberlin

Carolyn Mebert (serving since 1-27-16)

(serving since 6-10-03) " Retired Associate VP of Facilities
Associate Professor of Psychology University of New Hampshire

University of New Hampshire . ’ -

DOVER CHILDREN.S HOME
FISCAL YEAR 2021 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mike Murphy, Finance Chair Ann-Lane, Facilities & Infrastructure Chair
. (serving since 3-25-15) (serving since 3-23-16} _
CPA: Murphy, Powers, and Wilson, P.C. "| Retired Carpenter and Real Estate Developer
David Rich, MD Candace McCloy, Personne! Chair
(Serving since 3-27-21) (serving since 1-25-18)
Pediatrician and Partner ‘ Retired Human Resources Director
. Dover Pediatrics Measured Progress
Martha Munhail . Sean O'Connell
(serving since 1-23-19) ' (serving since 6-24-20)
Director of Talent Acquisition ~ - Partner/Attorney
Wentworth-Douglass Hospital . Shaheen & Gordon
Timothy Moore
" {Serving since 4-28-21)
CEO/Co-Owner
Marcam Associates
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Renee E. Touhey-Childress, LICSW

MSW Professional

Experience ]
Dover Children’s Home 8/2015 - Present
Dover, NH '

Executive Director
e Development of programs and services
e Oversight of program and all administrative functioning

e Marketing and fundraising to make up for half the fiscal year operating budget

¢ Ensuring policies and procedures are developed appropriately, malntamed and enforced

+  Supervision of all administrative personnel

MENTOR Network - MA MENTOR Lawrence Children's Program 812012 - 8/2015

Lawrence, MA

Program Director

+  Provide formal weekly supervision to all managers

« Oversee daily functions of the program (i.e. intake, financials, recruiting, child and family services)

e Ensure budgets are met and followed in daily, weekly and monthly work

«  Conduct investigations and write supporting documentation involving potential caretaker misconduct from
foster parents '

s Oversee quality assurance in the program based on DEEC Regulations, DCF Famnily Resource Policy and MENTOR
Operating Documents

« Conduct audits of the Program’s clinical and logistical réquirements and oversee the follow through to ensure
regulatory standards are met

s (Collaborate closely with the State Team Members {i.e. Quality Assurance Manager, Area Director, Executive
Director, etc.)

s - Develop and facilitate management team meetlngs and full team meetings weekly inthe program

+ " Identify creative interventions in working with foster parents and children

¢  Conduct interviews with potent:al employment candldates and make deasnons on hiring based off a behavioral
interview method

s Train all staff regarding clinical areas of focus as well as Ioglstncal and regulatory areas of focus

Wheelock College ' 8/2012-5/2014

Boston, MA '

Faculty Field Lialson

= Taught a Master of Social Work level Field Seminar Course that bridged the field placement experience with
classroom learning

* Provided three site visits per school year to twelve students in a variety of Social Work settings

» Facilitated conversations between students and site Field Instructors regarding learning in the field and
enhancing the experience for the student

+ Responsible for classwork documentation and grading of students

MENTOR Network — MA MENTOR Lawrence Children’s Program 3/2008 - 82012
Lawrence, MA ‘

Clinical Supervisor

»  Provide at least one hour per week of formal clinical supervision to five Program Services Coordinators

» Locate appropriate trainings for Clinical Coordinators in order to encourage individual professional development
» Ensure a high quality of care is provided to the individuals served within the program

o Offer clinical support to Mentor foster parents on a consistent basis as indicated by level of ability and need
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Renee E. Touhey-Childress, LICSW

s Conduct utilization reviews for both Individual and Mentor foster parent records to ensure compliance with
DEEC, DCF and MENTOR regulations

» Provitle strong customer service to Lead Agencies, DCF and all other contracted collaterals

s  Assist the Program Manager in admlnlstratwe functions on an as needed basis :

* Complete CORI waiversina tlmely manner in order to be in compliance with State regulations for Mentor foster
parents, household members and frequent visitors

* Enforce necessary regulations in MENTOR foster homes to ensure Client safety

s Conduct internal investigations alongside DCF Special Investigators

e Complete all necessary documentation using proficient neutral writing skills

Team Coordinating Agency - Phoenix East Behavioral Treatment Program 5/2006 - 3f2008

Haverhill, MA ‘

Clinical Theraplst :

e Provided a therapeutic environment for twelve adolescent males in a behavnora] treatment residence model

¢ Completed psychosocial assessments on all individuals in the program

¢ Developed clinical treatment plans incorporating a DSM IV Axis diagnosis

+ Collaborated effectively with collaterals and members of the family system in the treatment of the individuals

e  Provided individual and family therapy with adolescents and families with significant trauma, substance abuse,
andfor criminal histories .

e Completed billing forms and all necessary documentation in accordance with licensing requirements

e Knowledge and utilization of the CANS assessment tool

BSW Professional
Experience .
North Shore ARC - Building Blocks Program _ 5{2004 - 8/2005
Danvers, MA ' '

Building Blocks Provider

Clinical Practicum '
Internship Experience

Home for Little Wanderers - Community Living Program at Coldwell Banker House

9/2004 ~ 8/2005

Norwood, MA ‘ -
MSW Practicum

Alliance for Inclusion & Prevention - After school Program
5{2003 - 5/2004

Roslindale, MA ‘

BSW Senior Practicum Intern

City Life/Vida Urbana
92002 - 12{2002

Jamaica Plain, MA

Social Work Policy Intern

Education
Wheelock College, Boston, MA A : May 2006
Master of Social Work

Wheeldck College, Boston, MA May 2004
Bachelor of Social Work

GPA 3.1

Bond University - Gold Coast, Australia April 2003

Spring Study Abroad Program
Concentration: Psychology
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Mary Thurber

Rochester, NH 03868

To be a. member of a dynamic organization where | can contribute my professional talent and skills
while adding value to the business. To obtain a position where my organizational, communication and
problem solving skills can benefit the organization through executive support and allow for career
advancement and mutual growth. '

Work Experience

Accounts Payable Clerk
Ol Infusion Services LLC
August 2020 to Present

Daily input of invoices for infusion medications for 20+ medical providers

Propose invoices that'are due for approval from providers

Weekly and month end deposit reconciliations for 20+ clinics

Monthly inventory of on hand and administered medications

Monthly site summary of cost of goods, net income,jnfuéions and inventory
Monthly review of unearned discounts taken and owed for infusion drugs

Weekly leadership meetings to identify issues, to do lists and quarterly projections
Quarterly review of cost of medications for vendor pricing

Office Manager )
Little Bay Broadca;t Services - Dover, NH
August 2012 to Present

Bookkeeping using QuickBoeks including all Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable as well as
generating, editing and emailing invoices

Interface with existing and prospective customers including taking accurate and detailed messages as
‘needed

Process weekly payroll for employees and responsible for maintaining employee files, vacation/time off
tracking '

Reconciliation of multiple credit cards and bank accounts. Proofread contracts sent to potential clients
Handle overall office -administration including faxing, filing, copying, inventory and supplies

Contractor - IT Help Desk Agent at leerty Mutual
Pro Unlimited - Dover, NH
-October 2019 to August 2020

Providing technical assistance and support to employees for issues related to over 2,000 applications
Performed general maintenance tasks, troubleshot and repaired computer systems and peripheral
equipment; documents and applied standard solutions.

Cosmetologist / Nail Technician
Wentworth By The Sea Hotel & Spa - New Castle, NH
2003 to 2017
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Perform manicures and pedicures for hotel and local guests
Build and maintain a client base in this commission based position
Offer strong customer service to all guests

Legal Assistant / Real Estate Paralegal / Prosecution Paralegal
Alton Law Offices - Alton, NH
August 2007 to August 2012

Bookkeeping using QuickBooks including all Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable as well as
generating, editing and mailing monthly invoices ;
Handle overall office administration including faxing, filing, copying, general correspondence
"Interface with existing and prospective clients including listening to clients and directing them to
attorneys as needed: taking accurate and detailed messages as needed
Scheduling appointments and maintaining court calendars for multiple attorneys’
Transcribing dictation of Motions, client letters, Purchase and Sales Agreements and Settlement
Proposals .
Producing Settlement Statements and all necessary closing documents for clients and their lenders with
respect to real estate purchases and refinances '
Coordinate closing details with lenders, buyers and sellers
Draft letters and motions to Court :
Maintain Employee absentee calendar _
Prepare and send Discovery materials

' Office Manager
Salmon Falls Stoneware - Dover, NH
1997 to 2007 )

Managing payroll for 50+ employees

Maintain data for all incoming orders .

Oversee monthly inventory as well as daily and weekly production
Produce invoices, and handle Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable

Create spreadsheets and calculate commission statements .

Handle goverall office administration including faxing, filing, copying, general correspondence
Provide outstanding customer service to clients both in house and external inquiries

Workers Compensation Rater / Customer Account Assistant
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company - Portsmouth, NH
1991 to 1996 i

Approved rates and premiums for business applications
Determined policies needed following state regulations
Analyzed documents and forms for accurate completion
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Education

High school diploma

Skills

Excellent customer service skills; Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, QuickBooks, E-closing, Timeslips;
Paychex; Internet knowledge; Energetic personality; team player )

AREAS OF EFFECTIVENESS:

Cross-Functional skills to support team members C ' .
Proven ability to manage, organize and prioritize multiple tasks within required deadlines
Demonstrated customer service and sales abilities

High attention to detail o

Ability to work independently and take direction

Responsible for Company Business Finance reporting

Maintain cost effective finance reports -

Provides analysis of business financial resuits to management

Conducts and assists in daily business tasks

Managing confidential information with discretion

Ability to keeg to a regimented schedule

Willing and able to accept responsibility

Accounts Payable
* Workers' Compensation

Transcription

Bookkeeping

Nail Care

Accounts Receivable. ’ ; /
« Payroll '

Proofreading’

General Ledger Reconciliation
- Human Resources
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CONTRACTOR NAME: Dover Children’s Home

Key Personnel

Name Job Title . Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from

- this Contract | this Contract
Renee Touhey- Executive Director $84,421.00 63% $53,185.00
Childress : '

Mary Thurber Office Manager - | $52,000.00 63% $32,760.00
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FORMN NUMBER P-37 (version lllllll20_19)

Subject:_Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprictary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT ‘
The Siate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1,  IDENTIFICATION.

1.l State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Swate Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

555 Auburn Street
Manchqster, NH 03013

1.5 Cont}actor Phone

1.6 AccountNumberA .
Nuomber .

See Exhibit C

(603) 623-8863 : -

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2024 $33,670,236

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White; Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

1.11 Contractor S:gnature
DocuSigned by;

1.12 Name and Tille of Centractor Slgnatory
Elin Treanor

CA3A42

Date:6/24/2021
Cﬁw\, Treaner ae : CFO
1.13 S_f’w/?\'égﬂégfglgnaturc 1.14- Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
DocuSigned by: KatJa FOX
. _ .6/24/2021 =
K""f‘ Foi ' Date: Director’

By:»

l 15 ApprcomI by the N.H. Dcparlmcnl ot"Admmmlrauon Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Dlrcctor On:

By: Catherine Pinos

1.16 Approval by the Atlorney General (Form Substance and Execition) (if applicable)

6/24/2021

G&C ltem number:

1.17 Approval by the Governor and l:\ecullvc Council (if applicable)

G&C Meelmg Date:

Page 1 of 4

DS
. N | AN
Contractor Initials

Date A
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
“{(“Contractor”) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more panticularly
described in. the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference {“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governer and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
.unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, atl Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any- costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Gompletion Date
_specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

Notwithsianding any provision of this Agreemem to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are

contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of

funds affected by any statc or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right 1o reduce or

terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon

giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source 1o the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
cvenl funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE Ll\llTATIO\‘I
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms ofpaymcm
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporaled herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

‘Page2 of 4

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability o the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts

. otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those

liquidated amounts required or permitied by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the

_Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

regulations, and orders of federal, state, counly or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited (o, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations,
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the

" State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.

The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws,

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, thc Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States

* access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for

the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations

.~ and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of thls S

Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws. '
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services 1o hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shaill be the State’s representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

. . Ds
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

" 8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the

Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (¥*Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services qamfaclonly or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement. |

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a wrillen notice specﬂ'ymg the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days afier giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid o the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying thc Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, ‘terminate - the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after

any Event of Default shall be deemed a-waiver of its rights with .

regard to that Event of Default, or any.subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall

be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and”
all of the provisions hereof upon any furthér or other Event of |

Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION., .
9.1 Noiwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thinty (30) days writien notice to the Contractor that
_ the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement,

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the
- Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report (“Termination Repont™) descnbmg in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price carned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State’s discretion, the Contracior
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited 1o, all studies, reports,
files, formula€, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representalions, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whclhcr

. finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been recéived from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Siate, and-
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason. ‘

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires’
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe .
performance of this Agreement the-Contractor is in all respects

an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor ar

employee of the State. ‘Neither the Contractor nor any of its

officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to

bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or

other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

2.1 The Coniractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided o the State at least filteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of ~Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of relaled transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the

“direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the

voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the. Contractor. )

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the -
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State,
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law, '

“the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its -

officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,

- liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,

patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omigsiensof the

Page 3 of 4 ‘ ' AN
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Contractor, or subcontractors,. including but not limited to the

- negligence, reckless or intentional conduct, The State shall not.

be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Nolwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute awaiver of the sovereign
immunity-of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement. N

14. INSURANCE. _
14,1 The Contractor shall, at iis sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14:1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
. 14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covcnng all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph t4.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
~ 14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement:
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the c'cpirauon date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contraclor agrees, certiftes
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt

from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (" Workers'

- Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject 1o the requlremcnts
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee {o secure and maintain,
payment of Workers® Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement, The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers’
Compensation in the- manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which 'shall be
attached and are incorporated hereiri by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers’
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party

shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, posiage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only afler approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM, This Agrecment shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the.
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and .
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this' Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule -
of construction shall be applied against or in' favor of any party.

« Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and

maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
cxcluswcwrmdlcnon thereof. -

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES, The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third partics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit. ’

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiclion to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of .
this Agreement will remain in full force and effeci,

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agrecment and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all priot
agreemeénts and understandings with respect to the subject matter

which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire hereof.
Workers” Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement, ,
) 0s
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health.
EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions -

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by addlng '
" subparagraph 3.3 as follows: :

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to six (6) additional year( )
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the partles and approval of the
Governor and Executlve Council. -

1.2. . Paragraph 12, AssrgnmenUDeIegatlonlSubcontracts is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3 Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the ’
' Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be
performed and how corrective action shall be managed if the
subcontractor's performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall
‘'manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and
take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually,
provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for under
" this Agreement and notify the State ofany inadequate subcontractor
performance

r
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement-of Work

- 1.1.  The Contractor shall- prowde high-quality tailored behavioral health treatment
services in residential treatment settings to quickly stabilize behaviors and
symptoms that children, youth and young adults herein referred to as

. individuals with ‘behavioral health needs experience. This targeted treatment
should enable them to return to a lower level of treatment or family-based
settings, while providing their caregivers with skills to manage their needs

~ safely in the community and enable individuals to thrive at home in educatlon

. and in employment.

. 1.2. - The Contractor shall’ provide Residential Treatment Services based on the
levels of care identified in Section 2 Levels of Care. ) ‘

1.3. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services with the purpose of:
1.3.1. Prioritizing short-term treatment with the.goal of rapidly reunifying
_ children with their families and/or community support networks;
1.3.2.  Widening access to treatment for all who need it, enabling all
. individuals to access services, regardless of their prior or current
- involvement with child welfare or juvenile justice systems;

1.3.3." - Reducing reliance on hospltal emergency departments and reducmg_
the neéd for psychiatric hospitalization; _

1.3.4, Prioritizing family e_ngagement and providing caregiver education
and engagement in the individual's care and recognizing that families
and caregivers are an integral part of the Treatment Team Meetings
/Child and Famlly Team

1.3.5. Providing services that ‘are trauma-informed and implementing
evidence-based practices to ensure the highest quality of care and
the best possible outcomes for the individual;

1.3.6.  Ensuring treatment is available along a continuum of care which

. delivers 'tailored treatment plans for each child according to their
individual needs, and at a range of different levels of intensity;

1.3.7. Coordinating effectively and seamlessly with key partner entities"
including the Care Management Entities (CME), the conflict free
assessor (CAT), the chlld s school district, family and permanency

DS
| - - | l €T
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Re5|dentlal Treatment Services for Children’'s Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

1.4,

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

18.

'.teams, and DCYF staff to deliver treatment according to System of
Care principles;

1.3.8. Cultivating strong community networks. around the individual to
support long-term thriving in community settings after discharge;

1.3.9. Providing adequate funding for service delivery, recognizing the
importance of paying what it takes to deliver results for hlgh quahty _
programs;

1.3.10. Supporting and improving the transition of the individual from
residential treatment into their home community, by utilizing
oversight and supportive transitional services through CME;

1.3.11.  Early targeted treatment equipping the individual and their families
" with the skills to successfully transition into adulthood by restoring,
rehabilitating, or maintaining their capacity to successfully function in
the community, and diminish their rieed for more mtenswe levels of

care; and

1.3.12.  Providing programming that offers a home like atmosphere and™
access to the community. ' '

The Contractor shall accommodate referrals from ail over State and shouid
prioritize referrals of NH mdnwduals

The Contractor shall prowde residential treatment seérvices for children, youth,
and yodng adults ages 5 to under-age 21 who have more intensive behavioral
and mental health needs that cannot be met safely in the commumty without
intensive .supports. The Contractor may tailor their residential treatment
services to serve a target population within the required age range.

The Contractor shall implement New Hampshire's System of Care to serve
many different kinds of emotional, behavioral, and mental health needs of
children, including providing more intensive, focused, high-quality residential

_ treatment for those with the most significant, acute behavioral health needs

when required.

. . . . §
The Contractor shall ensure services are provided to all New Hampshire

) eligible individuals defined in Section 1.6 and shall prioritize services first for

these individuals before accepting out of state individuals who are notidentified
as New Hampshire residents, but who need this level of care.

The Contractor shall ensure residential treatment services:

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04 .Easler Seals New Hampshire, Inc. - Centractor Initials ;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

1.8.1.

“ Shall be licensed and certified. Those that are not currently certiﬁed;

licensed and accredited, shall complete these requirements within 6

. months from contract approval unless otherwrse agreed upon by the

1.8.2.

183,

1.8.4.

Department.
Shall comply with- all federal, and state laws, regulatlons and rules
as follows, but are not limited to: ' :

1821 RSA 170-E:
1.8.2.2. . RSA170-G:8,
1.823.  RSA126-U;
1.8.24. - RSA135-F:
1.8.2.5. He-C 4001;
1.8.2.6. He-C 6350; and
1.8.2.7. He-C 6420.

if-not located in New Hampshire, shall comply with all federal and
state laws, regulations and. rules of their state. In addition,
Contractors shall follow:

1.8.31. . RSA126-U;
1.8.3.2. He-C 6350; and
1.8.3.3. He-C 6420.

Shall be accredited by the Joint Commission, Council’ on
Accreditation - (COA), . or Commission on Accreditation of

" Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF) for Levels 1 (optional), 2, 3, and 4.

1.8.5.

Shall ensure clinical and medical residential treatment services align
with accreditation and the level of care requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall accommodate visits of the DCYF staff, Juvenile Probation
~and Parole Officer (JPPO), or Child Protective Service Worker (CPSW). _
1.10. In the event of a conflict between applicable federal and state laws and rules

the Contractor shall follow the most prescriptive laws and rules
1.11. Staffmg, Training and Development

1111,

1.11.2.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04

B-1.0

Talent Strategy

1.11.1.1.  The Contractor shall develop, |mplement and maintain a
creative and effective talent strategy to recruit, train, and
retain staff, in order to ensure staff are committed and
_trained in providing high quality treatment and outcomes
for individuals. .

Staffing Ratios

1.11.2.1. The Contractor shall provide a comprehensive staffing

model! corresponding to each Level of Care that meeis or
- i €r

Easler Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department.-of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Hea!th

EXHIBIT B

11122,

1.11.3.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04

B-1.0

exceeds accreditation standards and safety standards for
the needs of the individuals and staff to ensure the quality
of services is not compromised.
The Contractor shall notify the Department immediately,
by phone or email when any of the staff ratios fall below
the recommended levels and provide a plan for
Department review that describes strategies to: :
1.11.2.21. Ensure individual and staff safety is . -
, maintained at all times.
1.11.2.22, Ensure quality of 'servic_es is not
o compromised. '
1.11.2.2.3. Recruit staff to fill those positons as qmckly
as poss;ble to minimize how long the
: posntlons are vacant. ‘

Staff Training and Development

1.11.3.1.

1.11.3.2.
1.11.3.3.

1.11.3.4.

1.11.3.5.

The Contractor shall develop and implement staff training
to on board an'd_ retain staff to meet all requirements of
applicable licensing, accreditation standards, and
effective treatment and indicate the timeframes for .
tralnlng

The training program shall be a comprehenswe schedule

‘that support orientation, ongoing training, refreshers and

annual training. .
The Contractor shall ensure all new staff complete"'
required training prior to being counted within the staff
supervision ratio

The Contractor shall develop and implement staff tralnlng
that includés but is not limited to the: oy

- 1.11.3.4.1. Trauma model and other evidence-based

practices  utilized in treatment and
incorporate  applicable concepts and
strategies. e -
1.11.3.4.2. Clinical Evidence-Based Practices used to
deliver the residential treatment services.
De-escalation and restraint model which supports the
limited use . of restrains or seclusion in accordance with
RSA 126-U and aligns with the Six Core Strategies ©.

: . :os
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

1.11.3.6. The Contractor shall develop and implement training for
‘staff, individuals and their families on Family and Youth
: Engagement which includes but is not limited to:.
1.11.3.6.1. Working with the Department's Division of
. Children, Youth, and Families to provide
Better Together with birth parents for
clinicians; family workers or like roles and
other staff who would be .working with
families within the first. year of this
.Agreement. _ '
1.11.3.6.2. Working "with the University of New
' Hampshire Institute on Disability'to provide
Renew Training for programs which focus on
youth fourteen (14) and older  whose
permanency plan “is - Another Planned
Permanent Living Arrangement (APPLA) or .
.Independent Living programs. .
21.11.3.7. The Contractor shall ensure all staff who interact Wwith the
individuals and their families are trained in-the trauma
model regardless of whether or not they are responsible
for supervision, clinical, medical or eduAcationai services.
1.12.. Collaborative Care
1.12.1.. The Contractor shall work in partnersh|p with CME and CAT
- Contractors to ensure individuals are referred, admitted, discharged,
and transitioned in_a timely manner and in allgnment with the
i} individual's clinical needs. - :
St 1.12.2.  The Contractor shall work with the Department's CME Contractors
‘ - regarding care coordination, discharge planning, and transitional
support to a more appropriate form of care or home and community
_settings, and aftercare services. -
1.12.3. The Contractor shall accept referrals based on the CAT Level of Care
“Recommendations and work with the Department’s CAT Contractor
to receive the individual's comprehensive assessment for treatment .
to incorporate the CAT's |dentn‘"ed short and long term individual .
treatment goals.
1.12.4. The Contractor shall maintain clear communlcatlon with all prowders
the multidisciplinary team, and especially with the individual andtheir -
child and family team.

:DS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

1.13. Admissions, Discharges and Transitions
- 1.43.1. . The Contractor shall accept the standardized referral form that is -
developed by the Department.
" . 1.13.2. The Contractor shall rapidly make acceptance decisions within

- seven (7) calendar days from receiving the referrals and make
accommodations to admit the |nd|V|duaI into the r85|dent|al treatment’
‘services. :

1.13.3: The Contractor shall ask and provnde the individual with an
opportunity to identify any gender nonconforming or identification as
lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or intersex, for-the purposes of:
1.13.3.1. Making housing, bed, program, education, for clients with

the gba! of keeping all clients safe and free from abuse; '
1.13.3.2.. " Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or intersex clients
shall not be assigned in particular room other
; assignments solely on the basis of such identification
status; ‘ o '
1.13.3.2.1. Intake Coordinator shall consider
* assignment of transgender or intersex
clients on a case-by-case basis when
deciding where to assign the client for room
and other assignments as applicable, with .
the goal of ensuring the cllents health and -
_ safety; - : :
1.13.3.2.2. Atransgender or intersex cllent S OWN Views
with respect. to the client's safety will be
, given serious consideration;

1.13.4. For individuals other than those outlined in Section 1. 17.5., the

Contractor shall appropriately assign the individua! a room based on
" needs of the population, the culture of the milieu and the clinical
: needs presented by the individual at the time of admission.

1.13.5. The Contractor may accept individuals into residential treatment

o . services in limited cases without the residential treatment level of
care determination if there IS an emergency that i |s supported by the

Department.
1.13.5.1. If after the emergency admission is made and if it is
. _ determined that the individual's level of care is different

from the residential treatment level of care, then the

Contractor will work with the child and family fo - -

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04 . Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Contractor Initials

. . 6/24/2021
B-1.0 . Page 6 of 40 ale



DocuSign Envelope |D: 3178FB2A-D3D4-48AE-B15C-FC3AF332F3B6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’'s Behavioral Health

EXHIBITB

1.13.6.

1.13.7.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04

8-1.0

support a transition to a more appropriete level of care
which aligns with the needs of the individual. '
Discharge and Transition
1.13.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure the individual's needs are
" satisfied, the individual does not affect other individuals
being served, and the individual is not discharged
" because they demonstrate behaviors described in the
target population. ,
1.13.6.2. The Contractor shall provide active residential treatment
services and treatment for the individual from the time of
admission until the time the individuatl is able to transition
successfully to a more appropriate residential tréeatment
~level of care or to their family and home and community.
1.13.6.3. In -order to provide individuals with successful and:
supported transitions, the Contractor shall work with the
individuals family, caregivers, community behavioral
health providers, DCYF, CME, peer support providers,
school district and the next treatment providers as follows
but is not limited to:
1.13.6.3.1. Inviting CME staff working with the mdmdual
to treatment team meetings. '
1.13.6.3.2. Translating- the treatment * and - skills
developed by the individual dunng their
course of treatment.
1.13.6.3.3. Sharing . and  transferring  pertinent
- information prior to discharge .about
progress and improvements made by the
individual to ensure continuity of treatment |n
. the community
1.13.6.3.4. Inviting CME staff, child and family team to
_participate in treatment planning and
dischargeftransition planning.
1.13.6.4. The Contractor shall.choose to discharge when a child is .
in an acute psychiatric hospital for more than 7 days.
The Contractor shalt complete a comprehensive discharge and
transition plan, which includes a strong focus on family and caregiver
education and involvement in the individual's aftercare in order to

prioritize episodic lengths of stay and for the purpose_of, the
| €T
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-1.13.8.

1.13.9.

1.13.10.

individual's successful transition from residential treatment to-home,
school, and community as soon as possible.

The Contractor shall start discharge and transition planning on‘the -
individual's day of admission by coordinating planning with the
individuals, their families and community-based service providers.
The Contractor shall ensure the individual's treatment plan includes’
discharge plans and coordination of services to ensure appropriate,
reasonable and safe discharge plans for the continued treatment of
the individual's condition and continued care with the individual, their
family, school and community upon discharge. :
The Contractor shall ensure families and caregivers are an mtegral
part of the Treatment Team and Child, Family and Permanency.

‘Team, and closely collaborate with the referent and CME to build
- attainable transition plans into adulthood that support the individual
~in their next steps in life.

1.13.11.

1.13.12.

1.13.13.

1.13.14.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04
B-1.0

The Contractor shall hold a bed and not eject or dlscharge an
individual in the event of a temporary psychiatric hospitalization or
some other event that would require the child to be away from the
program for no more than seven (7) calendar days. The Contractor
shall accept the individual back into the program .within seven (7)
calendar days to resume their course of treatment. The Contractor
may hold the bed longer than seven (7) calendar days if approved by
DHHS. Unless approved after seven (7) bed hold days, the vendor:
shall discharge the child from the program.

The Contractor shall work with the Department and other key .
partners to develop discharge policies and practices that include no
reject from being admitted to and no eject from residential treatment.
Unplanned discharges from residential treatment will only be allowed
by the Department in extreme circumstances of violence, acute
psychiatric care needs, arrests and acute medical care needs.

This does not prevent a Contractor, referral or Child and Family team
from a mutual deC|S|on of a planned transition to an alternatlve :
setting. :

The Contractor shall ensure in aI! cases of termination of services
the right to appeal and the appeal process pursuant to He-C 200 are
explained to the client. " '
The Contractor may deny admission to a program if any of

the following circumstances are applicable:

:os
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1.13.14.1. There are no openings at the time of referral;
1.13.14.2. The age of the referred child is greatly different than the
' current milieu;

1.13.14.3. There are staffing concerns at the program that would

) require a hold on new admissions; :

1.13.14.4. There are specialty Care needs revealed durlng their .
‘course of treatment;

1.13.14.5. Theré were referrals made to specialty care programming.-
when specialty care services were not a match;

1.13.14.6. The individual's needs fall well outside the program
model; :

1.13.16. The Contractor may request a dascharge for individuals from a
residential treatment program if any. of the foIIowmg circumstances
are applicable:

-1.13.15.1. New information has mdlcated that the child requires
speciality care that the current program does not offer;
1.13.15.2. The Child has increased aggression that has resulted in
excessive property damage or physical harm to staff and
self and is not improving over time,.indicating a higher
level of care is needed: and :
1.13.15.3. The child's level of mental health symptoms have
exceeded the level of care being provided at the program
and an appropriate transition plan has been determined.

1.13.16. Contractor shall deliver treatment and provide services to accepted

" referrals until the- child’s level of need is reduced and their treatment
,goals have been met.

1.13.17. The Departmentwall monitor denials, admissions, and discharges as
. part of continuous quality assurance and program outcomes and
reserves the right to review and approve or deny denials.

1.14. Restraint and Seclusion Practices
1.14.1.  The Contractor shall comply with RSA 126-U.
1.14.2.  The Contractor shall utilize a de-escalation and restraint tralnlng ‘
“which supports the limited use of. restraint or seclusion in RSA 126- .
. -Uand aligns with the Six Core Strategies ©. _

1.14.3.  The Contractor shall develop and implement policies and methods
to reduce and.eliminate. use of restraint and seclusion practices by
incorporating the Six Core Strategies for Reducing Seclusion and

:ns
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1.15.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04

B-1.0

1.14.4.

Restraint Use ©, for Department review, including but not limited to

the following:
1.14.3.1.
1.14.3.2.
1.14.33.
1.14.3.4.
1.14.3.5.
1.14.3 6.

Mandt,

"Handle with Care, or
Another model approved by the Department
The Contractor shall work with the Department and other partners

towards a zero restraint practlce

1.14.5,

Children’s System of Care Values’

1.15.1.

1.15.1.1,

Therapeutic Crisis Intervention (TCI.),
Crisis Prevention Institute (CPI),
Professional Crisis Management (PCM),

The Contractor shall develop restraint and seclusion policies, and
develop a method .of review that will support the reduction and
elimination of restraint and seclusion.

The Contractor shall provide services that ahgn with the followmg
System of Care values:

Youth Voice and Engagement

1.15.1.1.1.

hJ

The Contractor shall ensure resndentlal
treatment services and treatment are youth

1.‘15.1.1'.1'.1.

1.15.1.1.1.2.

- driven as required by RSA 135-F by:

Having the individual
determine the types and mix of
services and supports needed

using their strengths and
needs. :
Having the individual make
decisions about treatment

. priorities and goals to be
included in the treatment
plans.

1.15.1.1.1.3.

1.15.1.1.1.4.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Page 10 of 40

Using Frequent clear and
concise communication free of
jargon that promotes respect
and that individuals feel valued
and heard.

Having an environment that is
welcoming, comforting and

comfortable for all ages.
| €T
. Contractor Initials

6/24/2021

Date



" DocuSign Envelope 1D: 3178FBBA-D3D4-4BAE-B15C-FC3AF332F3B6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
. Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health

EXHIBITB

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04

_ B-1.0

1.15.1.1.2. The Contractor shall incorporate a youth
voice into program- design and delivery,
praétice, and clinical services which include
providing youth oppdrtunities such as:

1.151.1.2.1.

Facilitating their own treatment
team meetings to the degree

. that would be both productive

1.15.1.1.2.2.

and clinically appropriate. _
Voicing their concerns or
grievances about - program

“policies and procedures, and

1:15.1.1.2.3.

- 1:.15.1.1.2.4.

participating in any reform.
efforts. , '
Running leadership groups or
programs such as student
council or youth advisory
boards.

Developing a youth ' peer =
mentor model. '

1.45.1.2. Family Voice and Engagement

1.15.1.2.1. The Contractor shall

ensure residential

treatment services and treatment are family-
driven as required by RSA 135-F in order to
improve treatment outcomes by:

1154210
1.15.1.2.1.2.
1.15.1.2.1.3.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Page 11 of 40

Having the family determine .
the types and mix of services
and supports needed using the

individual's  strengths  and
needs. -
Having the family in decision
making - about treatment
priorities and goals to be
included in the individual's
treatment plans.

Using frequent clear and

concise communication free of

-jargon that promotes respect -

:os
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and parents feels valued and
heard.
1.15.1.2.1.4. Having an environment that is
' welcoming, and has space for
families that is natural, inviting,
. and comforting.
1.15.1.2.2. The Contractor’'s engagement with the famlly
' shall include but not be limited to:
1.15.1.2.2.1. Encouraging families to be full
_ - _ participants in their children's
Lo ‘ ongoing care including
participation in  clinical
appointments. .
1.15.1.2.2.2. Welcoming natural support
: ' networks and professionals as
a support to the family and
youth.
1.15.1.2.2.3. Having flexible visitation
policies that promote face-to-
face  contact, supported
visitation as well as technology
that.-prioritizes the individual's
connections.
1.15.1.2.2.4. Encouraging parents and
family to remain responsible
for the care of their children
including, transportation when
it is necessary, feasible, and
appropriate.

-1.16. Cultural and Linguistic Diversity
1:16.1. The Contractor shall deliver services that meet the cultural and
linguistic needs of the diverse populations by:
1.16.1.1. Having services reflect the cultural, racial and ethnical
and linguistic needs of the pdpulation.
1.16.1.2. " Understanding the family's and their community’s values '
and cultures. '

:os
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1.16.2.

1.16.3.
1.16.4.

1.16.5.

1,16.6.

1.16.1.3. Attempting to hire individuals to provide services who are
representative and knowledgeable of these values and
cultures.

The Contractor shall regularly collect and review Race, Ethnicity and

Language (REAL) and Sexual Orientation or Gender Identity or

Expression (SOGIE) data to identify health disparities and make

necessary system changes in partnership with _individuals and

families to address these health disparities as necessary.

The Contractor's staff shall attend Culturally and Linguistically

Appropriate Services (CLAS) training provided by the Department,

The Contractor shall complete an organizational assessment to

identify areas for improvement.

The Contractor shall make CLAS plans available to the Department

for review to ensure the standards are being met and to ensure

continuous improvement.

The Contractor's staff shall have ongoing participation in facilitated

conversations on culture and diversity to exblore their own values,

beliefs and traditions, and the'impligations they have on their work.

" 1.17. Multidisciplinary Approach’

1.17.1.

1.17.2.

1.17.3.

The Contractor shall prowde residential treatment in a cohesive
manner to meet the needs of the individual and family by using a
multidisciplinary team approach, which includes team members from
disciplines at the program, such as but not limited to:

1.17.1.1. Residential

1.17.1.2. - Education

1.17.1.3.. Clinical Medical

The Contractor's multidisciplinary team at the program must prioritize
communication with the child and family and the team members
external to the residential treatment program.

The Contractor shall maintain clear communication with aII team
members across all disciplines.

1.18. Treatment Settings

1.18.1.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04
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‘The Contractor shall provide treatment settmgs that are;

1.18.1.1. Nurturing.

1.18.1.2. Family-friendly.

1.18.1.3. Provide for normaléy : :

1.18.1.4. Approximate community-based settings in as many ways
as possible. '

o :os . .
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1.18.1.5. Safe. , _
1.18.1.6. 'Predictable and consistent across education, residential
. and clinical services. .
1.18.2. - The Contractor shall provide services at the Iocatlon( ) approved by
-the Department unless a plan for an alternative location and
transition plan has been approved. -
1.19. Targeted and Active Treatment
1.19.1.  The Contractor shall prioritize treatment goals based on the CAT the
: _ Child and Family team, and the expertise .of the clinical program.
1.19.2.  The Contractor’s residential treatment multidisciplinary team and the
~ Child and Family Team shall complete a treatment plan for each
~ individual following the completion of a psychosocial assessment,
_ which shall include: ,
1.19.2.1. Goals and objectives that are based on the CAT report,
recommended by the multidisciplinary team, and child
and_'family team and that are most important for the
individual to achieve successful discharge and transition
to their family, home and community;
1.19.2.2. Actionable needs identified in the CAT final report and
' CANS which shall be addressed upon admission and
_ prioritized throughout the course of treatment; and
1.19:2.3. Integrated program of therapies, activities, and
' experience'_s designed to meet the treatment goals.
1.19.3." The Contractor shall work in partnership with the child's sending and
' receiving (if applicable) school district to- assure the individual's
education needs are met and there are no gaps in educational ’
services - :

- 1.19.4.  As determined by the treatment plan, the Contractor shall provude
targeted and active treatment seven (7) days per week. Treatment
may include as follows but is not limited to: - ' '
1.19.4.1. Twenty-four (24) services,
1.19.4.2. Direct care, supervision, positive behavior management,

3 . and supportive services for daily living and safety,
1.19.4.3. - Family engagement, ' '
1.19.4.4. Consultation with other- professionals, including case

managers, primary care professionals, community-based
mental health providers, school staff, or other support
planners as often as needed,

:ns
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11195

1.19.4.5. Coordination of education services, and/or

1.19.4.6. Additional services based on the Level of Care identified
and the program mode!

The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services which

include consideration for: o

- 1.19.5.1. A carefully designed residential environment of care that

promotes trauma informed care and youth driven
services. '

. 1.19.5.2. The age and developmental level of the populahon

1.19.5.3. Young adults who are empowered to safely participate in
treatment decisions. .
1.19.5.4. Specific needs of DCYF-involved children, notlng the
. trauma caused by neglect, abuse and removal, and/or
involvement with the juvenile justice system

1 .20, Trauma Informed Care

1.20.1.

1202,

The Contractor shall understand, recognize,' and appropriately
respond to trauma in administering treatment and services by
utilizing the model identified in Se_ction-2 to provide trauma informed
care that supports staff and caregivers with the skills to aid and
engage individuals

The contractor's trauma model must adhere to the Departments
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 6 key prmmples of
a trauma informed approach: :

1.20.2.1.  Safety

1.20.2.2. Trustworthiness and Transparency

1.20.2:3. Peer Support o

1.20.2.4. Collaboration and Mutuality

1.20.2.5. . Empowerment, Voice and Choice

'1.20.2.6. Cultural, Historical, and Gender Issues

- 1.20.3.

The Contractor .shall embed and sustain trauma awareness,

. knowledge and skills. into the Con_tracter’s organizational culture, -

1.20.4.

1.20.5.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04
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practlces and policies.

The Contractor shall provide a trauma informed model that
demonstrates sensitivity to individuals who's needs prevent them
from living with their families during the course of treatment.

. The Contractor shall use this mode! and seek approval from the -
Department is using a different model.

/
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1.23. Aftercare

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04

1.21,

1.22.

B-10

1.20.6.

The contractor shall submit documentation upon request of the,

Department that demonstrates the implementation of the trauma
model. :

Evidence Based Practices

1.21.1,

1.21.2.

1.21.3.

1.21.4.

The Contractor shall ensure individuals receive the highest quality of -
care and the best possible treatment outcomes by using evidence-
based practices to treat and manage the individual's mental health
needs, which may include, but not limited to:

1.21.1.1.  Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy,'
1.21.1.2. Cognitive Behavior Therapy '

1.21.1.3. Dialectic Behavior Therapy

- 1.21.1.4. Motivational Interviewing

The Contractor shall ensure clinical practices are drawn from
systematic, empirical studies that draw on observation or experiment
and rigorous data analyses that are adequate to rest stated
hypotheses justify conclusions, and/or randomized control trials.
The Contractor shall explore and implement practices that are
adaptive, flexible, and address the needs of the population in a
targeted way. '

Contractors shall provide notice to the Department when they are
implementing a new Evidence Based Practice.

Clinical and Medical Standards

1.22:1.
1.22.2.

1.22.3.

1.22.4.

- 1.225.

1.22.6.

The Contractor shall provide clinical .and medical services, which’
align with accreditation and the level of care requirements.

The Contractor shall employ clinical professionals that ensure
effective treatment outcomes. . ‘
The Contractor shall provide . clinical treatment services in a
frequency to quickly stabilize the individual's symptoms and to meet
each individual's clinical needs.

. The Contractor shall explore new- or promising clinical and.

evidenced-based models over time.

The Contractor shall have personne! trained in CANS and those
personnel shall conduct the follow-up CANS when other appropriate
entities such as the CME have not conducted the.CANS. '
The contractor shall assure that treatment is clear across the
program and clear to the multidisciplinary team. '

: :os
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1.24.

1.25.

1.23.1.

1.23.2.

1.23.3.

The Contractor shall provide aftercare for Levels 2, 3, and 4 Unless

that program qualifies as CBAT or ICBAT.

The Contractor shall coordinate and work with the Department's CME

Contractors to provide six (6) months of aftercare services for an

individual who is being discharged from the residential treatment and

transitioned to their home and community. The Contractor shall work

with the CME and provide aftercare services which may include but

are not limited to the following activities:

1.23.2.1. Cbnsuitation with both the family, service providers and

CME.

1.23.2.2. Aftendance at any child and famlly team meetmgs which
~can be in person or virtually.

1.23.2.3. Phone calls with the family as needed. \

The Contractor shall make referrals to the Departments CME

Contractors for any individual who is not involved in DCYF and who is

. being discharged from the residential treatment and transitioned their

home and community. The Contractor shall work with the
Department’s CME Contractor or other aftercare services providing
aftercare services with the goal of reducing recidivism and reentry into
the residential treatment and other levels of reS|dent|aI treatment.

Medication Procedures

1.24.1.

The Contractor shall implement medlcatlon procedures in accordance
with applicable federal laws, and rules.

PoI|C|es and Procedures

1.25.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement written policies and .
procedures governing all aspects of its operation and services
provided including but not limited to: '
1.25.1.1.  Those required in 1.8.2 and 1.8.3.
1.25.1.2.  Written .policies and procedures to include a Code of

Ethics, which addresses the Contractor and all staff, as

well as a mechanism for reporting unethical conduct; -
1.25.1.3. A written policy and procedures mandating zero tolerance .
' toward all forms of sexual abuse and sexual harassment

and outlining the Contractor's approach'to preventing,

detecting, and responding to such conduct; _
1.25.1.4. A staffing plan that provides for adequate levels of staffing

to protect residents against sexual abuse;

_ s
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1.25.2.

1.25.15.

- 1.25.186.

1.25.1.7.
1.25.1.8.
1.25.1.9.

1.25.1.10.

1.25.1.11.

1.25.1.&2.

A written policy enshring an administrative or criminal
investigation is completed for all allegations of sexual
abuse and sexual harassment; :
Progressive staff discipline, leading to administrative
discharge,

Reporting and appealing staff grievances,

Reporting employee injuries

~ Client rights, grievance and appeals pohcnes and

procedures; )
Policies and procedure if the program conducts urine

“specimen collection., as applicable, that:
1.25.1.10.1. Ensures that the collection is conducted in a

manner which ‘preserves ‘client privacy as
much as possiblé and is accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rules; and

1.25.1.10.2. Policies and procedures intended to

~ minimize falsification, including but not

limited to:

-1.25.1.10.2.1. Temperature testing; and

1.25.1.10.2.2. Observations by same-sex

~ staff members.

Procedures for the protection of individual's records that
govern use- of records, storage, removal, conditions for
release of information and compliance with 42 CFR, Part
2 and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountablhty
Act (HIPAA); and
Procedures. related to quallty assurance and quahty
improvement.

The Contractor shall have policies and procedures to |mplement a
comprehensive client record system, in either paper or electronic form,

or both, that communicates information within the client record of each
client served in @ manner that is:

1.25.2.1.

1.25.2.2. .

1.25.2.3.
1.25.2.4.

RFP-2021-DBH-1 2-RES|D-0¢.1
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Qrganized
Easy to read and understand,;
Complete, containing all the parts, and

Up-to-date,
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1.26.

1.25.3.

. 1.254.

1.25.5.

1.25.6.

The Contractor shall have policies and procedures regardlng

collections of client fees, collections from private or public insurance,

and collections from other payers responsible for.the client's finances,

The Contractor shall develop, define and implement processes and

procedures for denial of service.

The Contractor shall be responsible for providing the followmg to any

client or the referral who is denied services:

1.25.5.1. Informing the client of the reason for denial;

1.25.5.2. - Assisting the client in identifying or accessing appropriate
available treatment;

1.25.5.3. Maintaining a détailed record of the. mformatlon or
assistance provided.

The Contractor shall establish policies and procedures establishing,

maintaining, and storing, in a secure and confidential manner, current

- personnel files for staff, contracted staff, volunteers or student’interns.

The Contractor shall ensure personnel files "are maintained in
accordance with personnel requirements. -

Residential Treatment Services Start up and Implementatlon for Tier 3 -
and Tier 4 Programs - :

1.26.1.

1.26.2.

1.26.3.

The Contractor -shall part|C|pate in a kick-off meeting with the

_ Department within thirty (30) calendar days of this Agreement's

Effective Date to review contract timelines, scope, and deliverables.
The Contractor shall participate in bi-weekly -{every other week)
telephone calls with the Department to review the status of the
development and implementation'foi the residential treatment, for at
least the first six (6) months of the Agreement. The Contractor shall:
1.26.2.1.  Provide a written bi- weekly progress report in advance of
' . the telephone call that summarizes:
1.26.2.1.1. Key work performed;
1.26.2.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues
- and problems and- provides a: solutlon or
mitigation strategy for each.
' 1.26.2.1.3. . Scheduled work for the upcoming week.

1.26.2.2.  Provide a report summarizing'the results of the status

telephone call.
The Contractor shall participate in implementation and operational site
visits and review of individual's files on a schedule provided by the

. ) :DS
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 Department. All Agreement deliverables, programs, and activities shall
be subject to review during this time. The Contractor shall:.
1.26.3.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for
a monitoring of Agreement compliance requirements..
1.26.3.2. Ensure the Department is provided W|th access that
includes but is not limited to:
1:26.3.2.1. Data.
1.26.3.2.2. - Financial records. X
1.26.3.2.3. Scheduled .access to Contractor work
) sﬂes/locatlonslwork spaces and assomated '
facilities.
'1.26.3.2.4.  Unannounced access to Contractor work
' - sites/locations/work spaces and associated
faciliies. '
1.26.3.2.5. Scheduled phone access to  Contractor
principals and staff. >
1.26.3.2.6. Individual files.

2. ReS|dent|al Treatment Levels of Care

2.1

The Contractor shall provide the reS|dent|aI treatment level(s) of care as

" defined in this Section 2.

2.2.

2.3.

The Contractor shall have or obtain certification for residential treatment- -
levels of care by the Department within six (6) months of txhélAgreemen't‘s
effective date and maintain said certification and re-apply for certification
annually, in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 6350
Certification for Payment Standards for Residential Treatment Prqgrams.

The Contractor shall provide up to the number of beds at the identified
location for each of the residential treatment levels of care outlined in the
table in Sectlon 2.3.2.

2.3.1. Inthe eventthat the Contractor changes their physical Iocatlon where
the residential treatment services are provided, the Contractor shall
notlfy the Department within 30 days prior to the move and prowde a
transition plan.

23.2 Re5|dent|al Treatment Levels of Care and Number of Contracted Beds
Vendors Location: \ '
. i Maximum Number '
Level of Care Name of the City/Town and of Contracted Beds Shared Beds
. Program . State - o
Reserved ' (.
' . S ‘ | Tl
RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04 . Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Contractor Initials -
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Reserved
Reserved '
-Level of Care 3, Raobert B. | Manchester, NH 10 N/A
Intensive Treatment, Jolicoerur Ed & '
Option A: Intensive Res Facility —
Treatment Boys
Easter Seals Lancaster, NH 6 N/A
Lancaster ' S
Easter Seals | Manchester, NH 39 . N/A
Zachary Road | - :
Robert B. Manchester, NH 5 N/A
| Jolicoeur Ed & : S
| Res Facility -
Krol
Reserved |
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
2.4.. Reserved . , ' -
- 2.5, Reserved
2.6. Reserved .
2.7. Level of Care 3, intensive Treatment, Option A: Intensive Treatment

2.7.1. The Contractor shall provide re_sidehtial treatment services Level of
Care 3, Intensive Treatment, Option A: Intensive Treatment for
individuals who have been adjudicated, abused: or neglected,
delinquent, and/or-in need of behavioral health services to in a
treatment settlng which offers a comprehensnve offering of
residential, ‘cllnlcal, and educational services which youth have

- access to. '

2.7.2. The Contractor shall provide services to individuals -~ for
approximately three (3) to nine (9) months using a multi-disciplinary,
self-contained, service dehvery approach that includes but |s not’
limited to: -

2.7.21: Highly structured treatment on a 24/7 basis,

2.7.2.2. Structured and safe, therapeutic milieu environment,

2.7.2.3. Medication Monitoring and man'a.gement,

2.7.2.4. Supervision on a continuous line of sight or dependent on
* the need of the individual. o

2.7.2.5. Concentrated individualized treatment @

RFP-2021-DBH—12-RESID-04 Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Conlractor Initials
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' 27.286.

2.7.2.7.
2.7.2.8.

27209

2.7.3.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04
B10

2.7.2.10.
2.7.2.11.
2.7.212.
©2.7.213.
2.7.214.
2.7.2.15.
2.7.2.16.

Staffing
2.7.3.1.

2.7.3.2.

Specialized assessment and treatment services.

Community Supports.

Access to public school education andlor an approved
special education program on site or subcontracted
Specialized social services. :

Behavior management.
Recreation.

Clinical Services.
Family Services.
Vocational Training.

Medication Monitoring, as clinically indicated.

Crisis Intervention.

The Contractor shall comply with the staffing requiremerits
. in New Hampshire Administrative Rule Part He-C 6350-
Certification for Payment Standards for Residential
Treatment Programs and Part He-C 6420 Medicaid

Covered Services.

Unless otherwise approved by a waiver by the Department
for the staffing ratios shown in Section 3, the Contractor
shall maintain the required staffing ratios as follows:

27321
© 273211,

i

273212

Direct Care Staff/Milieu:

Milieu: Day staff ratio is 1:3 and
more intensive ratios are

allowable based on program

population or program needs

Awake overnight; 1.6 and a
minimum of two staff available
for programs and position may

float on campus  or within
buildings.
2.7.3.2.2. Clinical Services :
' 2.7.3.2.21. Clinical staffing is at the

2.7.3.222.

discretion of the program if they
employ all the positions below. -
Available 24/7 and may be
telephonic or face to face

" depending on clinical need.

2.7.3.2.2.3.
2.7.3:224.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Page 22 of 40
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2 7.4. Supported Visits

-2.7.5.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04
B-1.0

1 2.7.3.2.25.
2.7.3.2.2.6.

Family Worker: 1:8

Case Manager and may be the
same position as Family
Worker, 1:8. :

‘A lower ratio must be used if the
clinician is fuifilling multiple
roles i.e. Family therapy and
famity worker as well as prlmary
clinician.

Board Certified Beha\noral
Analysts (BCBA) depending on
the population 1:10. -

273227

273228,

Medical Care:
2.7.3.2.3.1.

27323.
Nursing: available 24/7 and
shall be onsite regularly within
the campus or multiple
programs and may be a-shared
resource. On call after hours
and optional on site 24/7 based
on client needs.

Availability of prescriber
psychiatry on site. :
Physical Therapy or
Occupational Therapy may be
included in the program, which
shall be billed directly to
Medicaid. '

273232 or

2.7.3.23.3.

2.7.41.

2742

The Contractor shall provide facilitated face-to-face
supported visitation to the individual and their family at the .

" Contractor's residential treatment setting and may be

provided. at the individual's and family's home when safe
an appropriate. ‘ _
The Contractor shall provide supported visits in
appropriate - space(s), which is safe, feels welcoming,
inviting, and natural, and creates a place of comfort and
connectedness for all ages being served in the residential
treafment setting.

Educational Services

2.7.51.

The Contractor shall ensure the mdw:dual is connected to
the most appropriate educational services as deﬁied
o er

- Contractor Initials

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
6/24/2021
ate
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2.7.5.4.

2756

- 2.7.5.7.

2.7.6.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04
B-1.0

2752

2.7.5.3.

2.7.5.5.

by their treatment team and sending scheol district, when

.applicable.

The Contractor may connect the individual to the
individual's local community school or to-the individual's
school in their sending district when appropriate.

The Contractor shall provide onsite or subcontract with
Department approval a nonpublic and special educational
program.and/or an approved online educational curriculum
approved by the State of New Hampshlre Department of
Education

The Contractor shall connect the individual to higher
education for those who have graduated high school or
supporting individuals pursing higher education or
independent living with the following but not limited to:

" 2.7.5.4.1. -Transitional Services.

2.7.5.4.2. Vocational Services.

. 2.7.5.4.3. Formal Education.

2.7.5.4.4. Training Programs.
2.7.5.45. Independent Living Skills.
The Contractor shall work with the individual's sending

school and receiving district to ensure their educational
needs are met. When doing so, the Contractor shall obtain

" Release of Information sngned by the individual, or

individual's parent or guardian.

The Contractor shall retain client student records in
accordance with New Hampshire regulations.

Upon client discharge from residential treatment services,
the Contractor shall provide copies of the individual's
records of education and progress to the individual's
sending school.

Transportation

2.7.6.1.

. The  Contractor - shall  ensure individuals  have

transportation services to .and from services. and

appointments for the following but not limited to:

2.7.6.1.1. Court Hearings.

2.7.6.1.2. Medical/dental/behavioral (not provided by the
Department’'s contracted Medicaid Managed
Care organization (MCO) or if not appropriate
to be provided by the MCO).

:os
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Contractor Initials -
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EXHIBIT B .
2.7.6.1.3. School transportation (for what is not provided
by an individual education plan (IEP)).
2.7.6.1.4. Recreation (clubs, sports, work).
2.7.6.1.5. Family and sibling visits.
Other as required by the individual's treatment

2.7.6.1.6.

plan.

The Contractor shall coordinate or provide such
transportation as follows, including but not limited to:

276.21.

Working with parents or guardians to have the
parent or guardian provide transportation for
their child, youth or young adult, when it is safe

. and appropriate for a parent or guardian to

27622

2.7.6.23.

* provide such transportation.

Working with any of the Department's
applicable Medicaid Managed Care
Contractors for transportation to Medicaid
appointments. :
Use of Contractor-owned vehicles in
accordance with Section 2.3.3 below.

In the event the Contractor uses a Contractor-owned-
vehicle(s), the Contractor shall:

2.7.6.3.1.

2.76.3.2.

27633,

2.76.34.

Comply with all applicable Federal and State
Department of Transportation and Department
of Safety regulations.

Ensure that all vehicles are registered
pursuant to New Hampshire Administrative
Rule Saf-C 500 and inspected in accordance
with New Hampshire Administrative Rule Saf-
C 3200, and are in good working order.
Ensure all drivers are licensed in accordance
with New- Hampshire Administrative . Rules,
Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing, and Saf-C 1800
Commercial drivers licensing, as applicable.
Ensure vehicle insurance coverage shall be in
amounts that are in keeping with industry
standards and that are acceptable to the
Contractor and the Department, the minimum
amounts of which shall be not less than
$500,000 for automobile liability to include -
bodily injury and property damage to one
person for any one accident, and $750,000,
for bodily injury and property damage to two or

more persons for any one accident, inclyding
| €1

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. - Contractor Initials
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2.8.
2.9.

2.10.
211,
212,

coverage for all owned, hired, or non-owned
vehicles, as applicable.

‘Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved

Reserved

3.. Specific Residential Treatment Program Requirements

3.1.

3.2.
3.3,
3.4,
3.5.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04

B-1.0

The Contractor shall provide the following staffing model{s) and/or

specialty services for each of their defined levels of care.

3.1.1.

Should the Contractor have variations in their personnel and/or in

their specialty care, if any, in this Section 3, the Contractor shall

submit a plan in writing to the Department to come into compliance

or an alternative plan for Department for approval to meet the intent
of the positions, which were negotiated. The Department will provide

approyal in writing.
Reserved
Reserved

Reserved

Level of Care 3, Ihtensive Treatment, O‘ption A: Intensive Treatment

3.5.1. Lancaster

3.5.1.1

The Contractor shall maintain the following staffing Ratios

for this level of care as outlined in the table below:

. Ratio
- e Section 2 Department
Title Position . Stgfﬁng Approved
equirements Variati
ariation
Direct Care 1st shift Milieu 1:3 No Variation
| Direct Care 2nd shift. Milieu 1:3 No Variation
Direct Care Overnight- Awake overnight: | No Variation
1:6,
minimum 2 staff
available for
programs
Clinical Ratio 1:8 No Variation
Family Worker 1:8 No Varigfion

Page 26 of 40
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Family Therapist 1:8 ‘None Allocated
Transportation i Not Required None Allocated
Case Manager 1:8 or see Family | See Family
Worker ‘ Worker; None
. , Allocated
Board certified behavioral 1:10 (Depends on | None Allocated
analyst (BCBA) ' population) '
Nursing Staff - ' 24/7, available, 1:12
: and
shall be onsite
regularly
Psychiatrist ' Availability of None Allocated

prescriber or
' psychiatry on site
| Psychologist Availability of None Allocated
prescriber or
: psychiatry on site
Medical Doctor, APRN . ‘Not Required Consultant
* Not'required :
indicates that a
specific _
position/personnel
was not required
or as a ratio

3.51.2  The Contractor shall 'piovide' residential treatment
services for individuals with the following specialty needs,
to be determined by an independent assessor, which
includes, butis not limited to:

3.5.1.21 |Intellectual and Developmental Disability
. (IDDY; : '

3.5.1.2.2 Neurobehavioral needs;

3.5.1.2.3 Aggressive behavior,

3.5.1.2.4 Episodes Moderate Self-Injurious Behaviors;

3.5.1.2.5 Severe Medical Needs

352  Robert B Jolicoeur Ed & Res Facility-Boys

3.5.21 - The Contractor shall maintain the following staffing’
Ratios for this level of care as outlined in the table below:
. Ratio
Section 2
- Title Position . Staffing Department
- Requirements Approved
. : R : Variation
.| Direct Care 1st shift Milieu 1:3 " 7| No Variation
Direct Care 2nd shit - Milieu 1:3 No Variation '- ‘?\
RFP-2621-DBH-12¢RESID,-04 . * Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Contractor Initials
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Direct Care Overnight

Awake overnight:
1:6, _
minimum 2 staff
available for

‘programs’

1:3

Clinical Ratio

1:8

No Variation

Family Worker.

1:8

No Variation

‘Family Therapist

1:8

Not Allocated

Transportation

Not Required .

" Not Allocated

Case Manager -

1:8 or see Family
Worker

See Family
Worker; Not
allocated

Board certified behavioral
analyst (BCBA)

1:10 (Depends on
population)

Not Allocated

Nursing Staff

24/7, available,
and

| shall be onsite |

regularly

1:6 LPN

Psychiatrist

. | Availability of

prescriber or
psychiatry on site

Consultant

Psychologist

Availability of
prescriber or

| psychiatry on site

Not Allocated

Medical Doctor, APRN

Not Required

Consultant

* Not required,
indicates that a
specific
position/persannel
was not required
or as a ratio

3.5.2.2 The Contractor shall provide

residential

treatment

- services for individuals with the following specialty needs,
to be determined by an independent assessor, which
- includes, but is not limited to: : |
Intellectual and Developmental Disability

3.5.2.2.1

35222
35223
3.52.2.4
35225

- (IDD);

Neurobehavioral needs;
Aggressive behavior;
Episodes Moderate Self-Injurious Behawors
: Highly Aggressive Behavior
3.53 Robert B. Jolicoeur Educational & Residential Facility- Krol

House

3.5.3.1 The Cor)tractor'shall maintain the following stafﬁng_ Ratios
" for this level of care as outlined in the table belo

\E
Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT B
Section 2 De Raa:':lrgent |
Title Position Staffing Ap d
Requirements Vpp.roye
ariation
Direct Care 1st shift Milieu 1:3 No Variation
Direct Care 2nd shift Milieu 1:3 No Variation
Direct Care Overnight Awake overnight: | No Variation
- 1:8,
minimum 2 staff
available for
programs
Clinical Ratio 1:8 No Variation
Family Worker 11:8 No Variation
Family Therapist 1:8 Not Allocated

Transportation

Not Required

Not Allocated

Case Manager

| 1:8 or see Family

-Not Allocated;

prescriber or
psychiatry on site

Worker see Family
: worker

Board certified behavioral 1:10 (Depends on | Not Allocated
analyst (BCBA) population)
Nursing Staff 2417, available, LPN 1:6

and ~

shall be onsite

regularly
Psychiatrist Availability of - Consultant
. prescriber or

psychiatry on site | .
Psychologist Availability of None Allocated

Not Required

Consultant

Medical Doctor, APRN

* Not required
indicates that a
specific
position/personne!
was not required
or as a ratio

3.5.3.2 " The Contractor shall pr

3.5.3.2.1

(IDD), .
Neurobehavioral needs;
Aggressive behavior;

3.563.2.2
3.53.2.3

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
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3.5.3.24  Episcdes i\ﬁoderate Self-Injurious Behaviors;

3.5.3.2.5  Highly Aggressive Behavior
Zachary Road

3.5.4:1  The Contractor shall maintain the following staffing Ratios
for this level of care as outlined in the table below:

Section 2 Ratio
Title P-osition Staffing Department
7 Requirements Approved
" a ) Variation
Direct Care 1st shift Milieu 1:3 No Variation
Direct Care 2nd shift Milieu 1:3 No Variation
Direct Care Overnight Awake overnight. | No Variation
o 1:6, , .
minimum 2 staff
available for-
programs _
Clinical Ratio 1:8 ‘ No Variation
Family Worker 1:8 : + | No Variation
Family Therapist 1:8 None Allocated

Transportation

Not Required—

| None Allocated

Case Manager

1.8 or see Family

None Allocated;

Worker See family
. worker
Board certified behavioral 1:10 (Depends on | None Allocated
analyst (BCBA) population) _ -
Nursing Staff 24/7, available, LPN (2 FTE)
and RN (4 FTE) -
shall be onsite ) :
) regularly
Psychiatrist _Availability of Consultant
prescriber or
‘ -psychiatry on site
Psychologist Availability of None
prescriber or
psychiatry onsite
Medical Doctor, APRN Not Required Consultant
APRN Not Required 1FTE
| Dietitian ‘Not Required 1FTE

Page 30 of 40
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Exhibits Ihcorporated

-Reserved

EXHIBIT B
* Not required
indicates that a
specific
position/personnel
was not required
or as a ratio
3.54.2 The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services
for individuals with the following specialty needs, to be
determined by an independent assessor, which includes,
but is not limited to: . : _
3.54.21 Intellectual and Developmental Disability
(IDD);
3.5.4.2.2 Neurobehavioral needs
3.5.4.2.3 Aggressive behavior;
3.5.4.2.4 Episodes Moderate Self-Injurious Behaviors;
3.5.4.25 Highly Aggressive Behavior
3.6. Reserved
" -3.7. Reserved
3.8. Reserved
3.9. Reserved
3.10. i

4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit |, Busmess Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties:

4.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data refated to this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security

Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Reporting Requirements

' :::65
Easter Seals New Hamps;hire. Ing. Contractor Initials
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5 1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to ensure compliance with the
federal requirements, ‘the goals of the System of Care, and successful
delivery of the scope of work by reporting, at a minimum, on the data in Table
A Key Qutput'and Process Data as follows:

Table A

Key Output and Process Data

The data below shall be for all individuals who are connected to, referred by or funded by
DHHS unless otherwise requested and identified by DHHS.

Number of _childrén currently placed in the program

Percent of contracted beds currently ugéd

Turnover information {e.g., total number of staff, how many left, and reason why)

Number of de_lys the program does not meet contractually required staffing ratios

Number of accepted referrals/new admissions {and location prior to admission)

Number of rejected referrals -

Number of children discharged (and the reason for discharge)

Demographic information for each child (e.g., age, gender/sex, DCYF involvement, .
racefethnicity, primary language preference, identification with sex not assigned on birth
certification, sexual orientation)

Key dates per child: referral, acceptance, admission, disc-harge

Number of family planning team treatment meetings {and caregiver, youth attendance)

Number of treatment meetings led by youth

Number_of contacts with familylcaregivers

Percent of children placed outside of their school district

CANS score information per child (from CANS system report - e.g., score # at referral, at

discharge)
l .
Number of restraints r—os
.. P ol
: |31
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Number of seciusions

Discharge locations

Whether or not the CME was involved

"~ 53.

52

5.4..

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

‘The contractor shall provide any interpretation, justification or analysis of the ‘

data provided in the report referenced in 4.1

The Contractor shall provide reports monthly with any change in
programming, clinical treatment, any changes in evidenced base practices or
staffing ratios that can impact the quality of services delivered and individual
and staffing safety. ' |

The Contractor shall submit data in accordance with RSA 126-U which
includes-but is not limited to

54.1. Incidents of RSA 126-U:10

542 New -Hampshire Prog,réms 'Mo'nthly totals of all children during
residential time, regardless of referral source : :

54.3. :Total number of restraints
5.4.4. Total number of seclusions

The Contractor shall submit data and reports based on the request of the

Department in the manner, format and frequency requested by the

Department which shall include but is not limited to:
5.5.1. Incident reports of

5.5.1 1 : Restraint

5.5.1.2.. Seclusion

5.5.1.3. Serious injury both including and not including restraint
and seclusion '

5514,  Suicide attempt

The Contractor shall provide data monthly and work with the data team to
provide any clarity or correction of the material.

The Department reserves the right to establish additional data reporting and
deliverable requirements throughout the duration of the Agreement,

:DS
RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04 Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Contractor Initials :
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6. Performance Measures

6.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance and evaluate program
results based on the key performance metrics in Table B as follows:

Category

Table B

Kéy performance metrics:

% of referrals that receive a response to the referral source within 24 hours [e.g.,
email or phone call on availability and next steps]

Referral L '
Median time from referral to acceptance
Median time from referral to admission
Family & % of treatment meetings where youth participates
youth % of treatment meetings where caregiver participates
cngagement - . . . T .
g8 Median # of contacts with family/caregivers per month per child -
% of children with improved CANS scores after 3 and 6 months (based on CANS
Quality of system report which DHHS will access)
treatment.

Median # of restraint/seclusion incidents per child and % of children with any
restraint/seclusion during treatment stay ) '

Transition &
discharge

: setting after 6 and 12 months {based on internal data which DHHS will access

Median length of stay: days from admission to discharge to less restrictive setting

% children discharged to home-based setting — overalt and within 30, 60, 90, 180,
and 365 days

% of children who remain in either a lower-treatment setting OR home-based

through CME and DCYF system)

% of children receiving referral to afier-care services (e.g., Residential treatment
oversight, Fast Forward) before discharge

% of DCYF-involved children who have achieved their permanency goal at 12
months after discharge (based on internal DCYF data which DHHS will access)

-6.2. Performanceilmprovement

hY

The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance and

6.2.1;
’ . - . s’
improvement activities with the Department and other paE ng[F
RFP-2021-DBHJ-12-RESID-04 ~ Easter Seals New Hampshire,_lnc. ’ Contractor Initials
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6.2.2.

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04
B-1.0

‘and stak-'eholders'to ensure that continuous performance and

program improvement contributes in a positive way to the lives of
individuals adults and their families by focusing on system level
outcomes such as:

6.2.1.1.
6.2.1.2.
6.2.1.3.

6.2.1.4.
6.2.1.5.
6.2.1.6.

Reduced use of psychiatric and other residential

~ treatment,

- Reduced use of juvenile corrections and other out of
. home placements.

Reduced. use of emergency departments and other
physical health services.

Reduced use of out of district placement for school.
Increased school attendance and attalnment '

Increased employment | for careglvers

The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance and
performance improvement activities requested by the
Department, including but not hmlted to:

6.2.2.1.

6.2.2.2.

6.2.2.3.

6.2.2.4.
6.2.25.

6.2.2.6.

6.2.2.7. .

Easter Seals New Hampsh:re, ne. Contractor Initials

Submitting reports at a frequency defined by the
Department on Agreement compliance reports.

Providing to the Department narrative reports that '
express non-child specific aggregate successes in
the program, programmatic changes-made and why, '
and barriers to program success, upon request and
frequency determined by the Department.

Attending,  monthly  meetings  focused  on

performance.
Adjusting key performance metrics.

Participating in quélity assurance reviews and
technical assistance site visits on aiternating years.

Participating in electrdnic and. in-person review of
case files to gain qualitative insight into treatment and
program quality and compliance.

Participating in inspections of any of the following:

6.2.2.7.1. The facmty premises. °e
. [ €T
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6.228. -

. 6.2.2.9.

6.2.2.10.
6.2.2.11.

6.2.2.7.2.
6.2.2.7.3.

Programs and services provided.
Records maintained by the Contractor.

Participating in training and technical assistance
activities as directed by the Department.

Complying with fidelity measures or processes
required for evidence-based practices or models

being utilized.

Adjusting program delivery.

Focusing on

a range of performance topics that

include but are not limited to:

6.2.2.11.1.

.Rapid acceptance of referrals and

" quick engagement with individuals and

6.2.2.11.2.

6.2.2.11.3.

6.22.11.4.

their families, as this is -critical to
ensuring children can be stabilized
and begin to. have their needs
addressed as quickly as possible. '
Reduced use of restraints/seclusion to
make progress toward -the goal of
eliminating the practice.

Improving ' long-term program
outcomes by regularly monitoring
outcome goals like improving CANS
scores (i.e., increase in strengths,
decrease in needs) and successful
discharge (i.e., whether child remains
in a home-based setting after),
Reducing lengths of stay to ensure
that treatment is being provided
briefly, episodically, and appropriately

at the level needed to achieve

6.2.2.11.5.

: . :os
Easler Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Contractor Initials
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treatment goals so ‘"children can

‘quickly return to home and community

settings. _ ‘
Reducing staff turnover by retaining
staff, while creating space for internal
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6.2.3.

6.2.4.

6.2.5.

6.2.6.

6.2.7.

6.2.8.

6.29. .

~

advancement, in providing consistent,
‘high-quality services.

The Contractor shall implement quality assurance activities to
ensure fidelity towards the evidence-based practices and trauma
informed model. -

Notwithstanding paragraphs 8 and 9 of the General Provisions of
this ‘Agreement, upon identification of deficiencies in Quality
Assurance, the Contractor shall, within thirty (30) days from the
date the Contractor is notified of the fnal fndmgs provide a
corrective action plan that includes:

6.2.4.1. Actions to be taken to correct each deficiency;

6.2.4.2.°  Actions to be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of
each deficiency;

6.2.4.3. A time line for implementing the actions above

6.2.4.4. - A monitoring plan to ensure the actions above are

effective; and

6.2.4.5. - A plan for reporting to the Department on progress of
implementation and effectiveness.

The Contractor-shall actively and regularly collaborate with the

- Department to enhance contract management, improve results,
~and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful

outcomes.

The Contractor shall submit periodic reports, as stipulated
between DHHS and Contractor, which include, but are not limited
to Data to support performance improvement activities, DHHS
will provide to Contractor a list of Data needed and the format of
the Data.

The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor
agency shall provide financial information on the following: what
individuals are benefitting from Contractor's services, how much
was spent per individual and what type of services are belng
received by each individual. )
The Department reserves the right to establlsh data reporting
and deliverable requirements throughout the duration of the
contract.

The Department reserves the right to request service plan and
other documentation to comply with federal requirements upon

request. ' . ) l et
: Easter Seals New Hampshire, In¢. - Contractor Initials
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6.2.10.

The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor
agency shall provide financial information on the following: what
individuals are benefitting from Contractor's services, how much

.was spent per individual and what type of services are being

received by each individual.

7. - Additional Terms

- 7.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders.or Legislative Chanées

YR

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so
as to achieve-compliance therewith. )

7.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Cultura.lly and Linguistically
-Appropriate Programs-and Services

7.21.

" The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the

Agreement Effective Date, a detailed description of the
communication access and language assistance services to be
provided to ensure meaningful access to programs and/or

“services to individuals with limited English proficiency; individuals

who are deaf or have hearing Ioss individuals-who are blind or

-have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges

'7.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

7.31.

7.3.2.

-~

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04
B-1.0

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement,
“The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed
under an Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department -
of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the

- State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as

were available or required, e.g., the United States Department of
Health and Human Services.”

All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall

" have prior approval from the Department before prlntlng,

production, distribution or use.

- ' :os
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Conlractor Initials
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7.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

7.331. Brochures.

-+ 7.3.3.2. Resource directories.
7.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
7.3.3.4. Posters.

7335  Reports.

7.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under
’ the Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

7.3.5.  The Contractor shall ensure all educational and informational
materials are understandable, free of jargon, family friendly and
written appropriately for the audience when such materials are
used to educate and inform individuals and their families about the

' residential treatment program, services, and treatment.

8. Records : -
8.1. The Contractor shall ke'ep records that include, but are not fimited to:

8.1.1.  Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
. evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred.by
the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income

received or collected by the Contractor. .

8.1.2.  All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect
all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such- as purchase
requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations. of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each’
recipient of services, which records shall include all records of
application and eligibility (including all forms required to determine’
eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision

:os
RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04 Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. - Contractor Initials
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of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such servuces

8.1.4. Medical records on each |nd|V|duaI of services.

8.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retentien hereunder,

the Department, the United States Department of Heakh and Human
Services, and any of their designated representatives shall have access to
all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes

of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the

Department of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement

'_and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all
the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the

terms of the Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this
Agreement and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the
Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs
hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion to deduct

" the amount of such expenses as are dlsallowed or to recover such sums

from the Contractor.

:os
RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-04 Easter Seals New Hampshire, In¢, Conlractor Initials
_ . . . 6/24/2021
- B-1.0 Page 40 of 40 . ] Date



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 3178FBBA-D304-48AE-B15C-FC3AF332F3B6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children’s Behavioral Health
EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. Funds from the Foster Care Program, Title IV-E, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.658, Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) 2101NHFOST -

1.2, Funds from 'Tem_porary Assistance for Needy Families,v Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.558, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHTANF )

1.3. Funds from Adoption Assistance (CFDA) #93.659, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHADPT

1.4.  Funds from Medical Assistance Program (CFDA) #93.778, Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2105NHSADM

1.'5.. General funds.

2. Depending on the eligibility of the client, funding type is determined at the time
of payment. Possible account numbers to be utilized include the below.

2.1, 05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,
BUREAU OF CHILDRENS BEHVIORAL HEALTH, SYSTEM OF CARE,
CLASS 102 — CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES

2.2. 05-95- 42- 421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
“OF HEALTH AND-HUMAN SVCS,- HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 636 -
TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT

2.3. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 639 -
TITLE IV-A/TANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT

2.4. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 643 -
STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT ‘

2.5. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 646 -
TITLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT

2.6. 05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
: OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID

:DS
Eastar Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Exhibit C " Contractor Initials
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SERVICES, OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES, MEDICAID CARE
MANAGEMENT, CLASS 535 — OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS

3. For the purposes of this Agreement:

3.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331. :

4. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services provided to
individuals pursuant to this Agreement as follows:

4.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals, a daily rate will be awarded in the
amount. per client per day indicated in the table listed under section
4.1.1. This per diem rate will be set for the term of the contract. Rates
may be reviewed every two years to follow the State's biennium to
consider rate adjustments.

41.1.
Program - Boys Program
Residential for IEP eligible youth per day : $455.18
Re5|dent|al Non-IEP eligible youth per day $455.18
Program - Lancaster
Residential for IEP eligible youth per day $638.23
Resudentlal Non IEP eligible youth per day . $638.23
Program.- RJ Krol
Residential for IEP eligible youth per day $385.96
Residential Non-1EP eligible youth per day - - | $385.96:
Program - Zachary Roads '
Residential for IEP eligible youth per day $553.66
Residential Non- IEP ellglble youth per day $553.66

4.1.2. Educahon for IEP eligible youth shall be bilied to the youth's

sending school by the Contractor. The daily rate for education

. for Non-IEP eligible youth will be paid in the amount per client

per day in.accordance with the current, publically posted New

Hampshire Bureau of Special Education Private Provider

Approved Rate listing posted on NH.gov by the New Hampshire
Departmet of Education.

4.1.3. Billings shall occur on at least on a monthly basis and shall follow
: a process determined by the Department.

4.2. For Managed Care Organization enrolled mdmduals the Contractor
shall be reimbursed pursuant to the Contractor's agreement with the
applicable Managed Care Organization for such services. o

| €T
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4.3. . For individuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the
services they receive, the Contractor will directly bill the other insurance
Or payors.

4.4 Forindividuals wnthout sufficient health insurance or other coverage for
the services they receive which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek
reimbursement from an insurance or third-party payor, the Contractor
will directly bill the Department to access' contract funds provided
through this Agreement. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a
form satisfactory to the Department with supporting documentation
including but not limited to the denial of claims. The Contractor shall
only be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for the medicaid
eligible services provided.

4.4.1. Inlieu of hard copies, all invoices with supporting documentation
‘may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
dhhs. dbhmvomesmhs@dhhs nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed
to:

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street -

Concord, NH 03301

4.4.2. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within
thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice and supporting
documention for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval
of the submitted invoice.

4.5. Maximum allotment for daily rate expenditure for Department funded
expenditures by-fiscal year is as follows: -

4.51. Sub-total: $33,670,236.00
452. SFY22:$11223412.00
4.53. SFY 23:$11,223.412.00

454, SFY 24:$11223.412.00

5. Prior to submitting the first invoice, the Contractor must obtain a Vendor
Number by registering with the New Hampshire Department of Administrative
Services here (Vendor Resource Center | Procurement and Support Services
LNH Dept. of Administrative Services).

6. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-S?. cHanges
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines thr@\the

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Exhibit C Contractor Inilials
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Budgef Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

7. Audits
7.1.

7.2,

7.3

The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Debartment
if any of the followmg condltlons exist:

7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in’
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

7.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit puréuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, llI-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or.more.

7.1 3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public cof‘npany and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulatlons to
submit an annual financial audit. ‘

If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal .
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA W|th|n 120

‘days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

7.4.

7.5.

Easter Seals New'Hampshire, Ing. Exhibit C : Contractor (nitials
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Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of
the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department’s
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions .
and -shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

[v]-]
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-680, Titie V, Subtitle D; 41
U.5.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | -'FQR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-890, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part || of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State

" may elect to make one certification to the Department in.each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of paymerits suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: -

'Commnssuoner

NH Department of Health and Human Serwces
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to prowde a drug-free workplace by:

. 1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program lo inform employees about

‘ 1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs: and
1.2.4,  The penalties that may be imposed.upon employees for drug abuse violations
" oceurring in the workplace;

" 1.3, Maklng it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a},

1.4, Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

- employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1, - Abide by the terms of the statement; and :
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
- conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position tille, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federaolsagency

- Exhibit D = Cerlification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplace Requirements . 6/24/2021
CUMHHS/ 110713 . Page 1 of 2 te:
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
‘ identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted :

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and mcludmg
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

* 1.6.2. - Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
o law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1,7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.4, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space prowded below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Perforrnanc;e (street address, cily, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

DocuSignad by:

Hin Treanor

Date - ) - Name: reanor
Title:  ¢pg

6/24/2021
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CERTIFICATICN REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees (o comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

- US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EQUCATION - CONTRACTORS
- US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowlédge and belief, that: -

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the under3|gned to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member,
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
maodification of any Federal contract, grant, lean, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3." The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cocperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person wha fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure. '

Vendo_r Name:

DocuSigned by:

6/24/2021 i Treansr

Date \ Freanor
Title :
. CFO
. :os
) Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

~

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
. Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification: .

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION r
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospectlive primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ {DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall dlsquallfy such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certifi cation in this clause is a material represenlanon of fact upon which reliance was placed
‘when DHHS determined to-enter into this transaction. If itis later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospeclive primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its cenrtification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” "debarred,” “suspended,” "ineligible," “lower tier covered

' transaction,” “participant," “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. Seethe

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, uniess authorized by DHHS,

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
- Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is-not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of reDcsords‘
in order to render in good faith the certification requirad by this clause. The knowledge and
o | 7

Exhibit.F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials -
And Other Responsibility Matters 6/24/2021
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorlzed under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies avallable to the Federal government DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default,

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
rincipals: )

5,1 .1. are not'presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or -
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted of or had

~ acivil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with cbtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public {(Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; :

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
{Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12, Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an expianation to this proposal (contract),

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
"~ voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tler covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

DocuSigned by:
. 6/24/2021 . Hin Treaner
Date _ NEHG: ETA7 Treanor
- Tite: o

3

A D$
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor ideniified in Section 1 3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
. representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12' of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
tecipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinguency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, natlonal origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients t;f federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 {29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal ﬁn‘ancial .
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or-benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 {42 U.5.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.5.C. Seclions 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of -age'in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
‘employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (L. S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 {equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community -
organizations); Execulive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations), and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
- agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Ds ’
Exnibit G o ‘ €T
’ ' Contractor Initiats
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civit Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agréés by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following.

certification: : .

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the 'provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Narﬁe:

DoacuSigned by:
6/24/2021 , [?ﬁiw Treaner
Date © Name: E1A Treanor .
Title:

CFO

0s
Exhibit G : ‘ ‘61\
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Fedaral Mendiscrimination, Equal Trestment of Faith-Based Organizations

and Whistieblower protections
&/27n4 . 6/24/2021
Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Fro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in'the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to cemply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,
Contractor Name: -
DocuISignod by: .
A Treanor

N Treanor

6/24/2021
Date

Name:

Title: o

' :os
Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials

Environmential Tobacco Smoke 6/24/2021
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
"‘comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

{1) Defmltlons

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach” in section 164. 402 of Title 45
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code :
of Federal Regulatlons .

c. Covered Entity" has the meaning given such termin sectlon 160.103 of T|tIe 45,

" Code of Federal Regulations. :

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “desngnated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. .

e. 'Data Agareqgation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. . .

f. ‘“Health Care Operations” shall-have the same meaning as the term “health care olperations;"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. ‘

9. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlli, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance .Portability and Accountability Act 'of 19986, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i, "Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual’ in 46 CFR Section 160,103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance wnth 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). :

j.  "Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

" k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR-Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receivﬁ
€7

Business-Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

. 32014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement : 6 /24 /2 021
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(2)

“Required by Law" shall have the same meanmg as the term * reqmred by Iaw in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

hlslher designee.

" “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

““Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developmg organization that is accredited by the Amencan National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shalt not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI} except as reasonably necessary to provude the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Asscciate, including but not limited to al!
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would canstitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
I, As required by law, pursuant to the térms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. . For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PH! will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third. party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA . Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
“Rules -of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach. _

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure _9nd
to seek appropnate rellef If Covered Entity objects to such dlsclosure the Busi es%\

3/2014 : : ‘ Exhibit | ' Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement ‘ . 6/24/2021
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(3)

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. '

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disciose PHI in violation of

. such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activitiés of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall-notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an |mpacl on the’
protected health mformatlon of the Covered Entity. :

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the-above situations. The risk assessment shall in¢lude, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, mcludung the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated. ' .

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compllance with HIPAA and the anacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assqgiate
agreements with Contractor's intended busines§ associates, who will be receivifig é’,‘jl

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Acl
Business Associale Agreemenl ’ 6/24/2021
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32014

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information. :

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine '
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement. -

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the

" Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an

“individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10} business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations

. to provide an accounting of dlsclosures with respect to PHi in accordance with 45 CFR

Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Asscciate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. '

‘Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the

Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, cor created or received by the Business Associate in.connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th 3
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business[ AR
Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement 6/24/2021
Paged of 6 D



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 3178FB8A-D3D4-48AE-B1 SC-EC3AF332F3BB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Asspciate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

{4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164, 522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

3 (5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feaS|bIe Covered Entity shall report the
wolatlon to the Secretary.

{6) Miscellaneocus

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Secunty Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b.  Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the F’rlvacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

: o Data Ownershlg The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownershlp rlghts
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entlty

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. T

32014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act '
Business Associale Agreement 6/24/2021
Page 50of 6 '

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r@ed
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e. Searegation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit { or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or.
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditicns of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f, Survival, Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3).1, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the’
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

? .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Department of Health and Human Services Easter -Seals New Hampshire, Inc
tate by: masefibe Contractor

Katja fox S A Treansr

DG D

Signature of Authorized Representative  Signature of Authorized Representative .

Katja Fox " Elin Treanor _
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director
. CFO . -
~ Title of Authorized Representative . | Title of Authorized Representative
6/24/2021° . 6/24/2021

Date Date

DS
312014 Exhibit | N Contractor initialsL

Health Insurance Portability Act ’
Business Associate Agreement 6/24/2021
Page 6of6 Pa e
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

"

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after Qctober 1, 2010, to report on -
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject-to the FFATA reportlng requirements:
Name of entity :
Amount of award
Funding agency .
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those .

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SO NOOEWN =

-

Prime grant remplents must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days in which

the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prowsnons agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,

and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees

to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions

execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outl:ned above to the NH

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
o, Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. '

Co)ntract'or Name:

. 7 . DocuSigned by:
6/24/2021 1 Hin Treaner
Date ' ‘Name: ETTH- Treanor
Title:  ¢rq
: - :us
. Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Fuhdmg Contractor Initials
Aocountabmty And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compluance 6 /247202 1

CU/DHHS/110713 , . Page 1 of 2
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FORM A

As the Contractor |dent|f ed in Section 1.3 of the General Prows:ons | certify that the responses to the
below hsted questions are true and accurate.

085573467

1 The DUNS number for your entity is:

. 2. In your business.or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross.revenue in U,S, federal contracts, subcontracts,
* loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and {2} $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements? .
X NO ' YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If thé answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executwes in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13{a) or 15{d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES -
if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer lhge following:

4.- The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows: :

Name: Amount:
- Name; " Amount:
Name: B Amount;
Name: __ " - Amount:
Name: A'mount:

. : :os
Exhibit J — Cedtification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance . © 6/24/2021
CUDHHSI10713 Page 2 of 2 ~
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Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements.

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss. of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorizéd access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, “ Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Re\gulations.

2. - "Computer Security’ Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Instltute ‘of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data" means all confidential information

"~ disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public

assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance

. Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally |dentifiable Information. : '

Confidential Information also mc!udes any and all mformatlon owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law.or. regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

‘4. “End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5 “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountablllty Act of 1996 and the
- regulations promulgated thereunder

6. “Incident” means an.act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
* which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misptacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of phy5|cal or electronic

N D5
./. ) .
et
V5. Last update 10/09/18 . Exhibit K iti

Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) Wwill be considered an open

network and not adequately secure for the transmnssnon of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data..

8. “Personal Information” (or “PI'} means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9, “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Pars 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

.' 10, “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. c

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information .
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is -
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

L. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to-all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

. Dg
V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials ;
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so.that, DHHS has an. opportunlty to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If. DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by addltlonal

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional secur:ty safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from .dlsclosed'to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this- Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for .

any other purposes that are not indicated in-this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryptlon. If End User is transmlttlng DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drlve as a method of transmlttlng DHHS
data.

Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being recewed by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is -employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be

- secure.” SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data. :

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerﬁﬁed'grouﬁd

“mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual,

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password- -protected.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

. . , :os
V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials

DHHS Information . . .
Security Requirements . B6/24/2021
Page 3 of 9 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3178FBSA—DSD4-48AE-B1SC-FCSAF332F3BB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

10.

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless nétwork.

Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to -
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtua! private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or Iaptop from which information will be -
transmitted or accessed.

S8H File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as-Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

- End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will

1.

structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours}. :

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidentiel‘ Data via wireless devices, all -
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and ény derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any

‘derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise requrred by law or permitted

under this Contract To this end, the parties must:.

A.

Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations. '

2. The Contractor agrees to.ensure proper secunty momtonng capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. ‘

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data

~in a secure location and identified in section IV, A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

: :os
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whole, must have aggréssive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's -
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure. :

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will

iy . obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
. recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for sécure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
deqaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media- Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thi&y (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a .
secure method such as shredding.

' 3. Unless  otherwise spedified. within thirty {30) days of the termination of this
"Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

" PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data recewed under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

- 2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
~ confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the

media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

] (1]
o , | €r
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The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confi dentlal information
where appllcable

The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in -place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

'The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End

Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security

- expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum

match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and compuler use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be

- completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to

system access being authorized.

If the Department determlnes the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement .
{BAA) with the Department and is respon5|ble for malntamlng compliance with the

agreement. :

The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and, vulnerabilities_that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by

" the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the

10.

11.

scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Offi ice
leadership member within the Department.

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

[D.s
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12.

13.

14..

15,

16.

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monntonng services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center serwces necessary due to
the breach. )

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,

‘but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (6 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS

Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern_protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and’
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State’'s Privacy Officer and the
State’'s Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the ‘email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards' as referenced in Section .IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media coniaining PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information onIy if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

:ns
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e. limit disclosure of the Cohﬁdential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f.  Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as npon-duty hours {e.q., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable- information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section |V above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk- based
assessment of the circumstances involved. ~

i understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application. :

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to ¢onduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the' privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confldentlal Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. : .

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI,

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling ‘and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 CF.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. ldentify.Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is'invoiw.ad in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of 'Incidenis
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

] ] :os
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from. among . different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. o i

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. ‘

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer: |
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security‘Ofﬁcer:
DHhHSInformationSecuriiyOfﬁce@dhhs.nh.gov

- V6. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibil K . Contractor Initials
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Sccretary of State of the Staie of New Hampshire, do hereby éerlify that EASTER SEALS NEW
HAMPSHIRE, INC. is a New Mampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact busincss in New Hampshire on November .
06, 1967. | further certify that all fecs and documents required by the Sécrélary of State’s oflice have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business |D: 61290
Certificate Number: 0005334259

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF,
I heteto set my hand and cause Lo be aftixed
the Scal of the State 6chw IHampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2021, _

G Ko

William M. Gardner

Secrelary of Stale
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, _ Cynthia'Ross ’ : , hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. lam a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of __Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
(CorporationlLLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Dlrectorsfshareholders duly called and
held on _February 10, 2021___, at which a quorum of the Dlrectorslshareholders were present and voling. -
{Date)

VOTED: That Elin Treanor, CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Slgnatory)

is duly authonzed on behalf of Easter Seals New Hampshlre Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State’

{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30} days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certlfy that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently accupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in confracts with the State of New Hampshire,

all such limitations are expressly stated herein. ‘
an g

Dated:_6/10/2021

Sigrfature of Elecy{d Off icer
-Name: Cynthia Ross
Title:  Assistant Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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Client#:'497072 EASTESEA7

ACORD.  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE GHTE (AR

8/20/2020

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED: the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisfons or be endorsed.
1'SUBRQGATION IS WAIVED; subjoct to the torms-and conditions of thé policy, cortain policlos may require an endorsement. A statement on
" “this certificate doos not-confer any rights to tho cantificate halder In liou of such endorsement(s}).

PRODUCER RpT
US! Insurance Services LLC PRONE ——ger 374.0123 TAX
3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300 ‘ mﬁ%“:“l'_' e
:::grd. N;|3.031 10 INSURER]S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC &
4-01 INSURER & ; Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058
INSURED . :
- Easter Seals NH, Inc. ::::::::,
‘565 Auburn Stroet \NSURER D
Manchester, NH 03103, ’ X
> INSURER § ::
INSURERF ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE.NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS YO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED' BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED YO THE IWSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
{NDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY- REQUIREMENT, 'TERM OR CONDITION OF. ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER: DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

. CERTIFICATE MAY' BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES, DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND. CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. ‘LIMITS SHOWN MAY MAVE DEEN REGUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

e TYPE OF INSURANCE #&%“%ﬂ POLICY NUMBER - BT, (RO ) - LMiTS'

(A |_X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. XX PHPK2172625 09/01/2020{05/01/2021 eAcH OCCURRENCE $1,000.000
1| cuamsiioe OCCUR . BRGREIOREMIED v [5100,000
X} Professional Liab ' _ ' MED EXP (Any one persory | 55,000
| ) : : PERSONAL K ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
| BENLAGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: 1 GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
| poucy ng& Egoc , PRODUCTS ¢ COMPIOP AGG { 33,000,000

OTHER: : . § .
A | AUTOMOBILE LABILITY X | X |PHPK2172623 P9/01/2020| 09/01/2021] o wemier SHOLE LAY 17564 500
X| aret auvo . . BOUILY MJURY (Pai person) | §
: Oy SOOI RED ) BODILY INURY (Par accidand) | §
(X onr [X]|i000E2 | ~ A3
. s
A |_X}UMBRELLALIAB | X" | oecur X | X |PHUB735674 © 109/01/2020{09/01/2021 et oCCURRENCE 315,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAMSMADE . AGGREGATE 315,000,000
peD | X|ae1fnnons$10K ' - < ] s
L R ' it [
OFFICEAMEMBER ExeL B Es EM'VED HIA _ Eil. EACHACCIDENT $
[ua'nd.n_ory,m NH) E.L. DASEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] 3
g?sﬁadfgﬁ'g'&lé?gp‘snnoﬁs batow E.L CISEASE ..BOLICY LIMIT | 5.
A |EDP o PHPK2172625 09/01/2020|09/01/2021 $1,619,050
' $500 Doductible
Special Form Inél Theft

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS { LOCATIONS | VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Acditions! Remarks Scheduls, may be attached if more space is required}

.| Supplemental Narﬁes‘:Eas;er Seals ME, Inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center; Inc., dba The Faraum
Center, Easter Seals VT, Inc., & The Homemakers Health Services: The General Liability palicy includes a-
Blanket Automatic Additiénal Insured Endorsement that provides Additional Insured and a Blariket Walver of -
Subrogation status to the Certificate Holder, only-when there is a writton contract or wrilten agreément
between the named Insured.and the certificate holder that requires such status, and only with fepard to the
{Ses Attached Descriptions) . -

CERTIFICATE HOLDER : CANCELLATION
” : SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
Departmont of Health & Human : THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
- Services, State of NH ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUICY PROVISIONS. ’
129 Pleagant Street .
Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
\ . Ses Sy

ACORD 26 {2016/03) ..1.0f2° The ACde namao ancj_ logo are reglsterod marks ot ACbRD . i
#529621080/M29620061 ‘ SP12ZP.

© 1688-20156 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved.
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DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)

1

above referenced on behalf of the namad insured. The General Liabllity policy contains a special
endorsemeant with "Prlmary and Non-Contributory“ wording.

b a

“SAGITTA 26.3 (2016103 3 of 2
#529621080/M29620061
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE [RMIDDIYYYY)
10/29/2020

REPRESENTATIVE QR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS WFON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

ceortificato holdor in lleu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. tf SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
Hays Companies Inc.

jg;gu Tina Housman

PHONE

FAX
| JAJC, No, Exty; {AIC, No}:

123 Federal Streat, 4th Floor A ss; thousmanghayscompanies.com
- INSURER(S] AFFORDING COVERAGE NAK #
Boston . MA 02110 INSURERA: The North River Insurance Company 21105
INSURED * INSURER B :
Eastar Seals New Hampshire,Inc INSURER C : .
555 Auburn Street INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Manchester NH 03103 ) INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:21-22 WC REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABCVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR QTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN |S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,
ADDL [SUBR -
IE?: - TYPE OF INSURANCE AT POLICY NUMBER _ (::ar%f)rvvgrfrfﬂ ;535‘6%%1 LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
. [ DAMAGE TO RENT
CLAIMS-MADE D OCCUR PREM §E§0(§§Em5?rgn§§) 3
. MED EXP {Any one person) b3
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE H
PRO-
POLICY JECT D LoC PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG [ 8
OTHER: : P B
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (€3 pecient) d
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per parson} | §
T | ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
AUTOS aUTos BODILY INJURY (Per sccident) | §
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS | {Por accigent)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB | | occur EACH OCCURRENCE - $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED l | RETENTION § ' _ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS® LIABRITY YIN X l STATUTE I | ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/E XECUTIVE - E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? |:| NiA
R | (Mandatory in mq 406-733761-8 1/1/2021 1/1/2022 | E.L, DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | $ 1,000,000
If yos, dascribe u
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE - POLICYLIMIT |$ 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addlilonal R rks Schaduk

may be
Insured includes Manchestar Alcoholism Rehabilitation Inc..

if more space Is required)
dba Farnum Center

CERTIFICATE HOLDER -

CANCELLATION

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301 -

~

SHOULD ANY GF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

James Hays/GSCHIC

ST

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INSO025 (201401)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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_éasterseals

Mission:

Easterseals provides exceptional services to ensure that all
people with disabilities or special needs and their families
have equal opportunities to live, learn, work and play in

their communities.

f
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BAKER
NEWMAN

NOYES |

~ Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Single Audit Act Repdrts |

Year Ended August 31, 2020

Baker Newman & Noyes LLC
MAINE | MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE
800.244.7444 | www.bnncpa.com
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EASTER'SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SINGLE AUDIT ACT REPORTS

August 31, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS
) _ Page

Independent Auditors” Report on Internal Centrol Over Financial Reporting and

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ' 1
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program;

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of

Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance : 3
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards A 5
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ‘ 9
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs . . 10

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings . 13

;



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 3178FB8A-D3D4-48AE-B15C-FC3AF332F3B6

BA KE R ' _ ' Baker Newman & Noyes LLC
NEWMAN - _ MAINE | MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE
' 800.244.7444 { www.bnncpa.com

NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidianés .

" We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial slatements of Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of August 31, 2020, and the retated consolidated statements of activities and changes in nel assets,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 11, 2020. '

internal Control Over Financial Reporti'ng'

in planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Easter Seals
NH’s internal control over finaricial feporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial’
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Easter Seals NH's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Easter Seals NH’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, (o prevent, or delect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A jnaterial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough 10 merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these Hmitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider 1o be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified,
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The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Compliance and Other Matters ,
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Easter Seals NH’s consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

'Purpose of this Report .

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose. '

Raker Newosron € Ncﬂes LWC

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 11, 2020
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B_ A |:< E R - - Baker Newman & Noyes LLC
NEWMAN MAINE | MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE
g B800.244.7444 | www.bnnepa.com

I
i

NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

" The Board of Directors ‘ ' o . .
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc: and Subsidiaries

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Progliam

We have audited Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ (Easter Seals NH) compliance with the.
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Easter Seals NH’s major federal programs
for the year ended August 31, 2020. Easter Seals NH’s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on compliance for each of Easter Seals NH’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable 1o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 of the U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
Jor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
* perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Easter Seals NH's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Easter Seals NH's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Easter Seals NH complied, in all matenal respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended August 31, 2020, ) .
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The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Sub51d1anes

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Easter Seals NH is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered Easter Seals NH's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Easter
Seals NH's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal’
program an a timely basis. A material weakness in imternal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
malerial noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program ihat is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first

* paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material wcaknesses However, material weaknesses may exist
that have.not been identified:

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals NH as of and for the year ended
August 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated December 11, 2020, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statemenis as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not
a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial stalements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconcnlmg such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial stalements’ themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements.as a whole.

B::Ker Newomren € N?jes LWC

Manchester, New Hampshm:
December 11,2020
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
~ SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended August 31, 2020

Pass-Through

) .Federal . Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through ‘\ : " CFDA Identifying
Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title - Number Number
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through the New Hampshire Deparlment of qucauon _
Child Nutrition Cluster:
~ School Breakfast Program 10.553 02-6000618
National School Lunch Program 10.555 02-6000618
Total Child Nutrition Cluster
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 02-6000618

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

[J.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through the City of Manchester Community
Improvement Program:
.Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants 14.218 02-6000517
Passed through the State of New Hampshire Department S
of Health and Human Services — Bureau of Homeless
and Housing Services: : '
Emergency Solutlons Grant Program 14.231 02-6000618

Total U.S. Department qf Housing and Urban Development

U.S. Department of Justice — Office on V:olcnce Against
Women:
Passed through the City of Manchester Police Improving
Criminal Justice Responses to Sexual Assault, Domestic
Violence, Dating Violence and Stalking Grant Program:
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement
of Protection Orders Program 16.590 02-6000517

. Total U.S. Department of Justice — Office Against Violence
Against Women .

U.S. Department of Labor: ' ' .
Homeless Veterans Reintegration Project ' 17.805 N/A

Total U.S. Departinent of Labor

Total
Federal

Expenditures

$

9,130
167,419

176,549
181,676

358,225

30,000

72,547

102,547

: 370

370

© 2635751

265,751
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2020

Pass-Through

: _ . Federal ‘Entity Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through "~ CFDA Identifying . Federal
Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title o Number Number Expenditures
- /s
U.S. Departiment of the Treasury:
Passed Through State.of NH Governor’s Office for
~ Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR): .
Coronavirus Relief Fund i . 21.019* 02-6000618 $ 12,813
Passed Through Swim With a Mission:
Coronavirus Relief Fund , 21.019*  81-4476050 46,676
- Passed through the New Hampshire Department of ‘ : :
Employment Security: . '
Coronavirus Relief Fund ‘ ' 21.619*  02-6000618 1,779,150
_Passed through Pathways of River Valley: ' I
Coronavirus Relief Fund Co 21.019%  23-7291410 43,350
Passed through Lakes Region Community- Services: . :
Coronavirus Relief Fund : : 21.019* - 02-0329795 16,650
Passed through the Community Bridges: '
Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019%  02-0368594 287,850
Passed through Monadnock Development Services: _
Coronavirus Relief Fund . ' 21.019*%  02-0369974 46,650
Passed through Gateways Community Services: ' )
Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019*%  02-0377315 117,750
Passed through Moore Center: Co ) S
Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019*  02-0261136 113,850 .
Passed through One Sky Community Services: i .
Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019*  02-0368955 260,550
Passed through Community Partners: _ ' '
Coronavirus Rehief Fund . 21.019%  25-1918334 -76,650
Passed through Community Crossroads: :
Coronavirus Rehief Fund - . 21.019*%  02-0347939 71.550
; Total U.S. Departiment of the Treasury 2,873,489
U.S. National Endowment for the Arts:
Passed through the New Hampshire State Council on the Arts: .
Promotion of the Arts Partnership Agreements 45.025 02-6000618 ~ _.__4.350
Total U.S. National Endowment for the Arts ' 4,350
U.S. Department of Veteran’s Affairs:
VA Homeless Providers Grant and Per Diem Program 64.024 N/A 73,183
Passed through University of Vermont & State Agriculture: : :
" VA Supportive Services for Veteran Families Program 64.033 03-0179440 225,755
Total U.S..Departiment of Veteran’s Affairs 298,938
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. - E;\STER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED})

Year Ended August 31, 2020

Pass-Through

- ' . Federal Entity Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through - CFDA Identifying Federai
Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title .. Number - _ Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through the New Hampshire Department of Children,
Youth and Families: :
Title I Grants to Local Educahonal Agencies 34.010 02-6000618 - $_ 102,875
"Total U.S. Department of Education 102,875
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
CCDF Cluster:.
Passed through the New lIampshlrc Department of Health
and Human Services:
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the - ,
Child Care and Development Fund 93.596*  02-6000618 705,020
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575%  02-6000618 278.381
Total CCDF Cluster ' 983,401 -
Alzheimer’s Disease Program Initiative (ADP1) 93.470 N/A 229,102 .
Passed through the New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services:
Special Programs for the Aging — Title 11, Part B — '
Granis For Supportive Services and Senior Centers 03.044 02-6000618 - 84,810
Special Programs for the Aging, Title I'V and Title [I
Discretionary Projects 93.048 02-6000618 43,502
National Family Caregiver Support, Title I11, Part E 93.052 02-6000618 47,973
Medicare Enrollment Assistance Program . 93.071 02-6000618 14,104
Affordable Care Act D Aging and Disability
Resource Center 93.517 02-6000618 5,749
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 02-6000618 - 242610
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 02-6000618 72,033
CMS Research, Demonstrations and Evaluations 93.779 02-6000618 . 49,842

Passed through Division for Children, Youth and
Families, Juvenile Justice Services: :
Stephanie Tubbs Child Welfare Services Program 93.645 02-6000618 36,492
Passed through Manchester Community Health Center
dba — Amoskeag Health:
Substance Abuse'and Mental Health Services —

Projects of Regional and National Significance 03.243 02-0458174 10,049
Adoption Opportunities Grants: Title [l of the Child ' :
Adoption Opportunilies , 03.652 02-0458174 11,884
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2020

Federal

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through . CFDA

Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number

Passed through Catholic Medical Center:
Medical Assistance Program 93.778
Passed through the New Hampshire Division of Public Health
~ Bureau of Community Services, Alcohol and Other Drug
Treatment Section: ;
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of

Substance Abuse 93.959*
Opioid STR 03.788
Passed through Catholic Medical Center: .
Opioid STR 93.788

Passed through the New Hampshire Division of Community
Based Services, Bureau of Community Based Military -
Programs:
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families ' 93.558

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Total Federal Expenditures

* ‘Major Program

See notes to this schedule.

Pass-Through

Entity
ldentifying

Number

02-0315693

02-6000618

~ 02-6000618

02-0315693

02-6000618

Total
Federal

Expenditures

$ 83505

303,542
1,010,565

338,050

97.611

3,664,824

- $2.671,369
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended August 3‘1, 2020

1. Basis of Presentation

~ The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries {Easter Seals NH) under programs
of the federal government for the year ended August 31, 2020. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requivements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Easter
Seals NH, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of Easter Seals NH.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
‘expenditures are not allowable or are limitéd as to reimbursement. The Schedule does not include
matching amounts that Easter Seals NH expends in connection with its federal programs. The
categorization of expenditures by program included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
is based upon the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). Easter Seals NH has elected to use
the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Easter Seals NH affiliates that received federal awards that are included in the Schedule include
Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center, Easter Seals Maine, Inc., and Easter Seals Vermont, Inc.

3. Subrecipients ‘

No grant monies expended and reported within the Schedule were passed through to subrecipients.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE:, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended August 31, 2020

SECTION I - Summary of Audit Results

Financial Statements:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial
staternents audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:  Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? . yes X no .
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? i yes X no

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

yes X_ no

' Significant deficiency(ics) identified? yes X none reported
Type of auditors’ report issued on compllancc for
maJor federal programs: ' Unmodified

: Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reporied in accordance with Section 2 CFR
200.516(a)? yes X ., no

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA #

21.019

21.019

21.019
21.019
21.019

21.019

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

U.S. Department of the Treasury:
Passed Through State of NH Governor's Office for
Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR):
Coronavirus Relief Fund
Passed through Swim With A Mission:
. Coronavirus Relief Fund
Passed through the New Hampshire Department
of Employment Security:
Coronavirus Relief Fund
Passed through Pathways of River Valley:
Coronavirus Relief Fund
Passed through Lakes Region Community Services:
Coronavirus Relief Fund \
Passed through Community Bridges:
Coronavirus Relief Fund

10
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended August 31, 2020

SECTION I — Summary of Audit Results

Identification of Major Programs (Continued):

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

CFDA #

21.019
21.019,
21.019
21.019.
21.019

21.019

93.596
93.575

93.959

Passed through Monadnock Development Services:
Coronavirus Relief Fund - o

Passed through Gateways Community Services:
Coronavirus Relief Fund

Passed through Moore Center:
Coronavirus Relief Fund

Passed through One Sky Community Services:

+ Coronavirus Relief Fund

Passed through Community Partners:
Coronavirus Relief Fund

Passed through Community Crossroads:
Coronavirus Relief Fund

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
CCDF Cluster: o
Passed through the New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services:
Child Care: Mandatory and Matching Funds
of the Child Care and Development Fund
Child Care and Development. Block Grant

Passed through the New Hampshire Division of Public
Health Bureau of Community Services, Alcohol
and Other Drug Treatment Section: '
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of
Substance Abuse '

Dollar threshold used to distinguish ‘
between Type A and Type B programs: : "$750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?- . X yes

v .
EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ne
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

- Year IEndf.'d August 31, 2020

SECTION II - Financial Statement Findings

Findings related to the financial statements which. are required to be reporied in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards:

None

SECTION I - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which shall include ﬁndings as defined in Section 2
CFR 200.516(a): :

None
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES .
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
Year Ended August-31, 2020

The prior year single audit disclosed no findings in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and no
unrecorded or unresolved findings exist from the prior audit’s Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings.
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. 7021 Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Board of Directors

Chairman - Treasurer _ ’ ‘ . .
Matthew Boucher Bryan Bouchard Gregory Baxter, MD Rick Courtemanche
President CMA & Assistant Professor President, Elliot Health System - IBM(Ret)
Airmar Technology Corp Southern NH University One Elliot Way 254B Towle Farm Road
2/2020-12/2023 11/2013-12/2022
9/2012-12/2021 3/2015-12/2021 ' ' '
: Dennis Beaulieu Eddie Edwards
Past Chairman Assistant Treasurer White Mountain Insurance (Ret) Eddie Edwards Consulting, LLC
Andrew MacWilliam Charles Panasis 61 Barnard Hill Rd. 28 Childs Drive
Partner Director
Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP Brady Sullivan Properties
11/2008-12/2023 : 2/2021-12/2023
9/2008-12/2021 11/2012-12/2021 Jim Bee, CIMA ' Elizabeth Hitchcock
' Senior Vice President Principal
Vice Chairman Secretary : : Morgan Stanley - Orbit Group
Tom Sullivan y Mary Flowers
President President : : . .
Sullivan Construction, Inc. - Flowers Communication .
: . - ‘ 4/2021-12/2023
10/2008-12/2021
5/2009-12/2021 : . o Tom Bullock William Lambrukos
12/2017-12/2023 - ‘ Chairman of the Board Sr. VP Operations
Vice Chairman : ' o Amoskeag Beverages - Northeast Delta Dental -
Charles S. Goodwin Trevor Arp :
Cogswell Benevolent Trust Senior VP, Comcast
_ 4/2019-12/2022
12/2020-12/2023
11/2005-12/2023 2/2021-12/2023

‘easterseals
Rev: 6/24/2021 . ‘ NH, VT, ME & Farnum

[
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- 2uz1 raster Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Board of Directors

Lucy Lange
General Manager
Monadnock Radio Group

12/2018-12/2021
Beb thterst
Fidelity Investments (Ret)

11/2015-12/2021

_ Tracey Pelton
Exec Dir, Business Dev & Mktmg
PROCON LLC

1/2018-12/2023

Richard Rawlings
-Mng.Prtnr {Ret) )
Northwestern Mutual

12/1999-12/2021

Rev: 6/24/2021

Linda Roth

. Lang Term Care (Ret)

32 Mcintosh Road

12/2017-12/2023

Mark Sandler
Director, Electric Operations
I_Eyersourcge Ignergy

10/2019-12/2022
Sanjeev Srinivasan

VP, Corporate Dev & Strategy
Hypertherm

4/2021-12/2023

Paul E. Voegelm COO0O
Sheehan Phlnney Bass + Green .

" 12/2020-12/2023

“-easterseals

Rob Wieczorek
President, Wieczorek Insurance

11/2013-12/2021

General Counsel & Assistant

Secretary _(non-voting member)
Bradford Cook, Esq.
Sheehan Phinney .

11/2001-12/2022

NH, VT, ME-& Famum”~
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Elin Treanor
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

CAREER SUMMARY:

Leadership, management and teamwork involving all business related functions and
administration. Major empha51s on providing high quality and cost effective
services to customers.

’

SKILLS & EXPERIENCE:

¢ Accounting, financial reporting, budgeting, internal controls, auditing, cost
reporting, variance analysis, accounts payable, purchasing and payroll

» Cash management, investments, borrowing, banking relationships

Billing, receivables, collections, funding sources, third party réimbursement

Insurances, contracts, grants, iegal issues

Policies and procedures development, problem solving

Financial training and consultation -

Strategic and business planning

¢ Liaison with Board of Directors and Comimittees

* & & »

WORK HISTORY:

1994 — Present Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Manchester, NH-
' Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
Oversee fiscal management for 100 million-dollar budget size,
multi-corporate, multi-state entity. Also, responsible for
reception, maintenance, customer service functions.

1988 — 1994 Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH
' Vice President of Finance
Responsible for finance functions and information systems
agency wide. Instrumental in major financial turnaround from
$600,000 deficit in 1988 to $100,000 surplus in 1989 and
surpluses every year thereafter. :

1984 — 1988. _ Easter Seal Soclcty ofNH Inc., Manchester, NH
Controller
Promoted to position with added responsibilities of managing,
billing function and staff. Converted financial applications to
integrated automated systems. Involved in corporate
reorganizations to multiple entities and external corporate
mergers and acquisitions.
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Elin Trednor
work history cont'd

19821984
1981 ~ 1982
1980 1981
1974 - 1980

EDUCATION:

1989 .
1980
1977

[

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH -
Chief Accountant .
Promoted to supervisory position to manage accounting,

~ payroll, payables, purchasing. Revised budget process, audit

work, procedures and monitoring systems.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Accountant

Promoted to take charge of general ledger, recongiliations and
financial reporting. Established chart of accounts, fund -
accounting system and internal controls.

"Easter Seal Society of NH, Ine., Manchester, NH

Internal Auditor :
Handled accounts payabie, cash flow, grant billing and review

. of general ledger accounts.

Marshalls, Peabody, MA

Senior Clerk
Worked as cashier, customer service representative and
bookkeeper, while attending college.

New Hampshire College, Hooksett, NH
Masters in Business Administration

Bentley College, Waltham, MA
Bachelor of Science, Accounting Major

North Shore Community College, Beverly, MA
Associates Degree, Accounting Major
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JOSEPH T. EMMONS

-

WORK EXPERIENCE
Easterseals NH . _ _
Sr. Vice President of Development Sept. 2017 - present
Manage day to day operauons of Easterseals Development and Commumcatlons off'ce (14 person stafl in NH, ME and
VT})

*  Analyze information compiled by Development Coordinators and Managers regarding current donors and
prospects to identify major gift prospects and extend the number of targeted prospects by making personal
visits, -

=" Assist other staff and volunteers in developmg strategy and contacts for those donors and prospects for which
others may have a primary contact,

= Work with the Accounting Department to develop-a comprehensive gift policy and procedure guideline,

*  Work with Board to enhance relationships and create greater fundraising and outreach possibilities.

*  Hiring and supervision of grant, development and events staff,

*  Develop and manage budgets relating to Qpccml events and grants as well as oversee cash management at the
events: ‘

. Dcvclop long-term strategies for cultivation of new donors.

*  Assist in strategic departmental planning in conjunction with the Vice President of Development and the
development staff.

= * Plan, implement, promote and evaluale assigned public relations, events or activities and olher fundralsmg
vehlclee conducted by and for the Agency.

» Manage all aspects of special events, including recruitment, retention, and logistics.

»  Organize, coordinate and supervise volunteers at special events.

= Oversee dalabase manager who is responsible for the creation and managcmenl of potential pammpantq and
companies for events and provide reports as required.

= Work with and coordinate the activities of the National and Regional Corporate Sponsors to maintain a fnendly

and cooperative relationship, acquaint them with Easterseals’ programs and services and advise and awsl them

in their fundratsmg activities.

Senior Director of Development ‘ Nov. 2014 - Sept. 2017
Manage day-to-day operations of annual giving (4 staff members) and advancement services (6 staff members) for Saint
Anselm College.
' *  Work with chapter members to enhance rclallonthpq ‘and create greater fundraising and outreach possibilities.
*  Develop and manage budgets relating to special events as well as oversec cash management at the events,
. Dcveiop long term strategies for cultivation of new donors.
= Assist in strategic departmental planmng in conjunction with the Vice President ofDevelopment and the
development staff.
= Plan, implement, promote and evaluate assigned public relations, events or activities and other fundralsmg
vehicles conducted by and for the Agency.
»  Manage all aspects of special events, including recraitment, retention, Ioglstlcs and new program deve]opmenl.
*  Organize, coordinate and supervise volunteers at special events. ‘
" Create and manage database of potential participants and compames for events and provide reports as required.

\ Saint Anselm College, Manchester, NH -
Executive Director, Development and Advancément Services Oct. 2013 — Nov. 2014
Manage day lo day operations of annual glvmg (4 staff members) and advancement services (6 staff members) for Saint
Anselin College
= Supervision of annual giving, stewardsh:p, research and advancement services teams in College Advancement
»  Oversee and implement all direct mail, e-mail and social media communication - including content,
segmentation, timing, etc. — resulting in a 3.7 million dollars raised in annual giving for fiscal year 2014
= Manage all gift entry and database coordination :
=  Supervise campalgn communications and stcwardshlp programs - developing a stewardship plan resultmg in
. 95% of donors receiving donor stewardship packages.
*  Act as lizison between College Advancement and Alhletms resulting in increased athletic participation and
dollars raised each of the last 3 years
»  Provide and repori on fundraising financials to Trustees
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Director, Annual Giving December 2019 - October 2013
Manage $3 million annual giving program for Saint Anselm College
= Supervision of five person annual giving staff

=  Engage and personally solicit annual fund gifts from 100 — 120 alumni yearly ranging from $1,000 to $10,000
= [Established new reunion giving program and young alumni giving program
* Increased alumni participation from 17% in 2010 to 21% projected in 2013
s Create and implement annual appeal schedule and mailings
Associate Director, Annual Giving July 2009 — December 2010

Support, implement and enhance the Saint Anselm Fund :
» * Engage and personally solicit annual fund gifts from 100 -~ 120 alumni yearly
»  Create annual fund marketing pieces and solicitation letters for fundraising purposes
*  Manage and support Reunion Giving programs for 4-5 classes yearly
= Support Office of Alumni Relations at college programs and events

Assistant Director, Annual Giving/ Director, Saint Anselm Phone-a-thon June 2005 - June 2009
Support and enhance the Saint Anselm Fund as well as being responsible for all day-to-day activities of Saint Anselm
College Phone-a-thon program

» ' Lead and facilitated Senior Class Gifl Program, increasing student participation three consecutive years

»  Manage and supervised staff of 60-65 students in requesting donations from all college alumni

»  Implemented a new training program for all callers resulting in higher overall alumni participation .

= Assisted the Manager of Advancement Services in creating a new database to streamline the input and updating

of alumni records )
* - Increased dollars raised by the phone a- thon from §95,000 to $170,000

Assistant Director, Alumni Rclatlons September 2004 — June 2005
Work with Vice President of Alumni Relations in planning, implementation and follow-up on all college events
»  Created and designed invitations and brochures for college alumni events
=  Recruited and managed volunteers to work various college events including Reunion Weekend, Homecoming,
and others
*  Effectively responded to and communicated with alumni regarding general alumni inquiries .

SuapDragon Associates, Bedford, NI L .
Recruiter ‘ April 2004 — September 2004 -
Worked with the President and Vice President of‘company in all day-to-day activilics of the company
* Contacted possible clients (businesses) to provide recruiting services resulting in 2-3 new leads per weel\
- ®  Searched for, contaclcd and interviewed top quality professionals for client positions

: EDUCATION
Masters in Business Administration ' : . January 2008
_ Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH | '

Bachelor of Arts in Business ' May 2004
Saint Anselm College, Manchester, NH ‘

" OTHER RELATED EXPERIENCE

Moore Center Services Developmerit Board Sept. 2010 — Sept. 2016
Diocesan School Board — New Hampshire June 2014 - present
Goffstown Junior Baseball Board ) ’ January 2016 - present
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TEACHING EXPERIENCE

Dartmouth College Medical School

Department of Psychiatry

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Lebanon, New Hampshire :
Adjunct Faculty January 2001- Dec. 2005

Springfield College
" School of Human Services
Manchester, New Hampshire )
Adjunct Faculty - May 1999 — August 2005

New Hampshire Public Man;'.lger Program
NH Division of Personnel

Bureau of Education and Training _ : ‘
Professional Mentor for a middle management employee  December 1997 — December 1999

University of New Hampshire

School of Health and Human Services

Department of Social Work

Adjunct Faculty . September 1996 - 1999

 PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

New Hampshire Medicaid Medical Care Advisory Committee January 2018 — Present

Oversight Commission on Children’s Services (RSA 170-G:19, HB517, Laws of 2017 , appointed by
Senate President Chuck Morse, july 6, 2017 to Present . -

Brain Injury Association of NH — Employment Advisory Committee  September 2015 - 2016

Governor’s Interagency Council on Hometessness (ICH) Employment Workgroup
' February 2015 -Present

Center on Aging and Community Living Advisory Board " September 2014 - Present
Legislative Task Force on Work and Family, Governor Appointment September 2014- Present

NH Center for Non-profits Policy and Leadership Task Force ~May 2014 ~ Present

New Hampshire State Rehabilitation Advisory Council, Governor Appointment February 2014 — Present
Chair Oct. 2016 - Present

National Advisory Commuittee, Positioning Public Child Welfare Inititative: Strengthening Families
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For the 21* Cenury this initiative is co-sponsored by the National Association of Public Child Welfare
Administrators (NAPCWA) and Casey Family Programs February 2008 - 2009

New Hampshire State Mental Health Council January 2006 — 2011

New Hampshire Children’s Behavioral Health Collaborative, Member Leadership Committee 2010-
Augus{ 2013 :

New Hampshire Interagency Coordinating Council for Women Offenders January 2006 ~ December
2013

National Association of State Mental Policy Directors (NASMHPD) January 2006- December 2013
NASMHPD representative to the Children’s Mental Health Subcommittee
Chair, NASMHPD President’s Task Force on Returning Veteran's
Board Member Member-at-Large 2011-2013
Board Member NASMHPD Research Institute, Inc. (NRI) 201 1 -Present
NASMHPD Research Institute, Inc. (NRI}, Board Vice-President 2011-2013
NASMHPD Representative to the 27" Annual Rosalyn Carter Symposium on Mental Health
Policy, “Building Bridges and Support for Children Exposed to Domestic Violence, Child
Welfare and Juvenile Justice ", Atlanta, Georgia, Oct. 26 and 27, 2011.
NASMHPD Board Vice-President 2012 - 2013

National Association of Public Child Welfare Administrators (NAPCWA), an Affiliate of the American
. Public Human Services Association _
SMHRCY Representadtive to Children's Mental Health Subcommittee and
NAPCWA Executive Committee, 1991 - 1994
NH State Child Welfare Representative, 1995- Present
NAPCWA Executive Committee, Member-at-Large, Vice-President, January 2002- Dec 2004
NAPCWA State Representative to the APHSA —sponsored re-writes of the lntcrslalc Compact for
The Placement of Children, Dec. 2004 - Nov. 2005 :
NAPCWA President, January 2005 - January 2006

New England Association of Child Welfare Commissioners and Directors
Judge Baker Children’s Center, Boston, Mass.

Committee Member, 1995 - January 2006

Vice-President, 2001- January 2006

NH Chapter of the National Association of Social Workers September 1999 - 2003
25 Walker Street :
Conpord, New Hampshire

State Advisory Board - Member- at-large
University of New Hampshire
School of Health and Human Services-

Department of Social Work September 1998 - September 2002
Community Advisory Board Member

National Technical Assistance Center for Children’s Mental Health 1995 - 1998



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 3178FB8A-D3D4-4BAE-B15C-FC3AF332F3B6

Georgetown University Child Development Center
Advisory Committee Member o -

.State Mental Health Representative for Children and Youth (SMHRCY)

NH State Representative, 1989 - 1994
Executive Committee, 1992 - 1994

Community 2000: Pioneer Valley United Way
Member, Substance Abuse Subcommittee
Children and Adolescents Subcommiliee, 1988 - 1989

Western MA. AIDS Service Providers Coa]ilion, 1987 - 1989

Massachusetts Council for Children 1988 -1989
Board of Directors Regional Member, Holyoke, MA

Massachusetts Association of Substance Abuse Service Providers (MASASP)

Member of Statewide Board of Directors, 1985 - 1987
. CIVIC ASSOCIATIONS

Upper Valley Lake Sunapee Regional Planning Commission, Commissioner Representative for the Town
of New London appointed by Town Board of Selectmen. 2012-2016
Vice Chair of the Commuission, Serve on the Executive Committee 2014 - 2016

New London Zoning Board of Adjustmenls appomted by the Town Board of Selectman
2013-2014

At Home New Hamps'hi're, helping seniors ‘age in place’ in New London, Newbury, Springfield,
Sunapee, Sutton and Wilmot, Board of Directors. 2012-2014

Member ofSamt Andrew’s Episcopal Church, New London NH ‘ :
' Appointed to the Veslry, January 2014 2017
New London, Board of Selectmen - : Elected, May 2014- Present Second Term
' Chair, May 2015 -2016
Board Representative to the Budget Committee 2014- Present
New Hampshire Municipal Association, Board of Dire:ctors 2015 - Present

Awards

Awarded the “New Hampshire National Guard D.is!inguished Service Medal” for providing
leadership while at the Department of Health and Human Services for developing services,
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supports and special military / civilian partnerships for the purposes of better meeting the needs
of New Hampshire service members both active duty, deployed and reserves, their families,
and veterans. Presented by William N. Reddel 111, Major General , New Hampshire National
Guard, The Adjutant General and Governor Margaret Wood Hassan , 20 November 2014,

Awarded the “Commander’s Award for Civilian Service " for organizing and implementing
‘Operation Welcome Home’ a military / civilian partnership to support hundreds of New

Hampshire Guard service members returning from Iraq and Afghanistan. Presented by Kenneth .
Clark, Major General, New Hampshire National Guard, The Adjutant General, 24 May 2005.

Awarded the “Commissioner’s Award " which recognizes thosé who, through.their hard work
and dedication, have made outstanding contributions toward the prevention, intervention, and -
treatrent of child abuse and neglect. Individuals who receive this award have demonstrated a
strong personal commitment to ensuring the safety and well being of children and to supporting
and strerigthening our nation's families. Presented at the 2005 15™ National Conference on
Child Abuse and Neglect, by Joan E. Ohl, Commissioner, Children’s Bureau, Administration
for Children, Youth and Families, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
‘Washington, D.C., 21 April 2005. '
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MAUREEN ANN BEAUREGARD
President & CEQ
Easterseals New 'Hampshire, Inc.

. https://www.linkedin.com/in/maureen-beauregard-h637358/

EDUCATION: B.S. University of New Hampshife -
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:
2019 - Present Easterseals New Hampshire, Inc., Manchester, NH
' hitps://www eastersealsnh, org/
President/CEQ
1991 - 2019 . . Familles in Transition - New Horizons, Manchester, NH
https://www.fitnh.org/

President (2018-201%)
President and Founder (1991-2017)

1987 - 199 State of Ne.‘w Hampshire, Division for Children and Youth
Services, Portsmouth, NH i

. bitps:/fwww.dhhs.oh.gov/deyt/

Child Protective Service Worker I|
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MéUr_een Ann Beauregard

) “Pr;o j‘;','_‘l lgExperti o o
t{iston,erleen'aciQUS' Strong Financial Acumen
‘Strategic Planning : Entrepreneur/Builder

Community. Relationships

Experienced Cammunicator

Organizational Capacity Building, Team Building & Leadership

" Professional Experience

.November 1991 - ﬁﬁe&eﬁ{ Families In’ Tran51tton

.January 2018 — Present 209 _ S
President, Familigs in Transition — New Horizons ~ Manchester NH-

Key Accomphshments

‘Merged Families in Transition with the, State s largest shelter and

food paptry..
Successtully led board strategy for ¢ombined orgamzatlon

. Developed and led public awareness" and acceptance of combined

organization.

Merger resulted in being the Staté’s largest organization in‘the
provision of shelter, housing, food and services for homeless
families and individuals.

fDecember 2017 = June 2018 ‘ L "
'Rece:ver of Serenlty Place S Manchester, NH

-Key Accomplishments

Successfully navigated complex negotlatlons with the' dissolution
and replacement of critical substance use disorder program with
the NH Charitable Trust office.

- Brought together key political teaders businesses and NH's not-for-
profit sector,

November 1991 — December 2017 :
‘President & Founder ‘ Manchester, NH

Key Accomplishments:

Began as a program providing housing and services to 5 women
and their children. N
Currently, providing housmg to 1,328 families and individuals. and
138,000 meals annually,

Developed housmg and services programs in four geographic
regtons Manchester, Concord, and Dovet & Wolfeboro

-+ Developed $38Min Assets. and a $14M Annual Budget Facilities
~ developed with alternative fi f“nancmg structures that include varied

layering structures resulting in affordabmty for the organization and
those it serves.
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s Personally Authored and awarded +$20M in HUD funding from
1995 - 2008. )
+ Developed 272 housing upits and’ 199 shelter beds,
- Specnalty Programs developed: |
. ‘Willows.Substance Use Tieatment, Center - Outpatlent ‘and
Intengive Outpatlent services. Use of 3 party | msurance and
state b|I||ng Negot:ahons With State of NH.

2. Two Transitional lemg Programs one for men and one for
women. Use of 3" party insurance and state blllung
Negotlatlons with the State.of NH ‘

3. 'Recovery Housing - Safe. housing for Moms with Children

v -who'are recoverlng from substance use. disorder: Negotlated
with.State of NH.

4. ‘Opén Doors - In-home $ubstance use disorder services for
pa rent(s) and therapeutic: semces for children.

‘5, Connections to Recovery = 4 Geographic afea outreach to
homeless, with substance use.disorder. SAMSHA $1.5M.

¢ Acquured Orgamzattons lnc!ude
1. Manchester Emargency’ Housnng 2012, Developed and
expanded new family. shelter that-also.includes a Resource
Center in-2015. -
2. New Hampsh:re Coalition“to' End Homelessness 2014.
: 'Elevated organization as a leader in advocacy, reséarch and
tralmng on behalf of homeless’ famlhes and mdwuduals

% Organization developed-to assist Familiés in Transition — New
" Horizons, with double hottom ' line of ‘assisting with financial
sustalnablhty and. deeper mission-impact include:
1 Housmg ‘Benefits, 2009. A not for proflt orgamzatuon and
‘ federally designated Communlty Housing. Development
Organization that is prioritized in receiving ‘10% of federal
funids for housing related activities. Acts as the property
management company afid housing development arm of
Families in Transition — New Hofizoris. Both the properly
management and developer fees assistwiththe 7
. orgamza‘uon s sustainability.

2. QutF[Tters Thrift Store, 2003. An LLC entrepreneuna!
busmess venture that provides profits and management fees
to provide unrestricted resources for Families in Transition's
‘mission, Assists in the sustamabmty of the: orgamzatlon and
4s the entry point for in-kind-donors who become volunteers
and’ eventually ‘provide fmanmal support the ofganization
through financial donations.

.3.‘;thson Sireet Condd Association, 2018. Development of
‘housmg and commercial real estate, $3.9M. A ‘project that
‘houses.a coliaborative effort amongst four not-for profit
orgamzatlons with a focus on a substance use-disorder.
Provides property management and developer fees to-assist
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_In organization’s sustainability. A

4, Antoinette Hill Condo Assdciation, 2019. Purchase of
~ housing units, $1.6M. Provides property management and
developer fees to assist in organization's sustainability.

5. Hope House, 2018. With a majority of gifts from two
individuals, developed and implemented first shelter for
families in the lakes région. The faclility includes a
commercial rental component of cell antennae and business
rental income utilized to assist with the organizations
-sustainability. o

November 1987 — March 1991 B
‘Child Protective Service Worker | Portsmouth, NH
State of New Hampshire, Division for Children and Youth Services

i ProfessionaltExpertise’ ' r
. .= T [ wa ot abnfh  w -

- s e aten o PR - L - . Sy

Bachelor of Science University of New Hampshire, 1987

Masters of Arts Community Development Policy and Practice, Oniversity '
of New Hampshire, Student, 2019
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 Tina M. Sharby, PHR

Human Resources Profession WIID mulu-gtate experience workirig as & strategic partner in all
aspects of Human Resources Management, .

‘Areas of expertisc include: ‘ . o ~

Strong analytical and organizational skills Problem solving and complaint resolution
Ability to manage multiple tasks simultaneously . Policy development and implementation
Employment Law and Regulation Compliance . Compensation and benofits administration
Strategic management, mergers and acquisitions _

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Chief Human Resources Officer  2012-Present

Senior Vice President Human Resonrces _
Easter Seals, NH, VT, NY, ME, R, Harbor Schools & Farnum Center
1998- 2012 ' . ' _

Reporting directly to the President with total human resources and administration.
Responsible for employee relations, recruitment and retention, compensation, benefits,
risk management, health and safety, staff development for over 2100 employees in a six
state not-for- profit organization. Developed and implemented human resources policies
1o meet all organizational, state and federal requirements. Research and implemented an
organizational wide benefits plan that is supportive of on-boarding and retention needs.

* Developed and implomented a due diligence research and analysis system for assessing
merger and acquisition opportunities. Partmered with senior staff team in preparation of
strategic planning initiatives. '

.Member of the organizatioris Compliance Committee, Wellness Committee and Risk
Management Committee. Attended various board meetings as part of the senior

management tcam, and sit on the investment committes of the Board of Directors for
Easter Seals NH, Inc.

Humap Resources Director
Modre Center Services, Inc., Manchester, NH
1986-1998 ,

Held progressively responsible positions in this not-for-profit organization of 450
employees. Responsible for the development and administration of all Human Resources
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activities, Implemented key regulatory compliance programs and developed innovative
employee relations initiatives.in a rapidly changing business environment. Lead the

expansion of the Human Resources department from basic benefit administration to
becoming a key advisor to ths senior management. .

Key responsibilities included benefit design, implementation and administration; workers
compensation administration; wage and salary administration, new employee orientation
and training; policy development and communication; retirement plan administration;
budgetary development; and recruitment.

EDUCATION B o

Bachelor of Science Degree, Keene State College, 1986
Minor in Human Resources and Safety Management :
MS Organizational Leadership, Scuthern NH University (in process)

ORGANIZATIONS

Manchester Area Human Resource Association
Diversity Chair 2010
Society for Human Resource Management
BIA Human Resources -
Health Care & Workforce Development Committee 2009, 2010
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EDUCATION

John D. Soucy, MSW, LICSW

May 1994 Master of Social Work
Boston College Graduate School of Social Work
Clinical Concentration
May 1991 B. A. University of New Hampshire
Major: Psychology
Minor: Judicial Studies
EMPLOYMENT
May 2009-  Easter Scals of NH
Present )

Senior Vice President of Children’s Services

Residential and Educational Services

Zachary Road- 106 bed residential facility, psychiatric and neurobehavioral -
Lancaster Treatment Facility ad School- 27 bed residential facility, psychlatnc and
neurobehavioral -

Boy Intensive Residential Treatment- 16 bed residential facxhty, psychiatric and

. neurobehavioral

Krol House- 5 bed residential facility, psychiatric and neurobehavioral

- Zachary Road School 60 students with neurobehavioral disabilities

Jolicoeur School 70 students with psychiatnc disabilities

Early Support and Services '

Salem- In home and outpatient services for ages birth to 3 (PT, OT and Speech)
Manchester- In home services for ages birth to 3 (PT, OT and Speech)

Child Development Services '

West Stde Manchester- 225 children pre- school program and community resource
center -
Auburn Street-75 children'pre—school program

~ Autism Services

Clinic and In-home services for chlldlen with autism-Applied Behavioral Analysis
Camp
Camp-Sno Mo-Summer Camp for children with special needs

» Monitoring the daily operations of direct service programs

* Supervision of all program directors

e Assure that alt clinical services are provided in accordance with
agency’s therapeutic policies and procedures '

» Assure all educational requirements are consistent with the
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May 1990-
May 2009

April 2001-

~ October 1999-

July 2003

June 1997-
July 2003

Department of Education

Assure all clinical records are consistent with licensing,
certification and accreditation requirements

Represent the agency with presentations to commumty groups and
other organizations

Manage a $32,000,000 budget

Responsible for approximately 1000 staff

Odyssey House of New Hampshire

Director of Operations

Monitoring the daily operations of direct service programs
Supervision of all program directors

Assure that all clinical services are provided in accordance with
agencies therapeutic policies and procedures

Training of program staff in agency’s clinical philosophy, policies
and procedures

Assure all clinical records are consistent with licensing,
certification and accreditation requirements '
Represent the agency with presentations to community groups and
other organizations

Assist in development of new programs and services

Member of Executive Management Team

Program Director
Odyssey House ‘Adolescent Therapeutic Center
(30 bed long term residential treatment program, psychiatric facility)

-

Responsible for all internal operations

Administrative and Clinical supervision/oversight for 60 staff
Budget management : '
Human resources responsibilities

Responsible for maintaining all licenses and certifications

Program Director

Odyssey Blue Heron Inn
(8 bed independent/transitional living program for 16 -21 years)

Responsibie for alt internal operations
Administrative and Clinical supervision of staff
Treatment planning

Budget management

Human resources responsibilities
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¢ Responsible for maintaining all licenses and certifications

September 1995- Program Director
December 1999 Qdyssey PACE Program

(14 bed diagnostic program, adolescents)

» Responsible for all internal operations

» Administrative and Clinical supervision of staff
e Treatment planning
» Budget management
¢ Human resources responsibilities
e Responsible for mainiaining all licenses and certifications
o Conducted Family Assessment for the courts ‘

» Presented clinical recommendations to the courts

June 1998- ~ Program Director
December 1999 Odyssey PACE Maine
‘ (Diagnostic program for latency aged children, opened January 1999)
« Responsible for all aspects of licensing and opening new program
¢ Responsible for all internal operations
e Administrative and Clinical supervision of staff
¢ Treatment planning '
¢ Budget management -
* Human resources responsibilities
» Responsible for maintaining all licenses and certifications
e Conducted Family Assessment for the courts
‘» Presented clinical recommendations to the courts
3 : S
March 1995- Clinical Coordinator/ Assistant D:rcctor
September 1995+ Odyssey PACE Program
- (14 bed diagnostic program, adoleSCcnts)
- » Responsible for all internal operations
¢ Administrative and Clinical supérvision of staff
s Treatment planning

January 1993- _ Therapist : :
* March 1995 QOdyssey House Adolescent Thel apeutic Center
' (30 bed long term residential treatment program, psychlan ic f'lClllty)

o Treatment Team Leader
e Provided individual, family, and group therapy
e Facilitated substance abuse groups :
» Co-led sexual abuse victims group
e ' Case management responsibilities
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June 1991 .
January 1993

June 1990-
- September 1990

May 1990-
June 1990

September 1992-
May 2009

Primary Care Giver
Odyssey House Adolescent Therapeutic Center
(30 bed long term residential treatment program, psychiatric facnlny)
» Case management responsibilities
¢ Provided individual counseling
-« Crisis management/intervention

Vocational Teacher’s Assistant (Summer employment)
Odyssey House Adolescent Therapeutic Center
(30 bed long term residential treatment program, psychiatric facility)
e Assisted in teaching vocational skills
o Crisis intervention
« Mediated employee/employer relations
Al

Overnight Counselor (Summer emﬁloment) ’
Odysscy Stark House
(All female long term residential treatment program)

Family Assessment Consultant, _
Conduct in-home Family Assessment for the courts
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

Key Personnel

~

% Paid ffom

Amount Paid from

‘Name Job Title Salary
] this Contract | this Contract
Maureen Beauregard | President & CEO $309,000.00 | 0% 30
Elin Treanor CFO $26225448 | 0% $0
Joseph Emmons CDO $148,526.00 | 0% 30
Tina Sharby CHRO $183,855.00 | 0% $0
John Soucy SVP of Children’s Services | $155,530.00 | 0% 30

-4/21/2021
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i .

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/201%)

Subject:_Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

Notice: This agreement and all of its atlachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior (o signing the contract.

: AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as. follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

5

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

The Home for Little Wanderers, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

10 Guest Street,
Boston, MA 02135

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number

Number
See Exhibit C
(857)208-0994

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2024 $19,903,207.01

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 Siate Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
OocuSlﬁnud by

BO1094GA

Date;. 6/25/2021

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Thomas L. Durling

CFo

1.13 State Agency Signature
DocuSigned by:

Katja For Date:  6/25/2021

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja -Fox

Director

By:

1.15 Approval By the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

"By

DoeuSi:ned by:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

On: 6/25/2021

G&C Item number:

1.17 Approval by the Goverrior and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Meeting Date:

Page 10of4 -
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Contractor Initials
Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
{“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor”) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agrecment as-indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior o the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to ‘the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services_by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding " any provision of this. Agreement to the
contrary, all ‘obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of paymenis hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event-of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
- State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
- terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source 16 the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

S. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. )

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts”
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services; the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, cou